g T G g

AGENDA

Regular Meeting of the Bradbury City Council
To be held on Tuesday, October 17, 2023
Closed Session Immediately Following
at the Bradbury Civic Center
600 Winston Avenue, Bradbury, CA 91008

OPEN SESSION 7:00 PM

Each item on the agenda, no matter how described, shall be deemed to include any
appropriate motion, whether to adopt a minute motion, resolution, payment of any bill,
approval of any matter or action, or any other action. Items listed as “For Information” or
“For Discussion” may also be subject of an “action” taken by the Board or a Committee at
the same meeting.

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL: Mayor Barakat, Mayor Pro Tem Hale, Councilmembers Lathrop, Lewis & Bruny.
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Majority Vote of City Council to proceed with City Business

DISCLOSURE OF ITEMS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 1090 & 81000
ET.SEQ.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

Anyone wishing to address the City Council on any matter that is not on the agenda for a public
hearing may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and limit
your remarks to five minutes.

Please note that while the City Council values your comments, the City Council cannot respond nor

take action unti/ such time as the matter may appear on a forthcoming agenda.

Routine requests for action should be referred to City staff during normal business hours, 8:30am -
5:00pm, Monday through Friday, at 626.358.3218.

The City of Bradbury will gladly accommodate disabled persons wishing to communicate at a
city public meeting. If special assistance is needed, please call the City Manager's Office
(626.358.3218) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.




ACTION [TEMS*

2.

CONSENT CALENDAR

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered by the City Council to be routine
and will be enacted by one motion unless a Council Member request otherwise, in
which case the itemi will be remioved and considered by separate aciion. Aif
Resolutions and Ordinances for Second Reading on the Consent Calendar, the
motion will be deemed to “to waive the reading and adopt.”

A.  Minutes: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, September 19, 2023.

B.  Monthly Investment Report for the month of September 2023

C.  Resolution No. 23-20. Demands & Warrants for October 17, 2023.
D

Ordinance No. 386: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Bradbury,
California, Repealing and Readopting Chapter 9.29 of the Bradbury Municipal Code
Relating to Reasonable Accommodations Policy and Procedures and Finding the
Ordinance to be Exempt Pursuant to the Common Sense:Exemption of CEQA
Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3)

E.  Ordinance No. 387: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Bradbury,
California, Adopting Chapter 9.30 of the Bradbury Municipal Code Relating to
Density Bonus Laws and Finding the Ordinance to be Exempt Pursuant to the
Common Sense Exemption of CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3)

F. Ordinance No. 388: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Bradbury,
California, Amending the Bradbury Municipal Code Relating to Secondary Living
Quarters and Finding the Ordinance to be Exempt Pursuant to the Common Sense
Exemption of CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)3), CEQA Guidelines Section
15282(h), and Government Code Section 65852.21

PRESENTATION - SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON’'S RECAP OF WORK ON WOODLYN
LANE

Southern California Edison will be present to recap their recent work on Woodlyn Lane.

PRESENTATION - SAN GABRIEL VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

The SGVCOG Staff will be providing updates on the SGVCOG programs, accomplishments
and goals for the upcoming year.

PRESENTATION - AN UPDATE BY CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER ON THE LEMON
AVENUE RESERVOIR

California American Water has been working toward the retirement of the Lemon Avenue
Reservoir site, and the draft plans are now close to finalization. It is recommended that the
City Council review the draft plans and provide any feedback.

CC Regular Meeting 2023_10_17



10.

10.

11.

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT

The City of Bradbury, per local and State law, must complete an annual audit of its financial
activities. An independent audit was completed, and several internal control findings were
reported. During the presentation of this item, Staff will be responding to these conditions
and providing future resolutions. It is recommended the City Council receive and file the
Annuai Financial Report as presented.

AWARD OF BID FOR HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the California Governor’s Office of
Emergency Services (Cal OES) requires local municipalities to prepare, adopt, maintain, and
update (every 5-years) an approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP). A LHMP is the
process of assessing vulnerabilities, risk, strategies for risk reduction, and assigning parties to
carry out appropriate action. Furthermore, without an LHMP, the City of Bradbury (City) is
ineligible to receive FEMA grant funds in the case of a disaster. The City is due for an update
and recommends that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with Atlas
Planning Solutions for $42,980 to update the City’s LHMP.

DISCUSSION ON FUNDING PROJECT(S) WITH ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF CAL RECYCLE
FUNDS

The City of Bradbury currently has a restricted fund of $9,818 from Cal Recycle, the State
agency responsible for managing and promoting recycling and waste reduction efforts
throughout California. It is recommended that the City Council direct Staff on how to proceed
with expensing these restricted funds.

DISCUSSION ON BRADBURY NIGHT OUT

This item prompts a discussion on changing the date of Bradbury Night Out (BNO). After an
analysis by City Staff, it is recommended that the City Council elect to change the date of
BNO to mid-late June moving forward.

DISCUSSION ON LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

This item prompts a discussion on the City of Bradbury's law enforcement services. It is
recommended that the City Council direct Staff on how to proceed.

MATTERS FROM THE CITY MANAGER

MATTERS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY



12. MATTERS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL

Mayor Barakat

LA County Sanitation Districts

LA County City Selection Committee

Director of Bradbury Disaster Committee

So. California Joint Powers Insurance Authority

Mayor Pro Tem FHale

Councilmember Lathrop
League of California Cities
Duarte Community Education Council (CEC)

Councitmembei Bruny

Area "D” Office of Disaster Management
Duarte Fducation Foundation

Foothill Transit

Councilmember Lewis

13. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

CLOSED SESSION
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT — REGARDING CLOSED SESSION ONLY

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING:

A, CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - PENDING LITIGATION Pending Litigation pursuant
to Government Code sec. 54956.9, (d)(1)
Grow Monrovia v. City of Bradbury - L.A. Superior Court Case No. 23STCP00128

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT:

The City Council will adjourn to a Regular Meeting at the Bradbury Civic Center, 600 Winston Avenue,
Bradbury, CA 91008 on Tuesday, November 21, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.

* ACTION ITEMS:  Regardless of a staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider
such matters, including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject or continue such item. Further
information on each item may be procured from City Hall.

I Diane Jensen, City Clerk, hereby certify that I caused this agenda to be posted at the Bradbury City Hall
entrance gate by 5:00pm on Friday, October 13, 2023.”

Diane Jensen
City Clerk - City of Bradbury

CC Regular Meeting 2023_10_17




BRADBURY
REGULAR MEETING

MINUTES

Regular Meeting of the City of Bradbury City Council
Tuesday, September 19, 2023
Bradbury Civic Center

CALL TO ORDER — The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Bradbury was
called to order by Mayor Barakat at 7:00pm followed by the Pledge of Allegiance lead
by Councilmember Lewis.

ROLL CALL -

PRESENT:  Mayor Barakat, Mayor Pro Tem Hale, Councilmembers Lathrop, Bruny & Lewis.
ABSENT: None.

STAFF: City Manager Kearney, City Clerk Jensen, Management Analyst Flores, City
Planner Kasama, City Attorney Reisman and Assistant City Attorney Kranitz.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor Pro Tem Hale made a motion to approve the new agenda
with Councilmember Lewis seconding that motion. Without any objections, the Council
proceeded with the City of Bradbury business.

DISCLOSURE OF ITEMS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 1090 & 81000 ET. SEQ. —
In compliance with the California Political Reform Act, each City Councilmembers has the responsibility to
disclose direct or indirect potential for a personal financial impact as a result of participation in the
decision-making process concerning agenda items.

City Attorney Reisman stated he was not aware of any potential conflicts.

1. Public Comment - No Members of the Public in Attendance.

ACTION [TEMS*

2. Consent Calendar Approval Before voting on the approval of the Consent Calendar,
City Manager Kearney reported the Direct Deposit Payroll for City Manager in the
September 19, 2023 Demands & Warrants should be $15,833.33 and not $18,533.33.
The totals for the page are correct; however, and based upon the correct fiqure of
$15.833.33. Mayor Pro Tem Hale approved the newly clarified section and
Councilmember Bruny seconded the approval.

City Council Minutes September 19, 2023



A. Minutes: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 15, 2023.
B. Resolution No. 23-18: Demands & Warrants for September 19, 2023.
C. Monthly Investment Report for the Month of August 2023.

It was moved to approve the Consent Calendar by Mavor Pro Tem Hale with Mayor Barakat
seconding that motion. Motion passed 5:0.

AYES: Mayor Barakat, Mayor Pro Tem Hale and Councilmembers Lathrop, Bruny &
Lewis.

NOES:  None.

ABSENT: None.

3. Presentation - Citrus College

Citrus College Trustee Mary Ann Lutz and Superintendent Dr. Greg Schu 'tz explained since
opening in 1915 to present day, Citrus College has providing educations to over 200K
residents from Pasadena to Claremont. They announced the new “First time student (any
age) = Two Years Free Tuition” program and how they awarded agproximately 1890
degrees and 2200 certificates in the fields of science, business management, criminal
justice, cosmetology, diesel tech, real estate and vocational nursing. Lastly, the Council
was invited to visit their popular Theatre of Performing Arts and attend the next monthly
"Workforce Development Tour” on October 20, 2023,

4.  Authorization to extend the Lemon Avenue Trail Improvements arouind 1550 Lemon
Avenue on Winston Avenue.

Engineer Dave Giibertson of RKA explained that extending the current Lemon Avenue
trail plans about 130’ South of the Winston/Lemon intersection around the front of
1550 Lemon Avenue actually creates a safer ingress/egress point by providing greater
visibility especially during the dark hours. The extension would also include an ADA
ramp and a signh announcing the trail. The area around 1550 Lemon is not wide enough
for the trail so an additional 3’ pedestrian easement is required from the 1550 Lemon
property. In exchange for this easement, the City agrees to reconstruct the “drive
approach” area only on their driveway. The additional costs for these changes are
$24,500.00 bringing total costs to $262,699.47.

Mayor Pro Tem Hale made motion to approve the trail extension, the additional costs
associated with the extension, issuing a change order to the contractor doing the work
or SDC Engineering and approving the Pedestrian Easement Agreement with 1550
Lemon Avenue. Councilperson Bruny seconded the motion which the Council passed
unanimously with a 5:0 vote.

City Council Minutes September 19, 2023



5. Urgency Ordinance No. 385U and Regular Ordinance 387: Density Bonus Ordinances and Finding
that Adoptions are Exempt from CEQA Under the Common Sense Exemption.

The State Density Bonus Law enables developers to have greater density than what the
local zoning laws allow provided that affordable housing is included in the development.
This Ordinance also provides for waivers of iocal development regulations as incentives
for developers to provide affordable housing. The City does not have any density bonus
provisions so the proposed Ordinance will help bring the City into compliance with State
Law. Because the Density Bonus Law is subject to frequent amendments, the proposed
Ordinance is to adopt the State law by reference which means the City will not have to
amend its Ordinance every time the State makes an amendment. The Planning
Commission considered the proposed regular Ordinance at its August 23™ meeting and
adopted Resolution No. PC. 23-312 which recommends approval and adoption by City
Council of the Urgency Ordinance No. 385U effective immediately and the reqular
Ordinance No. 387 to be introduced with a second reading and adoption scheduled for
the next regular meeting on October 17, 2023.

Mayor Barakat opened and subsequently closed the Public Hearing due to no one from
the public being present.

Councilmember Lathrop made a motion to approve the emergency Ordinance 385U
with Councilmember Bruny seconding the motion. Because the vote requires a vote of
4:5, a roll call vote was performed. All councilmembers including the mayor passed
the motion 5:0.

The regular Ordinance 387 was introduced by a motion from Mayor Pro Tem Hale and
seconded by Councilmember Bruny. The motion passed unanimously with a 5:0 vote.
It was scheduled for a second reading and adoption at the next regular meeting on
October 17, 2023.

6.  Ordinance No. 386: Reasonable Accommodations Policy and Procedures Ordinance No. 386 and
Finding that Adoption is exempt from CEQA under the Common Sense Exemption.

City Planner Kasama introduced Ordinance No. 386 to the Council. This ordinance requires local
governments to make reasonable accommodations in land use and zoning requlations to reduce
impediments to equal access to housing.

Mayor Barakat opened and subsequently closed the Public Hearing due to no one from
the public being present.

Ordinance 386 was introduced by a motion from Mayor Pro Tem Hale and seconded by
Councilmember Bruny. The motion passed unanimously with a 5:0 vote. It is scheduled
for a second reading and adoption at the next regular meeting on October 17, 2023.

7. Ordinance No. 388: Amendment to Chapter 85 of the Bradbury Municipal Code Relating to
Secondary Living Quarters and SB 9 Units and Findings that the Ordinance is exempt from CEQA.

Legislature has amended the laws relating to accessory dwelling units. Ordinance No.
388 amends the Bradbury Code to reflect State laws and resolves an interplay between
SB 9 units and ADUs.

City Council Minutes September 19, 2023



10.

It is recommended that the City Council hold a public hearing, determine that Ordinance
No. 388 is exempt under CEQA, introduce the Ordinance, and schedule the 2nd reading
and adoption for the next regular meeting on October 17, 2023.

Mayor Barakat opened and subsequently closed the Public Hearing due to no one from
the public being present.

+h

the 2nd

Councilmember Lewis made a motion to introduce the Ordinance and schedule
reading and adoption for the next regular meeting on October 17, 2023.

Councilmember Bruny seconded the motion which passed unanimously 5:0.

Discussion on Issuing Separate Addresses for Accessory Dwelling Units.

State Law allows ADUs to have separate utilities outside from the main house. Utility
companies; however, require separate addresses from the main house if two separate
meters are used.

As such, the City of Bradbury will use the “Letter A" behind the primary dwellings
numerical portion of address. For example: 123A Main Street.

Approval of the JPA with LARA: Resolution No. 23-19 -

Management Analyst Flores explained how the City of Bradbury is one out of 18
members comprising the Los Angeles Regional Agency or “LARA” which is administered
by the Joint Powers Agreement or “JPA.” The JPA also helps cities comply with the
State’s recycling laws which are amended often. The recent adoption of SB 1383
requires the JPA to be amended and restated by the State to accommodate the
necessary changes.

It is recommended that the City of Bradbury approve Resolution No. 23-19 which gives
the City Manager the authorization to sign the revised JPA as amendments occur
bypassing the need to bring before City Council each time there is an amendment.

Councilmember Lewis made the motion to approve Resolution No. 23-19 with
Councilmember Bruny seconding the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discussion of the City’s Investment Policy.

The City’s Investment has gone through some change but nothing “structural.” This is more of
an update to current practices and what the City is doing. As the City Manager. City Treasurer
and City Finance Director discussed the Policy, it became aware there was a large amount of
money in the checking account and not only is it not making any money, but the EDIC does not
insure above $250K. It was discussed to release a large portion of this account and roll it into
something like a CD or Treasury Bill which is insured, very liquid and interest earning. Some of
the funds could be put into LAIF until the checking balance was $250K.

Mayor Barakat suggested moving the Texas and BMW accounts into a 6-month account earning
around 5.5%. The City Manager asked for formal approval to accomplish all of this after speaking
with the City Treasurer. Mayor Pro Tem Hale made a motion giving formal approval and
Councilmember Bruny seconded the motion. It passed unanimously 5:0.

City Council Minutes September 19, 2023




1.

12.

13.
14.

15.

Recap on Bradbury Night Out.

It was decided during last month’s council meeting to revisit this topic to ensure all

councilmembers have time to consider whether July is the best month to have the event.

The end of July is one of the hottest months so the council will decide if changing the

date to a month with traditionally less heat but still enough sunlight after 8:00pm so no

one is walking in the dark which is unsafe.

The months of May, June and October were discussed but it was agreed to wait until
the next regular meeting on October 17, 2023 to have a final vote.

Matters from the City Manager: None.

Matters from the City Attorney: None.

Matters from the City Council:

Mayor Barakat: None

Mayor Pro Tem Hale: Prevent burglaries in Bradbury.

Increase City’s fence Height from 6”
Fence around perimeter with wrought iron curved tops

Councilmember Lathrop Planning Commission and City Council Retreat
Councilmember Bruny None
Councilmember Lewis None

Items for Future Agendas:
A.  Using Monrovia Police services
B.  SCE at next council meeting

C.  Cal Recycle Program

CLOSED SESSION

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION @ 8:11pm. Councilmembers, City Attorney Reisman and City
Manager Kearney discussed the following:

A.

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - PENDING LITIGATION Pending Litigation
pursuant to Government Code sec. 54956.9, (d)(1)

Calitornians for Homeownership, Inc. v. Gity of Bradbury - LA. Superior Court Case No.
22STCPO1381

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — PENDING LITIGATION Pending Litigation
pursuant to Government Code sec. 54956.9, (d)(1
Grow Monrovia v. City of Bradbury - L.A. Superior Court Case No. 23STCP00128

PENDING LITIGATION

Pending Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(3) (Based on
existing facts and circumstances, the legislative body of the local agency is meeting
only to decide whether a closed session is authorized pursuant to paragraph (d) (2).
(1 potential case).

City Council Minutes September 19, 2023




D. PENDING LITIGATION
Pending Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(2) A point has
been reached where, in the opinion of the legislative body of the local agency on the
advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, there is a
significant exposure to litigation against the local agency. (1 potential case)

E. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Government Code Section 54957 (b)(4); Title: Building & Safety

F. EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE
Consideration of employee discipline pursuant to Government Code section
54957.1(a)(5) (City Manager)

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION: At 8:50pm, Closed Session ended — City Attorney
Reisman reported session was "informative only” and no formal votes taken.

ADJOURNMENT At 8:52 pm, Mayor Barakat moved to adjourn the meeting and
Councilmember Lathrop seconded the motion. The Regular City Council Meeting was
adjourned to Bradbury Civic Center, 600 Winston Avenue, Bradbury, CA 91008 on
Tuesday, October 17, 2023 at 7:00pm.

SIGNED BY:

MAYOR RICHARD BARAKAT DATE
City of Bradbury

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK DIANE JENSEN DATE
City of Bradbury

City Council Minutes September 19, 2023



CASH ON DEPOSIT BY ACCOUNT

Bank Accounts:
Welis Fargo Bank - General Checking

Investments:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Metro Credit Union

Texas Exchange Bank Crowley CD
BMW Bank of NA

Salal Credit Union Seattle Wash

Total

I hereby certify that there are sufficient funds available to meet the City's obligations for the next three (3) months.

City of Bradbury
Monthly Investment Report for the month of September 2023

Amount
$ 1,684,337.85

$3,423,775.19

$ 243,000.00
$ 249,000.00
mmhm_ooo.oo
m

Maturity

n/a

n/a

07.26.2023
07.09.2024
12.10.2024
09.29.2023

Interest Rate
0%

3.35%

5.55%
0.50%
0.90%
4.20%

| $5,848,113.04 |

CASH & INVESTMENTS ON DEPOSIT BY FUND

Funds

General Fund (101)

Utility Users Tax Fund (102)
Deposits Fund (103)

Long Term Planning Fee Fund (112)
Technology Fee Fund (113)
Gas Tax Fund (200)

SB 1 Gas Tax Fund (201)
Prop A Fund (203)

Prop C Fund (204)

TDA Fund (205)

Sewer Fund (206)

STPL Fund (208)

Recycling Grant Fund (209)
SB 1383 Organic Waste Recyclying(209)
Measure R Fund (210)
Measure M Fund (212)
Measure W Fund (213)
COPS Fund (215)

County Park Grant Fund (217)
CWPP Grant Fund (219)
ARPA Fund (220)

Total

This report is prepared in accordance with the guidelines established in the Statement of Investment Policy adopted November 21, 2017

Submitted By:

Kevin Kearney
City Manager

Date

Reviewed By:

Amount

$4,555,197.10
$551,992.79

($13,046.98)
$8,925.54
$11,327.18
$10,382.67
$1,878.49
$61,992.09
$34,634.69

($848.96)
$0.00
$1,060.28
$9,817.12
$20,103.00
$67,179.20
$84,895.05
$17,802.98
$396,006.90
$9,297.89
$19,516.01
$0.00

[$ 5,848,113.04 |

Laurie Stiver
City Treasurer

Date



Revenues

Acct. 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Number Account Description Budget _ YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget  YTD @ 09/30/2023
General Fund:
101-00-4000 Operating Transfers In - - #Divio! - - #DIV/0!
101-00-4010 Property Tax-Current Secured 490,000 494 100 101% 490,000 8,115 2%
101-00-4030 Property Tax-Current Unsecured 20,000 18,069 90% 22,000 20,307 92%
101-00-4050 Property Tax Prior Year - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
101-00-4060 Public Safety Augmentation F 11,000 12,419 113% 12,300 3,382 27%
101-00-4070 Delinquent Taxes 9,000 10,043 112% 9,000 - 0%
101-00-4100 Sales & Use Tax 3,500 2,679 77% 2,500 185 7%
101-00-4110 Franchise Fee-Cable TV 20,000 18,640 93% 18,500 4,553 25%
101-00-4111 PEG Fees - 3,737 #DIV/O! 3,750 911 24%
101-00-4120 Franchise Fee-SC Edison 20,000 23,934 120% 25,000 - 0%
101-00-4130 Franchise Fee-SC Refuse 25,000 32,866 131% 38,000 10,058 26%
101-00-4140 Franchise Fee-SC Gas Co. 3,500 4518 129% 5,000 - 0%
101-00-4150 Franchise Fee-Cal Am Water 50,000 45,469 91% 46,000 - 0%
101-00-4160 AB939 Refuse Admin. Fee 10,000 - 0% 20,000 - 0%
101-00-4190 Real Property Transfer Tax 35,000 40,184 115% 35,000 1,359 4%
101-00-4200 Motor Vehicle In-Lieu 145,000 152,883 105% 145,000 - 0%
101-00-4210 Dist & Bail Forfeiture 400 509 127% 400 107 27%
101-00-4220 Fines-City 2,500 18,343 734% 2,500 - 0%
101-00-4350 Business License 29,000 30,721  106% 29,000 6,587 23%
101-00-4360 Movie & TV Permits 15,000 32,960 220% 15,000 - 0%
101-00-4370 Bedroom License Fee 6,500 46,350 713% 6,500 - 0%
101-00-4410 Variances & CUPs 1,635 3,269 200% 1,635 - 0%
101-00-4420 Lot Line Adjustment/Zone Changes 3,800 - 0% 1,500 - 0%
101-00-4440 Subdivisions/Lot Splits 4,800 - 0% 1,500 - 0%
101-00-4460 Planning Dept. Review 36,000 28,864 80% 36,000 1,655 5%
101-00-4470 Building Construction Permit 100,000 143,770 144% 150,000 22,047 15%
101-00-4480 Building Plan Check Fees 100,000 37,569 38% 100,000 4,481 4%
101-00-4485 Landscape Plan Check Permit 10,000 4,168 42% 10,000 1,160 12%
101-00-4490 Green Code Compliance 25,000 16,142 65% 25,000 1,021 4%
101-00-4500 Civic Center Rental Fee 900 - 0% 200 900 100%
101-00-4530 Environmental & Other Fees 2,500 1,854 74% 2,500 - 0%
101-00-4540 City Engineering Plan Check 90,000 71,569 80% 70,000 20,206 29%
101-00-4600 Interest Income 12,000 90,418 753% 45,000 11,839 26%
101-00-4700 Sales of Maps & Publications 107 #DIV/0! 10 - 0%
101-00-4800 Other Revenue - 39,931 #DIV/O! - #DIV/0!
101-00-4850 Cal-Am Loan Repayment 4,500 4820 107% 4,500 - 0%
101-00-4900 Reimbursements 15,000 34 0% 5,000 - 0%
101-00-4920 Sale of Prop. A Funds - - #DIV/O! - #DIV/O!
101-20-4260 Housing Element Grant Reimbursement - - #DIv/o! 42,768 #DIV/O!
101-23-4950 Vacant Property Registry Fee - - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
101-24-4610 Donations - - #DIV/0} 500 #DIV/0!
Total General Fund Revenues 1,301,535 1,430,939 110% 1,378,995 162,141 12%
Utility Users Tax Fund:
102-00-4600 Interest 12,000 4,080 34% 12,000 - 0%
102-00-4830 Electric - - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/0!
12,000 4,082 34% 12,000 - 0%
Deposits Fund:
103-00-2039 Chadwick Ranch Development 60,000 - 0% - #DIV/0!
103-00-2040 1901 Royal Oaks Dr. North - #DIV/0! 20,000 #Div/0!
60,000 - #DIV/0! - 20,000 #DIv/0!
Long Term Planning Fee Fund:
112-00-4490 Long-Term Planning Fee 7,500 1,921 26% 3,500 736 21%
112-00-4600 LTP Fee Interest Income 125 52 42% 125 - 0%
7,625 1,973 26% 3,625 736 20%

10f3



Revenues

Acct. 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Number Account Description Budget  YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget YTD @ 09/30/2023
Technology Fee Fund:
113-00-4520 Technology Fee 17,500 11,688 67% 10,000 1,198 12%
113-00-4600 Technology Fee Interest Income 550 103 19% 550 - 0%
18,050 11,791 65% 10,550 1,198 11%
Gas Tax Fund:
200-00-4600 Interest 250 10 4% 250 - 0%
200-48-4260 Gas Tax 28,250 29,638 105% 28,250 13,525 48%
28,500 29,648 104% 28,500 13,525 47%
SB1 Gas Tax Fund:
201-00-4260 Gas Tax 19,700 18,863 96% 19,700 3,777 19%
201-00-4600 Gas Tax Interest 750 70 9% 750 - 0%
20,450 18,933 93% 20,450 3,777 18%
Prop. A Fund:
203-40-4260 Prop. A Transit Funds 22,000 27,468 125% 22,000 6,183 28%
203-00-4600 Prop. A Transit Interest 600 287 48% 600 - 0%
22,600 27,755  123% 22,600 6,183 27%
Prop. C Fund:
204-48-4260 Prop. C Funds 18,000 22,784 127% 18,000 5,133 29%
204-48-4600 Prop. C Interest 350 173 49% 350 - 0%
18,350 22,957  125% 18,350 5,133 28%
Transportation Development Act Fund:
205-48-4260 TDA Funds 5,000 4,587 92% 5,000 413 8%
205-48-4600 TDA interest 30 0% 30 - 0%
5,030 4,587 91% 5,030 413 8%
Sewer Fund:
206-00-4000 Transfers In - #DIV/O! - 73,161  #DIV/0!
206-50-4600 Sewer Fund Interest 10,000 4 0% - #DIv/0!
206-50-4606 Winston Ave. Assessment 74,423 73,161 98% - #DIV/0!
84,423 73,165 87% - 73,161  #DIV/0!
STPL Fund:
208-00-4600 STPL Interest 20 7 35% 20 - 0%
20 7 35% 20 - 0%
Recycling Grant Fund:
209-00-4260 Recycling Grant Funds 5,000 5,000 100% 5,000 - 0%
209-00-4600 Recycling Grant Interest 150 206 137% 150 - 0%
5,150 5206 101% 5,150 - 0%
Measure R Fund:
210-48-4260 Measure R Funds 13,500 17,083  127% 13,500 2,651 20%
210-00-4600 Measure R Interest 1,200 527 44% 400 - 0%
14,700 17,610 120% 13,900 2,651 19%
Measure M Fund
212-48-4260 Measure M Funds 16,000 19,324  121% 16,000 2,651 17%
212-00-4600 Measure M Interest 800 487 61% 400 0%
16,800 19,811 118% 16,400 2,651 16%
Measure W Fund
213-48-4260 Measure W Funds 50,506 76,454 151% 50,506 0%
213-48-4600 Measure W Interest 1,000 0% #DIV/0!
51,506 76,454  148% 50,506 - 0%

20f3



Revenues

Acct. 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Number Account Description Budget  YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget YTD @ 09/30/2023
Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Fund:
215-23-4260 COPs Funds 100,000 224,440 224% 100,000 0%
215-00-4600 COPs Interest 5,500 3,221 59% 2,200 0%
105,500 227,661 216% 102,200 - 0%
County Park Grant:
217-00-4210 County Park Grant - - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
217-00-4600 Grant Fund Interest Income 650 64 10% 650 0%
650 64 10% 650 - 0%
Fire Safe Grant:
219-00-4260 Community Wildfire Protection Plan 5,000 8,819 176% #DIV/O!
219-00-4600 Fire Safe Grant Interest Income 50 104 208% #DIV/0!
5,050 8,923 177% - - #DIV/O!
ARPA Fund:
220-00-4215 ARPA Revenues 175,000 - 0% #DIV/0!
220-00-4600 Interest Income 1,200 427 36% #DIV/0!
176,200 427 0% - - #DIV/0!
Total Revenues 1,954,139 1,981,993  101% 1,688,926 291,569 17%

30f3



Expenditures

2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Account Description Budget YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget YTD @ 09/30/2023
General Fund:
City Council Division:
101-11-6100 Events and awards 14,000 10,994 79% 14,000 12,631 90%
101-11-6110 City Newsletter 400 265 66% 400 - 0%
101-11-6500 Community Support (homelessness) 4,000 3,600 90% 4,000 - 0%
18,400 14,859 81% 18,400 12,631 69%
City Manager Division:
101-12-5010 Salaries 150,000 163,333  102% 157,650 35,000 22%
101-12-5100 Benefits 58,099 60,662 104% 62,197 34,720 56%
101-12-6020 Meetings & Conferences 5,000 4,475 90% 5,000 2,150 43%
101-12-6025 Expense Account 1,500 320 21% 1,500 343 23%
101-12-6050 Mileage 1,000 1,098  110% 1,000 384 38%
101-12-6440 Cell Phone 900 975 108% 900 475 53%
216,499 220,863 102% 228,247 73,072 32%
City Clerk Division:
101-13-5010 Salaries 72,695 107,695 148% 73,570 20,476 28%
101-13-5100 Benefits 29,359 39,992 136% 21,267 7,027 33%
101-13-6020 Meetings & Conferences - 689 #DIV/0! 1,500 438 29%
101-13-6050 Mileage 100 52 52% 500 - 0%
101-13-6210 Special Department Supplies 500 - 0% 500 - 0%
101-13-6220 Election Supplies 600 - 0% 600 - 0%
101-13-6225 Codification 3,500 2,916 83% 3,500 2,162 62%
106,754 151,344 142% 102,437 30,103 29%
Finance Division:
101-14-5010 Salaries 25,000 19,646 79% 22,500 4,522 20%
101-14-5100 Benefits - #DIV/O! - - #DIV/0!
101-14-6210 Special Department Supplies 500 420 84% 500 - 0%
101-14-6230 Contracted Computer Services 1,500 - 0% 1,500 1,281 85%
101-14-7010 Contracted Banking Services 4,000 3,597 90% 4,000 1,742 44%
101-14-7020 Contracted Audit Services 17,000 17,510 103% 17,500 8,035 46%
101-14-7040 GASB Reports 1,000 700 70% 1,000 700 70%
49,000 41,873 85% 47,000 16,280 35%
City Attorney Division:
101-15-6125 City Attorney-Planning 10,000 8,383 84% 10,000 6,070 61%
101-15-7020 City Attorney Retainer 34,800 31,900 92% 34,800 17,971 52%
101-15-7070 City Attorney Special Service 2,000 34,721 1736% 25,000 10,691 43%
101-15-7075 Development Code Update 7,000 3,245 46% 7,000 2,145 31%
101-15-7080 Seminars & Training 1,000 385 35% 1,000 - 0%
101-15-7450 City Attorney-Code Enforcement 2,000 1,238 62% 1,000 314 31%
56,800 79,872 141% 68,800 37,191 54%
General Government Division:
101-16-5010 Salaries 60,331 67,321 112% 60,331 10,588 18%
101-16-5100 Benefits 21,297 16,936 80% 21,297 2,943 14%
101-16-6010 Seminars & Training 1,000 0% 1,000 667 67%
101-16-6020 Meetings & Conferences 1,000 35 4% 1,000 - 0%
101-16-6040 Transportation & Lodging 1,000 - 0% 1,000 - 0%
101-16-6050 Mileage 400 - 0% 400 - 0%
101-16-6120 Postage 400 704  176% 400 1,948 487%
101-16-6200 Office Supplies 2,000 5224 261% 4,500 1,386 31%
101-16-6210 Special Departmental Supplies 16,100 - 0% 1,500 - 0%
101-16-6230 Computer & Website Services 4,000 12,136  303% 5,000 4,180 84%
101-16-6240 PERS UAL Payment 12,920 12,490 97% 12,920 10,918 85%
101-16-6241 PERS Replacement Benefit Contribution 3,000 2,858 95% 3,000 0%
101-16-6242 PERS SSA 218 Annual Fee 200 - 0% 200 0%
101-16-6250 Copier & Duplications - 1,048 #DIV/O! - 75 #DIV/0!

10f4



Expenditures

2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Account Description Budget YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget YTD @ 09/30/2023
101-16-6300 Insurance 40,000 42,609 107% 57,000 53,762 94%
101-16-6400 Utilities 5,500 10,197 185% 8,000 4,241 53%
101-16-6440 Telephone 2,000 2210 111% 2,000 815 41%
101-16-6450 Building Operations 2,000 439 22% 1,000 1,962 196%
101-16-6460 Building & Cleaning Service 4,000 5836 146% 4,000 2,680 67%
101-16-6470 Maintenance & Supplies 1,000 2,536 254% 4,500 919 20%
101-16-7435 Redistricting - 743 #DIV/O! - 59 #DIV/0!
101-16-6415 Street Signs 10,000 - 0% 10,000 - 0%
188,148 183,322 97% 199,048 97,143 49%
Engineering Division:
101-19-7230 Contracted Engineering Services 80,000 62,325 78% 70,000 12,542 18%
80,000 62,325 78% 70,000 12,542 18%
Planning, Zoning & Development Division:
101-20-6020 Meetings & Conferences - 100 -
101-20-6120 Postage 300 - 0% 300 - 0%
101-20-6210 Special Department Supplies 300 - 0% 300 - 0%
101-20-6240 Environmental Filing Fees - - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/0!
101-20-7210 City Planner Retainer 46,800 31,200 67% 46,800 19,500 42%
101-20-7220 Contracted Building & Safety 90,000 82,800 92% 100,000 10,313 10%
101-20-7240 City Planner Special Service 10,000 8,828 88% 15,000 6,876 46%
101-20-7245 General Plan update 15,000 82,903 553% 20,000 20,404 102%
101-20-7075 Development Code Update - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
162,400 205,731 127% 182,500 57,093 31%
Parks & Landscape Maintenance Division:
101-21-7015 Royal Oaks Trail Maintenance 10,000 14,232  142% 10,000 5,231 52%
101-21-7020 City Hall Grounds Maintenance 7,500 4,836 64% 7,500 2,460 33%
101-21-7025 Trail Maintenance 10,000 8,978 90% 10,000 - 0%
101-21-7035 Mt.Olive Entrance & Trail 12,000 6,831 57% 12,000 3,677 31%
101-21-7045 Lemon/RO Horse Trail 7,000 1,651 24% 7,000 782 11%
101-21-7060 Street Tree Trimming 15,000 8,245 55% 5,000 - 0%
61,500 44773 73% 51,500 12,150 24%
Public Safety Division:
101-23-6210 Special Departmental Services 50 52  104% 50 1 2%
101-23-6210 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 15,000 0%
101-23-7410 Contract Services Sheriff 128,000 107,295 84% 139,463 43,839 31%
101-23-7420 City Hall Security 3,500 2,976 85% 3,500 1,101 31%
101-23-7450 Code Enforcement 1,500 1,549 103% 1,500 318 21%
101-23-7757 AED Purchase - #DIV/O - #DIVi0!
133,050 111,872 84% 159,513 45,259 28%
Emergency Preparedness Division:
101-24-6010 Seminars & Training 100 44 44% 100 0%
101-24-6020 Meetings & Conferences 500 27 5% 500 0%
101-24-6030 Memberships & Dues 450 900 200% 450 900 200%
101-24-6100 Events & Awards 200 - 0% 200 0%
101-24-6470 Maintenance & Supplies 5,000 1,615 32% 5,000 1,502 30%
101-24-6480 Civic Center Generator 300 0% 300 1,752 584%
6,550 2,586 39% 6,550 4,154 63%
Animal & Pest Control Division:
101-25-7000 Animal Control Services 8,500 10,811  127% 10,500 5,032 48%
101-25-7010 Pest Control Services 500 0% 500 0%
9,000 10,811 120% 11,000 5,032 46%
Intergovernmental Relations Division:
101-30-6030 Memberships & Dues 11,000 11,479 104% 12,000 8,625 72%
11,000 11,479  104% 12,000 8,625 2%

20f4



Expenditures

2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Account Description Budget YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget YTD @ 09/30/2023
General Fund Totals 1,099,101 1,141,710 104% 1,156,995 411,275 36%
Utility Users Tax Fund:
102-15-7075 Development Code Update
102-42-7630 NPDES Stormwater Compliance 1,600 11,729  733% 16,000 32,047 200%
1,600 11,729 733% 16,000 32,047 200%
Deposits Fund:
103-00-2039 Chadwick Ranch Development 50,000 - 0% #DIV/0!
103-00-2040 1901 Royal Oaks Dr. North - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
50,000 - 0% - - #DIV/0!
Long Term Planning Fee Fund:
112-20-7245 General Plan Expense - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/0!
- - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/O!
Technology Fee Fund:
113-20-4500 Permit Digitizing - - #DIV/O! 900 #DIV/0!
113-20-7730 Website 5,000 1,800 36% 5,000 0%
113-20-7040 Non-Capitalized Equipment - Sonic Firewall 10,000
113-20-8120 Capital Equipment-Server & Copier 12,000 10,770 90% 14,000 4,687 33%
17,000 12,570 74% 29,000 5,587 19%
Gas Tax Fund:
200-48-6400 Ultilities-Select System 11,000 11,357 103% 10,500 3,310 32%
200-48-6410 Street Lights 11,000 11,124  101% 10,500 5,521 53%
200-48-7000 PW Contract Services 600 406 68% 600 0%
200-48-7290 Street Sweeping 4,000 3,651 91% 4,000 0%
200-48-7750 Wild Rose Project 6,430 605 9% 6,430 0%
33,030 27,143 82% 32,030 8,831 28%
SB1 Gas Tax Fund:
201-48-7750 Wild Rose Project 61,070 20,055 33% 28,070 10,327 37%
201-48-7755 City Wide Slurry Seal #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
61,070 20,055 33% 28,070 10,327 37%
Prop. A Fund:
203-00-7600 Sale of Prop. A Funds
- - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/0!
Prop. C Fund:
204-20-6030 Memberships & Dues 400 - 0% 400 0%
204-40-7325 Transit Services 8,449 7,744 92% 8,449 3,520 42%
204-48-7745 Royal Oaks North Curb Extension -
204-48-7750 Wild Rose Project 21,220 604 21,220
30,069 8,348 28% 30,069 3,520 12%
Transportation Development Act Fund:
205-48-7045 RO Trail 5,000 856 17% 4,000 0%
205-48-7720 Lemon/RO Horse Trail Project - - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
205-48-7735 Royai Oaks & Mt. Olive Trail Rehab. - - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
205-00-7760 Return of Funds - - #DIV/0! - #DIV/0!
5,000 856 #DIV/0! 4,000 - #DIV/0!
Sewer Fund:
206-50-7601 Mt. Olive Lane Sewer Project - - #DIV/O! - - #DIV/0!
206-50-7602 DUSD Message Board - - #DiV/0! - - #DIV/0!
206-50-7606 Winston Ave Project - - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/0!
- - #DIV/0! - - #DIV/Q!
STPL Fund:
208-48-7750 Wild Rose Project 1,055 - 0% 1,055 - 0%
1,055 - 0% 1,055 - 0%

3of4d



Expenditures

2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24
Account Description Budget YTD @ 06/30/2023 Budget YTD @ 09/30/2023
Recycling Grant Fund:
209-35-7300 Recycling Education 5,000 6,695 134% 5,000 - 0%
5,000 6,695 1 5,000 - -
Measure R Fund:
210-48-7750 Wild Rose Project 88,739 28,321 32% 82,739 7,571 9%
88,739 28,321 32% 82,739 7,571 9%
Measure M Fund
212-48-7750 Wild Rose Project 58,470 - 0% 93,470 0%
58,470 - 0% 93,470 - 0%
Measure W Fund
213-42-7630 NPDES Stormwater Compliance 50,506 47,537 50,506
50,506 47 537 94% 50,506 - 0%
Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Fund:
215-23-7410 Contract Services Sheriff #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
215-23-7411 Contract CSO Services & Supplies 55,000 124,884 227% 149,528 0%
55,000 124,884 227% 149,528 - 0%
County Park Grant:
217-21-7650 Civic Center Park 1,000 - 0% 1,000 0%
1,000 - 0% 1,000 - 0%
Fire Safe Grant 14-USFS-SFA-0053:
219-21-7761 Community Wildfire Protection Plan 5,000 1,885 38% #DIV/0!
5,000 1,885 38% - - #DIV/0!
ARPA Fund:
220-00-5000 Operating Transfers Out 132,500 - 0% #DIV/0!
220-00-6215 ARPA Expenses 5,300 - 0% #DIV/0!
137,800 - 0% - - #DIV/0!
Total Expenditures 1,699,440 1,431,733 84% 1679462 479,158 29%

40f4



RESOLUTION NO. 23-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, APPROVES

THE DEMANDS & WARRANTS FOR CHECKS No. 17735 THROUGH No. 17759 AND APPROVING

DEMANDS & WARRANTS FOR ACH and EFT TRANSMITTALS.

The City Council of the City of Bradbury does hereby resolve as follows:

Section 1. That the demands as set forth hereinafter are approved and warrants authorized to be
drawn for checks from said demands in the amount of $53,215.37 on October 17, 2023 from the
General Checking Account.

Ch:ck Vendor & Invoice # Description Subtotals Totals
17735 Priority Landscape Oct. '23 Landscape Services: 1431.82
Inv# 15691 Bradbury Civic Center
Acct. 101-21-7020 232.01
Royal Oaks Drive North
Acct. 101-21-7015 446.16
Mount Olive Drive
Acct. 101-21-7035 >97.33
Lemon Trail
Acct. 101-21-7045 156.32
17736 ﬁ(\)/v;rglzlﬂ 51425 Office Cleaning - Oct. ‘23 394.00
) Acct.101.16.6460
17737 Suresh Malkani Finance Director 23.75 hours 4507.16
Sept 2023 Acct. 101.14.5010
17738 Consensus E-Fax October '23 10.00
Inv. # 2765978 Acct. 101.16.6230
17739 Kevin Kearney Monthly Cell Phone -Oct. ‘23 75.00
Acct. 101.12.6440
17740 || SGVCMA Annual Dues - City Manager 55.00
Due Oct 23 07.01.23-06.30.2024
Acct. 101.30.6030




17741 US Bank Safekeeping Fees Sept ‘23 33.00
Cust# 224 Acct. 101-14-7010
10005.00
17742 || Jones and Mayer Retainer Fees - includes 12 hrs. 3000.00
Invoice #'s: Acct. 101.15.7020
118483 Total 1901 Royal Oaks 450.00
118484 Acct.103.00.2040
118485 Total Code Enforcement 456.00
118486 Acct.101.15.7450
118487 Total Grow Monrovia 171.00
118488 Acct. 101.15.7070
Total Lemon Trail 399.00
Acct.101.15.7070
Total Zoning/General Plan 5529.00
Acct. 101.15.7070
17743 RKA Engineer & Development 9 ‘23 6919.50
Inv. # 33958R
1901 Royal Oaks Drive 367.50
Acct. 103.00.2040
City Engineering Services 6552.00
368 Old Ranch Road
393 Old Ranch Road
11 Deodar Lane
409 Deodar Lane
406 Mt. Olive Lane
1390 Sharon Hill
Acct 101.19.7230
Street Sweeping Sept ‘23
17744 i%fi‘;co1 1630979 Acct. 213.42.7630 $338.92
Measure W
Cougar Mountain 8-hour Phone Training
17745 Inv. # 4892 Acct. 101.14.6230 1250.00
17746 || Collicutt Energy Generator @ City Hall 1554.81
Job ID# 54825 Battery Replaced 1000.95
37 Gallons Fuel 553.86
Acct. 101.24.6480
17747 || RKA Consulting City Engineering Services 514.50

Inv.#33957

Acc.t 101.19.7230




17748 || RKA Consulting Lemon Avenue Trail 4350.35
Inv.# 33982 Acct.

17749 || RKA Consulting NPDES Coordination 230.00
Inv.# 33959 Acct. 102.42.7630

17750 || RKA Consulting Bradbury/Wildrose St. Widening 3300.00
Inv.# 33981 Acct. 210.48.7750 SA7

17751 || City of Monrovia Transportation Services 09/23 704.07
Inv. #2400445 Acct: 204.40.7325

17752 || LA County Sheriff Law Enforcement Aug ‘23 11650.23
Inv.#240313EC Acct. 101-23-7410

17753 || Post Alarm Services City Hall Fire Alarm 146.23
Inv # 1622918 October 23

Acct.101.23.7420

17754 || Southern Calif Edison LS-T-ALLNITE (lights) 1104.18
No. 8004572845 Acct. 200-48-6410

17755 || United States Treasury Form 941-V Taxes 1401.05
3rd Qtr.

17756 || T-Mobile Internet (Hot Spot) Sept ‘23 25.00
Inv#975204096-26 Acct. 113-20-8120

17757 || Pasadena Humane Society || Animal Control Sept ‘23 1012.28
Inv#SEP2023Bradbury Acct. 101-25-7000

17758 || Mario Flores Mileage Reimbursement 21.62

Aug — Oct 2023

Delivering PC Packets x 2
Purchasing envelopes / Walmart
Picking up at Shaffer Awards
To/From Printer- Business cards
33 miles total

Acct. 101.16.6050




17759

US Bank Visa

September 2023

September Statement 2023

CC — Kevin Kearney

Zoom Virtual Meetings

Acct 113.20.8120

Docusign

Acct. 101.16.6120

Omni La Costa-Conference
Acct. 101.12.6020
Staples-Copy Paper, Sharpener
101.16.6200

BJ's — City Manager lunch mtg
101.12.6020

Amazon — Toner for Copier
Acct. 101.16.6250

Just Answer

Acct. 101.16.6120

CC - Diane Jensen

Amazon -light flag pole, new
flag, label maker, envelopes,
mouse

Staples — box of copy paper
Amazon - Toilet Paper/paper
towels

Walmart — Dish Soap; bottled
water; hanging files; shelves
Amazon ~ 3-pack 3 ring binders
Smart and Final — Bug Sprays
and birthday, Kevin

Amazon - Binder dividers and
post its

Acct. 101.16.6020

American Water Bill

American Water Bill

Acct. 200.48.6400

CC- Mario Flores

Fedex — Business Cards
Walmart - Envelopes

Acct 101.16.6200

American Red Cross Training
Acct. 101.16.6010

120.00
333.96
69.51
39.02

36341

41.27
75.53

86.21

46.81
28.71

3251

480.72
16.41

3
N
co
(@]
N

W w
W
%o i
RN

97.00

2181.65

Total Checks Amount:

$53,215.37




Section 2. That the demands as set forth hereinafter are approved and warrants authorized to be drawn for payroll
and benefits from said demands in the amount of $32,932.70 on October 17, 2023 from the General Checking
Account.

DIRECT DEPOSIT - PAYROLL

OCTOBER 2023
ACH Kevin Kearney Salary $15,833.33 $11,582.96
City Manager Acct. 101.12.5010
Withholdings -$4,250.37
Acct. 101.00.2011
ACH Diane Jensen Salary $6,145.83 $4,087.86
City Clerk Acct. 101.13.5010
Withholdings -$1,581.67
Acct. 101.00.2011
PERS Pepra _
Acct: 101.13.5100 ~$476.30
ACH Mario Flores Salary $5,416.66 $3,708.97
M. Analyst Acct. 101.16.5010
Withholdings -$1,287.89
Acct. 101.00.2071
PERS Pepra —$41980
Acct: 101.16.5100
TOTAL: $19,379.79
EFT EDD - October 2023 ‘ 1648.28
State Tax 401.72
SDI 246.56
Acct. 101.00.20M
EFT PERS — October 2023 City Manager - Kearney 2707.50 4491.60
Acct. 101.12.5100
City Clerk - Jensen 948.30
Acct. 101.13.5100
M. Analyst - Flores 835.80
Acct. 101.16.5100
EFT IRS October 2023 Federal Tax Withholdings $3,529.85 7413.03
S. Security (employee) $1,544.57
S. Security (City) $1,544.57
Medicare (Employee) $397.23
Medicare (City) $397.23
Acct. 101-00-2011

TOTAL - 13,552.91



Section 3. That the demands as set forth hereinafter are approved and warrants authorized to be drawn for
electronic funds transactions from said demands in the amount of $4909.59 (EFT utility payments) on October17,
2023 from the General Checking Account.

ACH and ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFER (EFT)

UTILITIES - OCTOBER 2023

EFT Cal American Water 1775 Woodlyn Lane 785,05
10.02.23 Conf# 11413125817 Acct. 200.48.6400 ’
EFT Cal American Water 600 Winston Avenue 289.82
10.02.23 Conf# 1141316283 Acct. 101.16.6400 )
EFT Cal American Water 2256 Gardi Street 76.31
10.02.2023 Conf# 1141313909 Acct. 200.48.6400 ’
EFT Cal American Water 2410 Mt. Olive Street 9521
10.02.2023 Conf# 1141312187 Acct. 200.48.6400 )
EFT Cal American Water 301 Mt. Olive Street 22449
10.02.2023 Conf# 1141320907 Acct. 200.48.6400 '
EFT So. Calif. Gas 600 Winston Ave. Oct ‘23
10.03.2023 Conf# 2760009 Acct. 101.16.6400 15.29
2298 Gardi Street
EFT Southern Calif. Edison
10,0123 No. 8004395919 Acct. 200.48.6400 46.46
EFT Southern Calif. Edison 602:!?%??6%2036’“ 500,36
Due 10.11.2023 No. 8001919708 T ’
EFT Southern Calif Edison 600 Wmiﬁi:ié\/e' LS-1- 10418
Due 10.23.2023 No. 8004572845 Acct. 200.48.6400
(— 1 .I‘ i
EFT J;:\l;te;(;g%?;or;;’czlzns Spectrum Internet Oct. ‘23 169.98
Due 10.10.2023 ' Acct. 101.16.6230
EFT Cal American Water City Hall Account 47114
Due 10.30.2023 Acct 101.16.6400 )
EFT . 1775 Woodlyn Lane
Due 10.30.2023 Cal American Water Acct. 200.48.6400 1131.30

TOTAL EFT: $4909.59




Section 4. That the demands as set forth hereinafter are approved and warrants authorized to be drawn for
employee health benefit payments from said demands in the amount of $3,920.76 (ACH benefit payments) on
October 17, 2023 from the General Checking Account.

Vision Insurance Oct. ‘23 108.39

CM - Kearney (family)
Acct. 101.12.5100 61.07
ACH Vision Service VSP

10.04.2023 #818837063 CC - Jensen (single) 23.66

Acct. 101.13.5100

MA - Flores (single) 23.66
Acct. 101.16.5100

Life & ADD Oct. 23 28.95

CM - Kearney
Acct. 101.12.5100 265
ACH The Standard Ins. CC - Jensen

“ .65
10.04.2023 6430650001 Acct. 101135100 >0
MA - Flores

9.65
Acct. 101.16.5100

Dental Insurance Oct. '23 206.34

CM — Kearney (family) 124.86
Acct. 101.12.5100

CC - Jensen (single) 40.74
Acct. 101.13.5100

MA - Flores 40.74
Acct. 101.16.5100

ACH Delta Dental
10.04.2023 Inv.# BEQ05706442

Health insurance Oct. ‘23 3577.08

CM — Kearney (family) 1784.23

EET AETNA Acct. 101.12.5100

10.03.2023 Conf# 44969604 CC - Jensen (single)
Acct. 101.13.5100

MA — Flores (single) 838.36
Acct. 101.16.5100

954.49

TOTAL ACH: $3,920.76



RICHARD G. BARAKAT, MAYOR
CITY OF BRADBURY

ATTEST:

"I, Diane Jensen, City Clerk, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution, being Resolution No. 23-18, was
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Bradbury, California, at a regular meeting held on the 19th
day of September 2023 by the following roll call vote:"

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

DIANE JENSEN, CITY CLERK
CITY OF BRADBURY



Richard G. Barakat, Mayor (District 3)
Richard T. Hale, Jr., Mayor Pro Tem (District 1)

T e S R - = "

Elizabeth Bruny, Council Member (District 5)
B RAD B U RY Bruce Lathrop, Councii Miember (District 4)

D. Montgomery Lewis, Council Member (District 2)

City of Bradbury
Agenda Report
TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: Kevin Kearney, City Manager
DATE: October 17, 2023

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 386 — ADOPTION

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,
CALIFORNIA, REPEALING AND READOPTING CHAPTER 9.29 OF THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY AND PROCEDURES AND FINDING THE
ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE
EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3)

Attachment: Ordinance No. 386

SUMMARY

As set forth in the Ordinance, both federal and state laws require local governments to
make reasonable accommodations in land use and zoning regulations to reduce
impediments to equal access to housing. The City Council held a public hearing at the
September 19, 2023, regular meeting and introduced Ordinance No. 386. It is
recommended that the City Council waive the reading in full, authorize the reading by title
only, and adopt Ordinance No. 386.

BACKGROUND

In January 2019, the City adopted Ordinance No. 362 that included Reasonable
Accommodation Procedures for Disabled Persons. The State Housing and Community
Development Department (HCD) has noted that these procedures need to be updated as
part of the City’s 6th Cycle Housing Element to eliminate subjectivity in the requirements.
Ordinance No. 386 updates the City’s reasonable accommodations policy and
procedures.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2D



Ordinance No. 386 — Adoption Reasonable Accommodations Policy and Procedures
October 17, 2023 Page 2 of 2

The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their August 23, 2023, regular meeting,
and adopted Resolution No. PC 23-311, to recommend that the City Council adopt
Ordinance, No. 386.

The City Council held a public hearing at the September 19, 2023, regular meeting and
introduced Ordinance No. 386.

There will be no additional financial cost to the City as the Ordinance will implement what
the City is already providing as required by State law.

CEQA

There is a common sense exemption to CEQA where it can be seen with certainty that
the project will not have a significant effect on the environment. As the Ordinance gives
no greater development rights than what is provided for under State law, it will not create
any significant effects on the environment and a notice of exemption should be filed under
CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3).

RECOMMENDATION AND CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council waive the reading in full, authorize the reading
by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 386:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,
CALIFORNIA, REPEALING AND READOPTING CHAPTER 9.29 OF THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY AND PROCEDURES AND FINDING THE
ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE
EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3)

Attachment
Ordinance No. 386



ATTACHMENT

ORDINANCE NO. 386

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, REPEALING
AND READOPTING CHAPTER 9.29 OF THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY AND
PROCEDURES AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO
BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE
EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION
15061(b)(3)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2D



ORDINANCE NO. 386

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,
CALIFORNIA, REPEALING AND READOPTING CHAPTER 9.29 OF THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY AND PROCEDURES AND FINDING THE
ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE
EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3)

WHEREAS, the federal Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 and California’s
Fair Employment and Housing Act impose an affirmative duty on local governments to
make reasonable accommodation in their land use and zoning regulations and practices
when necessary; and

WHEREAS, Fair Housing Laws include the “Fair Housing Amendments Act of
1988” (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), including reasonable accommodation required by 42
U.S.C. § 3604(f)(3)(B), and the “California Fair Employment and Housing Act” (California
Government Code Section 12900 et seq.), including reasonable accommodation required
specifically by California Government Code Sections 12927(c)(1) and 12955(l), as any of
these statutory provisions now exist or may be amended from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the State Housing and Community Development Department (HCD)
encourages cities to adopt written procedures for reasonable accommodation requests
with respect to zoning regulations, permit processing, and building codes in light of the
aforementioned laws and a city’s affirmative duty to comply with fair housing laws; and

WHEREAS, one of HCD’s comments on the City’s 6th Cycle Housing Element
related to the City’s procedures and findings regarding reasonable accommodations; and

WHEREAS, the City shall provide a process for individuals with disabilities to make
requests for, and be provided, reasonable accommodation, when reasonable accommodation
is warranted based upon sufficient evidence, from the various City laws, rules, policies,
practices and/or procedures of the City, including land use and zoning regulations; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of this chapter that, notwithstanding time limits provided
to perform specific functions, application review, decision making and appeals proceed
expeditiously, especially where the request is time sensitive, so as to reduce impediments
to equal access to housing; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on
proposed Ordinance No. 386 on August 23, 2023, at which time it considered all evidence
presented, both written and oral; and

WHEREAS, after the close of the public hearing the Planning Commission adopted
Resolution No. PC 23-311 recommending that the City Council adopt the proposed
Ordinance No. 386; and



WHEREAS, on September 19, 2023, the City Council held a duly noticed public

hearing on proposed Ordinance No. 386 at which time it considered all evidence
presented, both written and oral;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS.

A.

The City Council finds that adopting the changes set forth in this Ordinance
represents good planning practices because it provides individuals with disabilities
reasonable accommodation in rules, policies, practices, and procedures to ensure
the equal access to housing and facilitate the development of housing for
individuals with disabilities.

The City Council further finds that this Ordinance is consistent with the City’s
General Plan.

SECTION 2. Chapter 9.29 of the Bradbury Municipal Code is hereby repealed and a new
Chapter 9.29 titled Reasonable Accommodations Policy and Procedures is hereby added
to the Bradbury Municipal Code to read as follows:

9.29 REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY AND PROCEDURES

9.29.010 Title, purpose, and applicability.

A.

Title and Intent. The provisions of this Chapter shall be known as the Reasonable
Accommodations Policy and Procedures. The intent of the Reasonable
Accommodations Policy and Procedures is to provide flexibility in the application
of the zoning and building codes for individuals with a disability when flexibility is
necessary to eliminate barriers to housing opportunities. This Chapter will
facilitate compliance with federal and state fair housing laws and promote
housing opportunities for residents of Bradbury.

Purpose. The purpose of this Chapter is to establish a procedure for persons with
disabilities seeking fair access to housing to make requests for a reasonable
accommodation in the application of Bradbury's zoning and building laws, rules,
policies, practices and procedures pursuant to Section 3604(f)(3)(b) of Title 42 of
the United States Code (the "Fair Housing Act") and Section 12955 et seq. of the
California Government Code (the "California Fair Employment and Housing Act"),
which prohibit local government from refusing to make reasonable
accommodations in policies and practices when these accommodations are
necessary to afford persons with disabilities equal opportunity to use and enjoy
a dwelling.

Applicability. A request for a reasonable accommodation may include a
modification or exception to the rules, standards and practices for the siting,

-2- Ord. No.386



development and use of housing or housing-related facilities that would eliminate
regulatory barriers and provide a person with a disability equal opportunity to
housing of their choice.

9.29.020 Definitions.

For the purposes of this Chapter, unless otherwise apparent from the context, certain
words and phrases have the meanings stated in this section. The definitions stated herein
apply to differing forms of the word or phrase, as required by context.

A
B.

“City Manager” means the City Manager or his designee.

“Eligible person” means a person with a disability, a representative of such person,
or a developer of housing for persons with disabilities.

"Person with a Disability" is any person who has a physical or mental impairment
that limits one or more major life activities; anyone who is regarded as having such
impairment; or anyone who has a record of such impairment.

“Reasonable accommodation” for purposes of this chapter means providing
individuals with disabilities or developers of housing for people with disabilities,
flexibility in the application of land use and zoning and building regulations,
policies, practices and procedures, or even waiving certain requirements when it
is necessary to eliminate barriers to housing opportunities.

"Request for Reasonable Accommodation" means a request to modify land use,
zoning and building regulations, policies, practices, or procedures in order to give
people with disabilites an equal opportunity to use and enjoy housing
opportunities.

9.29.030 Notice to public.

Notice of the City of Bradbury's Reasonable Accommodations Policy and Procedures
along with an application form shall be displayed in City Hall and on the City’s website.

9.29.040 Reasonable accommodation request.

A.

Any eligible person may request a reasonable accommodation in land use, zoning
and building regulations, policies, practices and procedures by filing an application
with the City Planner.

Requests for reasonable accommodation shall be in writing and provide the
following information:

1. Name and address of the individual(s) requesting reasonable
accommodation;

-3- Ord. No.386



2. Name and address of the property owner(s);
3. Address of the property for which accommaodation is requested:;

4. Description of the requested accommodation and the regulation(s), policy or
procedure for which accommodation is sought;

5. Reason that the requested accommodation may be necessary forthe
individual(s) with the disability to use and enjoy the dwelling.

6. If necessary to reach a determination on the request for reasonable
accommodation, the reviewing authority may request further information from
the applicant consistent with fair housing laws, specifying in detail the
information that is required. In the event that a request for additional information
is mak the thirty (30) day period to issue a decision is stayed until the applicant
responds to the request

Any information identified by an applicant as confidential shall be retained ha
manner so as to respect the privacy rights of the applicant and shall not be made
available for public inspection.

If an individual needs assistance in making the request for reasonable
accommodation, the City will provide assistance to ensure that the process is
accessible.

While a request for reasonable accommodation is pending, all laws and regulations
otherwise applicable to the property that is the subject of the request shall remain
in full force and effect.

9.29.050 Timing of request.

A

A request for reasonable accommodation may be filed at any time that the
accommodation may be necessary to ensure equal access to housing.

If the project for which the request is being made also requires one or more related
discretionary approvals (including, but not limited to, design review, conditional use
permit, variance, or subdivision), then to the extent feasible, the applicant shall file
the request for reasonable accommodation together with the related application
for discretionary approval.

9.29.060 Review procedures.

A

The City Planner shall act on requests for a reasonable accommodation and shall
make reasonable accommodations in rules, policies, practices, or services when
those accommodations may be necessary to afford persons with disabilities equal
opportunities to use and enjoy housing opportunities.

-4- Ord. No.386



The City Planner shall issue a written determination on a request for a reasonable
accommodation within a timely manner but no later than thirty (30) days from the
date of receipt of a complete application form and may: (1) grant the
accommodation request; (2) grant the accommodation request subject to specified
nondiscriminatory conditions of approval; or (3) deny the request. All written
determinations shall give notice of the right to appeal as specified in Section
9.29.090. The notice of determination shall be sent to the applicant by first class
mail or in a format requested by the applicant.

For requests for a reasonable accommodation involving related applications for
discretionary approval, the application shall be processed and considered
separately from any discretionary elements of the same proposal. If the request
for a reasonable accommodation cannot be effectuated until a final decision is
rendered on the related discretionary approval(s), a "provisional decision" can be
granted within the 30-day time frame and shall become final at the same time as
the discretionary approval(s). The appiications for the discretionary approvai(s)
shall be separately considered and shall be subject to the procedures specified in
the applicable Zoning Code section. The appropriate decision-making body shall
act on all discretionary permits, but not the reasonable accommodation request.

9.29.070 Findings for requests.

A

In making a determination to grant a requested accommodation, the City Planner
shall make all of the following findings for requests:

1. That the housing, which is the subject of the request for reasonable
accommodation, will be used by people with disabilities protected under fair
housing laws.

2. Thatthe accommodation is necessary to afford people with disabilities an equal
opportunity to use and enjoy the dwelling;

3. That the requested accommodation will not require a fundamental alteration to
zoning laws, rules, policies, practices and procedures; and

4. That the requested accommodation will not impose an undue financial or
administrative burden on the City.

None of the findings of this Section are intended to supersede any other findings
which might also be required for a discretionary permit that is reviewed
concurrently with the request for accommodation.

9.29.080 Finality of decision.

A

For requests for reasonable accommodations not involving related land use
permits, a decision by the City Planner shall become final ten (10) calendar days
after the date of initial decision.

-5- Ord. No.386



B. For requests for reasonable accommodations involving related land use permits,
a decision by the City Planner shall become final (10) calendar days after the date
of decision on the related land use permit or the date of denial of the provisional
permit, whichever is iater.

C. In the event that the last date of appeal falls on a weekend, holiday or when City
offices are closed, the next date such offices are open for business shall be the
last date of appeal.

9.29.090 Appeal Procedure

A. Within ten (10) days of the date of the City Planner’s written decision, an applicant
may appeal an adverse decision. Appeals from the adverse decision shall be made
in writing.

B. If an individual needs assistance in filing an appeal on an adverse decision, the
City will provide assistance to ensure that the appeal process is accessible.

C. All appeals shall contain a statement of the grounds for the appeal. Any information
identified by an applicant as confidential shall be retained in a manner so as to
respect the privacy rights of the applicant and shall not be made available for public
inspection.

D. Appeals shall be heard by the City Manager within thirty days of filing an appeal.
The City Manager shall issue a written decision within ten days of the hearing and
the decision shall be final.

E. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an aggrieved individual from seeking any
other state or federal remedy available.

SECTION 3. CEQA. This Ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to the
common sense exemption set forth in Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA only
applies to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the
activity will have a significant effect, the activity is not subject to CEQA. This Ordinance
enacts a procedure as required by federal and state law and does not change the density,
intensity, or allowed uses or would have other effects on the environment. The changes
are not for any specific project and therefore will not impact any environmental resource
of hazardous or critical concern, will not create cumulative impacts, or impacts to scenic
highways, hazardous waste sites, or historical resources. Because this is an ordinance
pertaining to citywide development standards there will not be any significant effects on
the environment due to unusual circumstances. As such, staff is directed to file a Notice
of Exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines sections 15061(b)(3).

SECTION 4. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional,

it is the intent of the City Council that such portion of this Ordinance be severable from
the remainder and that the remainder be given full force and effect.

-6- Ord. No.386



SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance.
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2023.

Richard G. Barakat
Mayor

ATTEST:

Diane Jensen
City Clerk

-7- Ord. No.386



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) §.
CITY OF BRADBURY )

I, Diane Jensen, City Clerk of the City of Bradbury, do hereby certify that the
foregoing ordinance, being Ordinance No. 386, was duly passed by the City Council of
the City of Bradbury, signed by the Mayor of said City, and attested by the City Clerk, all
at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 17th day of October, 2023, that it was
duly posted and that the same was passed and adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Diane Jensen
City Clerk
City of Bradbury

-8- Ord. No.386



Richard G. Barakat, Mayor (District 3]
Richard T. Hale, Jr. Mayor Pro Tem (District 1)
Elizabeth Bruny, Council Member (District 5)
Bruce Lathrop, Councii Member (District 4}
Monte Lewis, Council Member (District 2)

City of Bradbury
Agenda Report

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: Kevin Kearney, City Manager
DATE: October 17, 2023

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 387 — ADOPTION

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING CHAPTER 9.30 OF THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO DENSITY BONUS
LAWS AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT
TO THE COMMON SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES
SECTION 15061(b)(3)

Attachment: Ordinance No. 387

SUMMARY

State law includes provisions known as the Density Bonus Law (“DBL”) which provides
incentives for developers to provide affordable housing. Local governments are required
to adopt an ordinance regarding implementation of this law. As the City had no current
DBL provisions and a conceptual plan review application had been received for a
density bonus project, staff prepared both Urgency Ordinance No. 385U that was
adopted at the September 19, 2023, regular meeting and which took effect immediately,
and the regular Ordinance No. 387 that was introduced after the public hearing at the
September 19, 2023, regular meeting. It is recommended that the City Council waive
the reading in full, authorize the reading by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 387.

BACKGROUND

Government Code sections 65915 through 65918 provide for density bonuses and other
incentives and waivers of development standards when a developer builds a housing
project and provides a minimum percentage of affordable housing. The DBL also sets
the maximum amount of parking that can be required for a project.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2E



Ordinance No. 387 — Adoption Density Bonus
October 17, 2023 Page 2 of 2

An incentive or waiver is basically a reduction in site development standards, zoning
code requirements, or architectural design requirements that are in excess of the
minimum building standards and that result in identifiable and actual cost reductions.
Incentives and waivers cannot reduce Building Codes and Health and Safety standards.
A city is required to grant a requested incentive or waiver unless it makes specified
findings based on substantial evidence. There is no limit to the number of waivers a
developer may be request. The density and incentives are based upon the amount of
affordable housing that is provided.

Since the DBL was first adopted by the State in 1982, it has been amended more than
20 times. These frequent amendments make it difficult for a city to maintain a legally
compliant local ordinance. Accordingly, Ordinance No. 387 has been drafted to
incorporate the DBL by reference as it may be amended from time to time, so the City
can adopt implementing regulations and not reiterate a very lengthy law, and not amend
the City code each time the State amends the DBL.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their August 23, 2023, regular
meeting, and adopted Resolution No. PC 23-312, to recommend that the City Council
adopt Ordinance No. 387.

The City Council held a public hearing at the September 19, 2023, regular meeting and
introduced Ordinance No. 387.

There will be no financial cost to the City as the Ordinance implements what the City is
already required to do by State law.

CEQA

There is a common sense exemption to CEQA where it can be seen with certainty that
the project will not have a significant effect on the environment. As the Ordinance gives
no greater development rights than what is provided for under State law, it will not
create any significant effects on the environment and a notice of exemption should be
filed under CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3).

RECOMMENDATION AND CiTY COUNCIi. ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council waive the reading in full, authorize the reading
by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 387:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING CHAPTER 9.30 OF THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO DENSITY BONUS
LAWS AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT
TO THE COMMON SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES
SECTION 15061(b)(3)

Attachment
Ordinance No. 387



ATTACHMENT

ORDINANCE NO. 387

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING
CHAPTER 9.30 OF THE BRADBURY MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATING TO DENSITY BONUS LAWS AND
FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT
PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE EXEMPTION
OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15061 (b)(3)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2E



ORDINANCE NO. 387

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING CHAPTER 9.30 OF THE BRADBURY MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATING TO DENSITY BONUS LAWS AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE
TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA
GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3)

WHEREAS, the City is in the process of adopting its 6! Cycle Housing Eiement
for the 2021-2029 period; and

WHEREAS, although the Housing Element has not yet been adopted, the City has
received comments from the Department of Housing and Community Development
(*HCD?”) on the drafts that have been presented; and

WHEREAS, one of HCD’s comments on the City’s 6% Cycle Housing Element
related to the need for the City to adopt an ordinance to implement the State Density
Bonus Law (“DBL”); and

WHEREAS, given the complexity of the DBL and the frequency with which it is
amended, the City desires to adopt the law by reference with local implementation
procedures; and

WHEREAS, on August 23, 2023 the Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing on proposed Ordinance No. 387 at which time it considered all evidence
presented, both written and oral; and

WHEREAS, after the close of the public hearing the Planning Commission adopted
Resolution No. PC 23-312 recommending that the City Council adopt the proposed
Ordinance No. 387; and

WHEREAS, on [DATE], the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on
proposed Ordinance No. 387 at which time it considered all evidence presented, both
written and oral;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 30 is hereby added to the Bradbury Development Code (Title IX of
the Bradbury Municipal Code) to read as follows:

CHAPTER 30. - DENSITY BONUS
Sec. 9.30.010. — Purpose.

The purpose of this Chapter is to implement the requirements of the Density
Bonus Law set forth at Government Code section 65915 ef seq.



Sec. 9.30.020. — Adoption by reference.

The state Density Bonus Law, set forth at Chapter 4.3 of the Planning and
Zoning law of California and found at Government Code sections 65915 through
65918, as the same may be amended from time to time, is hereby adopted by
reference as the City of Bradbury’s Density Bonus provisions and shall be
implemented in accordance with this Chapter.

Sec. 9.30.030. — Applicability.

This Chapter shall apply to any housing development that is entitled to
receive a density bonus pursuant to the state Density Bonus Law.

Sec. 9.30.040. — Procedures.

(@)  Application submittal. An application for a density bonus, including an
incentive or concession and waiver, shall be filed concurrently with an application
for a housing development and shall be processed concurrently.

(b)  Application contents. An application for a density bonus shall include the
following information:

(1) The number of density bonus units being requested:;

(2) A reduced parking ratio request pursuant to Government Code
section 65915(p);

(3)  An incentive(s) or concession(s) request pursuant to Government
Code section 65915(d) that results in identifiable and actual cost reductions to
provide for the affordable housing;

(4) A waiver(s) or reductions of development standard(s) request
pursuant to Government Code section 65915(e) that would have the effect of
physically precluding the construction of the housing development at the densities
or with the allowed incentive(s) or concession(s).

(c) If an application for a density bonus is incomplete, the applicant shall be
timely notified of such incompleteness in accordance with the provisions of
applicable law.

(d)  If a proposed housing development would be inconsistent with the City’s
Development Code or the state Density Bonus Law, the applicant shall be provided
notice of such inconsistency in accordance with the Housing Accountability Act,
Government Code section 65589.5.

(e)  Adensity bonus application shall be approved or denied in conjunction with

the housing development application by the body approving such application within
the time frames required for approval of such development.

-2- Ord. No. 387



Sec. 9.30.050. — Requirements.

(@)  The applicant for a density bonus shall enter into a regulatory agreement
with the City in a form to be approved by the City Attorney and said agreement
shall be recorded against the property. The regulatory agreement shall be
approved by the approval authority on the underlying project. If an appeal is taken
of the project, then the regulatory agreement shall be approved by the decision
maker on appeal.

(b)  The applicant shall be required to pay the City’s costs for any third-party
consultants required to assist the City in drafting a regulatory agreement,
developing guidelines, verifying the eligibility of owners or tenants of the affordable
units, or any other matter relating to the density bonus.

(¢)  The required affordable dwelling units shall be constructed concurrently
with market-rate units unless both the final decision-making authority of the City
and the developer agree within the affordable housing agreement to an alternative
schedule for development.

(d)  The exterior design and construction of the affordable dwelling units shall
be consistent with the exterior design and construction of the total project
development and shall be consistent with any affordable residential development
standards that may be prepared by the City.

(1)  The affordable units shall be similar in size and number of bedrooms
to the market-rate units. If the development project includes a range of unit sizes,
then the affordable units shall provide a range of unit sizes in proportion to the
market-rate units.

(2)  If the project includes a subdivision, the lots with affordable units
shall be of similar size to the lots with market rate units. If the development project
includes a range of lot sizes, the lots with affordable units shall be no smaller than
the smallest lots with market-rate units.

(e)  The affordabie units shail have the same amenities as the market rate units,
including the same access to and enjoyment of common open space, parking,
storage, and other facilities in the residential development, provided at an
affordable rent or at affordable ownership cost specified by Health and Safety
Code section 50052.5 and California Code of Regulations Title 25, Section 6910
— 6924, as the same may be amended from time to time. Developers are strictly
prohibited from discriminating against tenants or owners of affordable units in
granting access to and full enjoyment of any community amenities available to
other tenants or owners outside of their individual units.

(f) If the development project is for units that will be sold, then the affordable
dwelling units shall also be for sale units. The regulatory agreement may make
provisions for rental of the units for the same level of affordability that qualified the

-3- Ord. No. 387



applicant for the density bonus if the unit is not sold within a period of time specified
in the agreement.

SECTION 2. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect on the thirty-first day after
passage. '

SECTION 3. CEQA. This Ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to the
common sense exemption set forth in Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA only
applies to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the
activity will have a significant effect, the activity is not subject to CEQA. This Ordinance
enacts a procedure as required by state law and does not change the density, intensity,
or allowed uses or would have other effects on the environment. The changes are not
for any specific project and therefore will not impact any environmental resource of
hazardous or critical concern, will not create cumulative impacts, or impacts to scenic
highways, hazardous waste sites, or historical resources. This Ordinance simply
implements state law. As such, staff is directed to file a Notice of Exemption pursuant to
CEQA Guidelines sections 15061(b)(3).

SECTION 4. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance is held to be
unconstitutional, it is the intent of the City Council that such portion of this Ordinance be
severable from the remainder and that the remainder be given full force and effect.

SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance.
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2023.

Richard G. Barakat
Mayor

ATTEST:

Diane Jensen
City Clerk

-4- Ord. No. 387




STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) §.
CITY OF BRADBURY )

|, Diane Jensen, City Clerk of the City of Bradbury, do hereby cettify that the
foregoing ordinance, being Ordinance No. 387, was duly passed by the City Council of
the City of Bradbury, signed by the Mayor of said City, and attested by the City Clerk, all
at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 17th day of October, 2023, that it was
duly posted and that the same was passed and adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NAYS:

ABSENT:

Diane Jensen
City Clerk
City of Bradbury

-5- Ord. No. 387



Richard G. Barakat, Mayor (District 3)

Richard T. Hale, Jr. Mayor Pro Tem (District 1)
Elizabeth Bruny, Council Member (District 5)
Bruce Lathrop, Council Member (District 4]

Monte Lewis, Council Member (District 2)

City of Bradbury
Agenda Report
TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: Kevin Kearney, City Manager
DATE: September 19, 2023

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 388 — ADOPTION

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BRADBURY MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATING TO SECONDARY LIVING QUARTERS AND FINDING
THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON
SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3),
CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15282(h), AND GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 65852.21

Attachment: Ordinance No. 388

SUMMARY

In July 2022 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 383 relating to secondary living
quarters and SB 9 units. Since then, the State legislature has again amended the laws
relating to accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units
(JADUs) and based on information issued by the Department of Housing and
Community Development (HCD), there is a need to revise the interplay between SB 9
units and ADUs. Ordinance No. 388 makes these changes. The City Council held a
public hearing at the September 19, 2023, regular meeting and introduced Ordinance
No. 388. It is recommended that the City Council waive the reading in full, authorize the
reading by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 388.

BACKGROUND

Several State statutes have amended the ADU and JADU, provisions. Ordinance No.
388 amends the City’s ADU and JADU provisions to be consistent with the State
amendments. Initially for SB 9, two units were allowed on a lot, including ADUs and

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2F



Ordinance No. 388 — Adoption Chapter 85 — Secondary Living Quarters and SB 9 Units
October 17, 2023 Page 2 of 2

JADUs. The Ordinance amends this to allow four units on an original lot or two units on
each lot after a lot split in accordance with the clarifications issued by HCD.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their August 23, 2023, regular
meeting and adopted Resolution No. PC 23-313, to recommend that the City Council
adopt Ordinance No. 388.

The City Council held a public hearing at the September 19, 2023, regular meeting and
introduced Ordinance No. 388.

There will be no additional financial cost to the City as the amendments implement what
the City is already required to do by State law.

CEQA

This Ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(h)
which provides a statutory exemption for the adoption of an ordinance regarding
accessory dwelling units to implement the provisions of Sections 65852.1 and 65852.2
of the Government Code. As the standards of Government Code Section 65852.22
relating to junior accessory dwelling units are incorporated into Government Code
65852.2, this exemption covers junior accessory dwelling units as well. Regardless of
whether the City adopts this Ordinance, accessory dwelling units and junior accessory
dwelling units must be allowed in the City in accordance with the standards set forth in
State Statute. Additionally, the provisions of SB 9 exempted an ordinance which
implemented SB 9 from CEQA. Therefore, this Ordinance is categorically exempt under
the provisions of state law as well as the common sense exemption of CEQA
Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) which provides that CEQA does not apply where it can
be seen with certainty that the project will not cause any impacts.

RECOMMENDATION AND CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council waive the reading in full, authorize the reading
by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 388:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CIiTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BRADBURY MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATING TO SECONDARY LIVING QUARTERS AND FINDING
THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE COMMON
SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3),
CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15282(h), AND GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 65852.21

Attachment
Ordinance No. 388



ATTACHMENT

ORDINANCE NO. 388

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE
BRADBURY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO
SECONDARY LIVING QUARTERS AND FINDING THE
ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO THE
COMMON SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA GUIDELINES
SECTION 15061(b)(3), CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION
15282(h), AND GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65852.21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2F



ORDINANCE NO. 388

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRADBURY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BRADBURY
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO SECONDARY LIVING
QUARTERS AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT
PURSUANT TO THE COMMON SENSE EXEMPTION OF CEQA
GUIDELINES SECTION 15061(b)(3), CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION
15282(h), AND GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65852.21

WHEREAS, in a continued effort to provide affordable housing the State
Legislature has continued to make amendments to state law relating to accessory
dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units; and

WHEREAS, since the time that the City adopted Ordinance No. 383 in July
2022 implementing SB 9, clarifications have been made as to the interpretation of
the law;

WHEREAS, the City desires to update the Development Code to comply with
these laws and clarifications; and

WHEREAS, on August 23, 2023, the Planning Commission of the City of
Bradbury, California, held a duly noticed public hearing on this proposed Ordinance
and after the close of the public hearing the Planning Commission adopted
Resolution No. PC 23-313 recommending that the City Council adopt this
Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, on September 19, 2023, the City Council of the City of Bradbury,
California held a duly noticed public hearing to consider adoption of this Ordinance,
at which time it considered all evidence presented, both written and oral;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Findings. The City Councii hereby makes the foliowing findings regarding
the prohibition of accessory dwelling units in certain locations within the City of Bradbury:

A. The majority of the City of Bradbury is located in a very high fire hazard
severity zone (VHFHSZ);

B. Since 1953 there have been four separate wildfires that have burned
through Bradbury and the neighboring communities;

C. The 2019 mid-term Housing Element recognized that opportunities for
second unit in-fill development could be impacted by natural hazards such as wildfires
that constrain density;

D. According to the Los Angeles County Fire Code which has been adopted
by reference by the City of Bradbury, and as pointed out in the Dudek Memorandum, the



minimum road width needed for fire access is 20-feet unobstructed paved width based
on the standard width of fire engines and their ability to pass one another;

E. The Dudek Memorandum also concludes among other things that the four-
foot setback requirements and the inability to require fire sprinklers would likely have
negative fire related impacts in Bradbury and recommends that fire sprinklers should be
required whenever possible;

F. There are numerous roads within the City that are less than 20 feet in width
which impedes access of fire apparatus;

G. Residents living on narrow roads within the City of Bradbury have been
informed by the Los Angeles County Fire Department that if there is a fire, the Department
may not be able to provide service;

H. Government Code § 51182 and Public Resources Code § 4291 provide that
when property is within a very high fire hazard severity zone, there should be 100 feet of
defensible space maintained for each side and from the front and rear of the structure,
but not beyond the property line;

l. The majority of the City of Bradbury is zoned R-20,000, A-1, A-2, or A-5 with
rear and side yard setbacks of 15 feet in the R-20,000 zone and 25 feet in the three
Agricultural (“A”) zones, meaning that accessory living quarters and other structures
cannot be located closer than 30 feet to each other in these areas:;

J. According to the Southern California Association of Governments’ (SCAG)
community profile, only 4.5% of the housing stock in Bradbury was built after 2010, when
residential sprinkler systems became a requirement;

K. Since the time that the Governor signed the new ADU/JADU legislation into
law in 2019, there have been dozens of wildfires in California which have burned tens of
thousands of acres, damaged or destroyed hundreds of homes and other structures,
caused the death of many people, and resulted in injuries to many more;

L. On August 18, 2020, the internationai City/County Management
Association released a document titled “21t Century — Fire and Emergency Services”
which contained the recommendation to “Embrace the use of fire sprinkler technology in
all buildings through the rapid adoption of codes and ordinances at the federal, state, and
local government levels to dramatically reduce the incidence of deadly and costly fires”;

M. On August 18, 2020, ABC News reported that there were at least 28
wildfires burning in California alone;

N. By August 19, 2020, the Governor declared a State of Emergency as more
than 350 wildfires burned throughout California, many due to lightning strikes, and a
request was made for 375 fire engines from out-of-state;

0. In 2021 California faced unprecedented fire conditions according to Cal
Fire. By the end of 2021, there had been over 8,800 fires which destroyed or damaged

9. Ord. No. 388



at least 3,600 structures. In 2022, there were more than an additional 7,600 fires with nine
deaths and as of July 2023, there have already been over 3,000 wildfires;

P. In August 2022 the City, the Los Angeles County Fire Department, and the
U.S. Forest Service signed off on a Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) which
was incorporated into the City’s Hazard Mitigation Plan. The CWPP contains the following
information:

1. Not counting fires under 10 acres; 93 fires have burned within five
miles of the City since the beginning of data recording and two of the fires have been
within the northern portion of the City;

2. It is estimated there will be a wildland fire within five miles of the City
on average of every 1.25 years;

3. Challenges with development in wildfire urban interface areas
inciude narrow roads, iong driveways, dead-end roads, steep siopes, and dense
vegetation, which can hinder emergency response and evacuation from these areas. All
of these factors are present in the City;

4. Bradbury presents unique challenges for evacuation due to the
speed and intensity at which wildfires occur as well as the high variability in transportation
systems in the City;

5. The majority of the structures in the City were developed before the
adoption of building and fire codes that required noncombustible roofing and building
materials, adequate fire department access, and which meet water supply standards
which puts these structures at greater risk and limits the ability to provide adequate
structure protections;

6. There are two primary concerns for structure ignition: burning
embers and radiant/convective heat. In older communities where structures do not
include ignition resistant improvements, radiant heat from burning vegetation and
adjacent structures is a primary concern. Areas with buildings closer together are at
greater risk of burning due to radiant heat. Proximity of structures also limits the ability to
maintain 30 feet of defensible space which inhibits firefighters from being able to safely
maneuver around structures to provide protection.

Q. State of Emergencies have become a yearly occurrence due to wildfires;

R. Because the accessory dwelling unit law does not allow the City to require
sprinklers in units where the main house was not required to install sprinklers, the City
cannot require sprinklers to be installed in most of the accessory dwelling units that could
be built in the City. However, state law allows the City to designate areas within the
jurisdiction where accessory dwelling units may be permitted based on the impacts on
traffic flow and public safety;

S. As evidenced above, the location of the City in a very high fire hazard
severity zone, the inability to require sufficient separation between buildings, the inability

-3~ Ord. No. 388



to require sprinklers in a majority of accessory dwelling units that could be built, and the
narrow streets which impede fire personnei access and evacuation justify the prohibition
of accessory dwelling units to be built as of right in those areas of the City in the very high
fire hazard severity zone;

T. The City Council recognizes the need for additional housing opportunities
in the City, even in the very high fire hazard severity zone, and for that reason is providing
for the opportunity for certain accessory dwelling units of up to 1,000 square feet as
defined herein to be built in this area with reduced procedural requirements, while still
imposing setbacks for adequate building separation and requiring fire sprinklers;

u. The City Council also recognizes that Bradbury has traditionally allowed the
development of a variety of accessory living quarters and wishes to continue to allow such
development, subject to review by the City’s Planning Department, and the City’s
Planning Commission;

V.
safety.

The provisions set forth in this Ordinance are necessary for the public

SECTION 2. Subsections 9.85.020(a) and (b) of the Bradbury Municipal Code are
amended to read as follows; all other subsections remain the same:

Sec. 9.85.020. — Permitted locations/numbers.

(@  Main houses, Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs), Enhanced ADUs (EADUSs), Junior
Accessory Dwelling Units (JADUSs), and SB 9 units shall be allowed in the areas of
the City which are not in the Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone as provided for

below:
Single Lot SB 9—Legacy Lot New SB 9 Lot
R-7,500 | Main house (1,500 sf | Main house (1,500 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per lot -
min) -and - limited to 800 sf each

- and - ADU or SB 9 unit (1,000
ADU (1,000 sf) 1 sf) !
-and- -and -

SB 9 unit (1,000 sf)
-and -
JADU (500 sf)

JADU (500 sf)

R-20,000

Main house (1,850 sf

Main house (1,850 sf min)

2 SB 9 units per lot -

min) -and - limited to 800 sf each
-and - ADU or SB 9 unit (1,000

ADU (1,000sf) ' or sf) !

EADU (1,200 sf) -Or -

-and- EADU (1,200 sf)

SB 9 unit (1,000 sf) ' | -and -

-and -
JADU (500 sf)

JADU (500 sf)

Ord. No. 388




min)

-and -

ADU (1,000 sf)
-and -

SB 9 unit (1,000 sf)
-and-

JADU (500 sf)

-and -

ADU or SB 9 unit (1,000
sf)

-and -

JADU (500 sf)

A-1 Main house (2,250 sf | Main house (2,250 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per lot -
min) -and - limited to 800 sf each
-and - ADU or SB 9 unit (1,000
ADU (1,000 sf) ! sf) 1
-and — -and -
SB 9 unit (1,000 sf) ' | JADU (500 sf)
-and-
JADU (500 sf)
A-2 Main house (2,500 sf | Main house (2,500 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per lot -
min) -and - limited to 800 sf each
-and - ADU or SB 9 unit (1,000
ADU (1,000 sf) ! sf) !
-and - -and -
SB 9 unit (1,000 sf) ' | JADU (500 sf)
-and-
JADU (500 sf)
A-5 Main house (2,500 sf | Main house (2,500 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per lot -

limited to 800 sf each

! Where there is a JADU and a detached ADU or SB 9 unit, the ADU or SB 9 unit shall be limited
to 800 square feet in size.

(b)  Main houses, Fire Zone ADUs (FZADUs), JADUs, and SB 9 units shall be allowed
in the Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone as provided for below:

Single Lot SB 9—Legacy Lot New SB 9 Lot
R-7,500 | Main house (1,500 sf min) | Main house (1,500 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per
-and - -and - lot - limited to
FZADU (1,000 sf) 1 FZADU or SB 9 unit 800 sf each
-and — (1,000 sf) 1
SB 9 Unit (1,000 sf) ! -and -
-and- JADU (500 sf)
JADU (500 sf)
R-20,000 | Main house (1,850 sf min) | Main house (1,850 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per
-and - -and - lot - limited to
FZADU (1,000 sf) 'or FZADU or SB 9 unit 800 sf each
EADU (1,200 sf) (1,000 sf) !
-and — or EADU (1,200 sf)
SB 9 unit (1,000 sf) -and -
-and- JADU (500 sf)
JADU (500 sf)
-5~ Ord. No. 388



-and -

FZADU (1,000 sf)
-and -

SB 9 unit (1,000 sf)
-and-

JADU (500 sf)

-and -

FZADU or SB 9 unit
(1,000 sf) *

-and -

JADU (500 sf)

A-1 Main house (2,250 sf min) | Main house (2,250 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per
-and - -and - lot - limited to
FZADU (1,000 sf) FZADU or SB 9 unit 800 sf each
-and - (1,000 sH) 1
SB 9 unit (1,000 sf) -and -
-and- JADU (500 sf)
JADU (500 sf)

A-2 Main house (2,500 sf min) | Main house (2,500 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per
-and - -and - lot - limited to
FZADU (1,000 sf) FZADU or SB 9 unit 800 sf each
-and - (1,000 sf) !
SB 9 unit (1,000 sf) -and -
-and- JADU (500 sf)
JADU (500 sf)

A-5 Main house (2,500 sf min) | Main house (2,500 sf min) | 2 SB 9 units per

lot - limited to
800 sf each

' Where there is a JADU and a detached FZADU or SB 9 unit, the ADU or SB 9 unit shall be
limited to 800 square feet in size.

SECTION 3. Articles Il and Il of Chapter 85 of the Bradbury Development Code are
hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE . — ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND JUNIOR ACCESSORY
DWELLING UNITS

Sec. 9.85.100. — Purpose.

The purpose of this article is to implement the requirements for the establishment of
accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units as required by California
Government Code §§ 65852.2, 65852.22, and 65852.23.

Sec. 9.85.110. — Applications.

(@)

Applications for accessory dwelling units (ADUs), fire zone accessory dwelling
units (FZADUs) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs) shall be ministerially
approved or denied within 60 days of receipt of a complete application and shall
be approved if they meet the requirements of this chapter. Applications for
Enhanced accessory dwelling units (EADUs) shall not be subject to this 60-day
requirement.

(1) If the application is submitted in conjunction with an application for a new

primary single-family unit, the application for the ADU, FZADU or JADU shall not
be acted upon until the application for the new primary single-family unit is

-6- Ord. No. 388



(d)

(e)

approved, but thereafter shall be ministerially approved if it meets all requirements
within 60 days.

(2)  The city shall grant a delay if re

All applications for ADUs, FZADUs, EADUSs, and/or JADUs shall be accompanied
by the applicable application fee.

ADUs, FZADUs, EADUs and JADUs shall be subject to applicable inspections and
permit fees.

Applications for EADUs shall be processed in accordance with Article HI of this
chapter and subject to the rules and regulations set forth therein.

If an application for a detached ADU or FZADU requires demolition of a detached
garage, the application shall be submitted with the demolition application and the
two applications shall be reviewed at the same time. If the ADU or FZADU is
approved, the permits shall be issued at the same time.

Sec. 9.85.115. — Denial.

(@)

(b)

(c)

If the City denies an application for an ADU, FZADU, or JADU, the City shall return
a full set of comments to the applicant with a list of items that are defective or
deficient and a description of how the application can be remedied. The comments
must be in writing and returned to the applicant within 60 days of receipt of a
complete application.

No application shall be denied due to the need to correct a nonconforming zoning
condition, building code violation, or due to unpermitted structures, unless those
conditions present a threat to the public health and safety and are affected by the
construction of the ADU, FZADU, or JADU.

No application shall be denied for an ADU that was constructed prior to January 1,
2018, based on either of the foliowing, unless the City makes a finding that
correcting the violation is necessary to protect the heaith and safety of the pubiic
or of the occupants of the structure:

(1)  The ADU is in violation of building standards pursuant to Article 1 of Chapter
5 of part 1.5 of Division 13 of the Health and Safety Code; or

(2) The ADU does not comply with section 65852.2 or any local ordinance
regulating ADUs.

This subsection shall not apply to a building that is deemed substandard pursuant
to Health and Safety Code section 17920.3.

Sec. 9.85.120. — Allowed zones/density.

(a)

An ADU may be constructed in any zone on a lot which contains a legally existing

-7- Ord. No. 388



(b)

or proposed primary single-family dwelling unit, provided that no ADUs shall be
allowed in the very high fire hazard severity zone. However, a FZADU and EADU
may be built in the very high fire hazard severity zone in compliance with Article 1li
of this chapter.

ADUs of any type shall not count in determining density or lot coverage and are
considered a residential use consistent with the existing general plan and zoning
designation for the lot.

Sec. 9.85.130. — Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) — Development standards/
requirements.

For purposes of this section, the term "ADU" shall include a "FZADU".

(@)

(b)

(©

Type of building. An attached or detached ADU shall be a permanent structure on
a permanent foundation with permanent provisions for living, sleeping, food
preparation, sanitation, and bathing. A manufactured home as defined in the
California Health and Safety Code § 18007 shall qualify.

Height. The height of an ADU shall as follows:

(1) A height of 18 feet for a detached accessory dwelling unit on a lot with an
existing or proposed single family or multifamily dwelling unit;

(2) A height of 18 feet for a detached accessory dwelling unit on a lot with an
existing or proposed single family or multifamily dwelling unit that is within 2 mile
walking distance of a major transit stop or a high-quality transit corridor. An
additional 2 feet shall be allowed if required to accommodate a roof pitch on the
accessory dwelling unit that is aligned with the roof pitch of the primary dwelling
unit.

(3) A height of 18 feet for a detached accessory dwelling unit on a lot with an
existing or proposed multifamily, multistory dwelling.

(4) A height of 25 feet or the height limit of the applicable zone that applies to
the primary dwelling, whichever is lower, for an accessory dwelling unit that is

attached to a primary dwelling unit or built above an existing garage. In no event
shall the accessory dwelling unit exceed 2 stories;

(5)  An ADU converted from previously existing permitted space which already
exists above the permitted ground fioor area or garage — to the height aiready
existing if greater than the height set forth in subsections (b)(1) — (4), above.

Size.

(1)  Maximum size — the square footage of an ADU shall not exceed that set
forth in Section 9.85.020.

2 Minimum size —the square footage of an ADU shall not be less than 150 square feet.

8- Ord. No. 388



(d)

(e)

(f)

Application of underlying development standards.

(1)  The objective development standards of the underlying zone shall apply,
except as may be specified herein.

(2) If application of any development standard of the underlying zone or this
chapter prevents the construction of an ADU that meets the height requirements
specified in subsection (b), such development standard shall be waived to the
extent needed to allow an 800 square foot ADU. The waiver of standards does not
apply to the requirement for minimum four-foot side and rear yard setbacks.

Setbacks.

(1)  Attached and detached ADUs shall be located behind the front yard setback
line of the primary unit. This requirement shall be waived if necessary to permit an
800 square foot ADU with four-foot side and rear yard setbacks in compliance with
all other development standards.

(2) The maximum side and rear yard setback requirements for an ADU,
including an ADU added in an already existing and permitted space above a
garage or other floor area shall be four feet. This does not prevent the applicant
from providing a larger setback. For hillside lots with an average slope of at least
ten percent, the four-foot setbacks shall be measured from the edge of the building
pad and the edge of any top or toe of a slope.

(3)  The setback requirements in subsections (5)a. and b. and above shall not
apply if the ADU is being converted from a legally existing accessory structure,
including a garage, or is being constructed in the same location and to the same
dimensions as a legally existing accessory structure, including a garage.

(4)  ADUs shall be required to comply with the requirements of the Building
Code as set forth in Title XVII of the Bradbury Municipal Code.

Parking.
(M Parking shall be required at the rate of one space for each ADU.

(2)  Parking spaces for an ADU may be provided through tandem parking on a
legally existing driveway; provided, that such parking does not encroach into the
public right-of-way or a private street.

(3)  Parking spaces for ADUs may be provided in the paved portions of setback
areas; provided, that the amount of paving does not exceed the total amount of
paving and hardscaped areas that are otherwise allowed by this title at the time
the ADU is approved.

(4)  When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is converted into an

ADU, or is demolished to accommodate the construction of an ADU, such parking
spaces need not be replaced.

-9- Ord. No. 388



(¢)]

(h)

(6)  Tandem parking and parking in setback areas shall not be allowed if the
City Manager makes specific findings that such parking is not feasible based upon
specific site or regional topographical, or fire and life safety conditions.

(6) Notwithstanding any other provision of this subsection (f), no additional
parking shall be required for the ADU if any of the following conditions apply:

a. The ADU is located within one-half mile walking distance of a public
transit stop;

b. The ADU is located within an architecturally and historically
significant historic district;

C. The ADU is part of a legally existing primary unit or a legally existing
accessory structure;

d. When on-street parking permits are required, but not offered to the
occupant of the ADU; or

e. When there is a car share vehicle located within one block of the ADU; or

f. When a permit application for an accessory dwelling unit is submitted
with a permit application to create a new single- or multi-family dwelling on
the same lot, provided the ADU or parcel satisfies any other criteria listed in
this paragraph.

Design.

(1) The ADU shall be the exact same color as the primary unit.

(2)  The ADU shall have the exact same roof pitch as the primary unit.
(3)  The ADU shall have a separate entrance from the primary unit.
Utilities — Connections, fees, and capacity charges.

(1) For an ADU contained within a legally existing primary unit, or a legally
existing accessory structure meeting the requirements of Section 9.85.140(a)(1)
below, the City shall not require the installation of a new or separate utility
connection between the ADU and the utility or impose a connection fee or capacity
charge. Such requirement and charges may be imposed when the ADU is being
constructed in conjunction with a proposed new primary unit.

(2)  Forall ADUs other than those described in subsection (h)(1) above, the City
shall require a new or separate utility connection between the ADU and the utility
and shall charge a connection fee or capacity charge that is proportionate to the
burden of the proposed ADU based on the size or number of drainage fixture unit
(DFU) values upon the water or sewer system.

-10- Ord. No. 388



Impact fees.

(1) No impact fee shall be imposed on any ADU of up to 750 square feet in
size.

(2)  Notwithstanding any fee resolution to the contrary, for ADUs larger than 750
square feet, impact fees shall be charged proportionately in relation to the square
footage of the primary unit.

(3)  Ali appiicabie pubiic service and recreation impact fees shall be paid prior
to occupancy in accordance with California Government Code §§ 66000 et seq.
and 66012 et seq.

(4)  For purposes of this section, "impact fee" shall have the meaning set forth
in California Government Code § 65852.2(f).

Sec. 9.85.135. — Fire Sprinklers

(@)

(b)

(c)

Fire sprinklers shall be required in the ADU if they were/are required in the primary
unit at the time of construction.

Fire sprinklers shall be required in a FZADU regardless of whether they were
required in the primary unit.

The construction of an ADU or FZADU shall not trigger a requirement for sprinklers
to be installed in the primary unit.

Sec. 9.85.140. — Mandatory approvals.

(a)

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the City shall ministerially
approve an application for any one of the following categories of ADUs and/or
JADUs within a residential zone, unless such ADU is in the very high fire hazard
severity zone.

(1)  An ADU and a JADU within the existing or proposed space of the primary
unit or accessory structure, subject to the following requirements:

a. An ADU or JADU shall have exterior access separate from the legally
existing or proposed primary unit.

b. An expansion of up to 150 square feet shall be allowed for a legally
existing accessory structure that is to be converted to an ADU, solely for the
purpose of accommodating separate ingress and egress.

C. The side and rear yard setbacks shall be sufficient for fire and safety.

d. The JADU shall comply with the requirements of Sections 9.85.150
and 9.85.160 below.

-11- Ord. No. 388



(b)

(2)  One detached ADU that will have at least four-foot side and rear yard
setbacks on a legally existing lot with a legally existing or proposed primary unit,
provided that the ADU shall not be more than 800 square feet and shall not exceed
the height requirements set forth in Section 9.85.130(b). The ADU may be
combined with a JADU so long as it complies with all the requirements of
Sections 9.85.150 and 9.85.160 below.

(3) On a lot with a legally existing multifamily dwelling structure, up to 25
percent of the total multifamily dwelling units, but no less than one ADU or JADU,
shall be allowed within the portions of the legally existing structure that are not
used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms,
passageways, attics, basements, or garages, provided that each dwelling unit
complies with State building standards for dwellings.

(4)  On a lot with a legally existing or proposed multifamily dwelling structure,
there may be up to two detached ADUs, provided that neither unit exceeds the
height requirements set forth in Section 9.85.130(b) and that both ADUs have at
least four-foot side and rear yard setbacks. For those ADUs and JADUs that
require mandatory approval, the City shall not require the correction of legal,
nonconforming zoning conditions.

Any ADU created under this Section 9.85.140 shall not be rented for a period of

less than 30 days.

Sec. 9.85.150. — Junior accessory dwelling units -~ development standards/
requirements.

(@)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

One JADU shall be allowed on single-family residentially zoned lots in conjunction
with a legally existing or proposed primary single-family unit, including in an
attached garage. A JADU may be allowed on the same lot as a detached ADU
where the detached ADU is no larger than 800 square feet and does not exceed
the height requirements set forth in Section 9.85.130(b).

The JADU shall be required to contain at least an efficiency kitchen which includes
cooking appliances and a food preparation counter and storage cabinets that are
of reasonable size in relation to the size of the JADU.

The JADU shall be required to have a separate entrance from the primary unit.

The JADU may, but is not required to, include separate sanitation facilities. If
separate sanitation facilities are not provided, the JADU shall share sanitation
facilities with the primary single-family unit and shall have direct access to the
primary unit from the interior of the JADU.

Parking.
(1)  No additional parking shall be required for a JADU.
(2)  Ifagarage is converted to develop a JADU, replacement parking shall be required.

-12- Ord. No. 388



®
(@

(h)

(i)

A JADU shall be required to comply with applicable Building Code standards.

The owner of the property on which a JADU is constructed shall record with the
County Recorder of Los Angeles County, a deed restriction which shall run with
the land and a copy of the recorded deed restriction shali be filed with the City after
recordation. The deed restriction shall provide for the following:

(1) A prohibition on the sale of the JADU separate from the sale of the primary unit;
(2) A prohibition on the JADU being iarger than 500 square feet;

(3) A prohibition on renting either the primary unit or the junior accessory
dwelling unit for less than 30 consecutive, calendar days;

(4) A restriction that the owner resides in either the primary unit or the JADU,
notwithstanding the following:

a. The owner may rent both the primary unit and the JADU to one party
with a restriction in the lease that such party may not further sublease any
unit or portion thereof; and

b. This restriction shall not apply if the owner of the primary single-family
unit is a governmental agency, land trust, or housing organization; and

C. A statement that the deed restrictions may be enforced against future
purchasers.

For the purposes of applying any fire or life protection ordinance or regulation, or
providing service water, sewer, or power, including a connection fee, a JADU shall
not be considered a separate or new dwelling unit.

The City shall not require the correction of legal, nonconforming zoning conditions
for approval of a JADU.

Sec. 9.85.160. — Regulations — accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and junior
accessory dwelling units (JADUs).

All provisions set forth herein relating to ADUs shall also apply to FZADUs and EADUs.

(a)

(b)

Sales. ADUs and JADUs cannot be sold separately from the primary unit, except
to the extent the sale meets the requirements of Government Code section
65852.26 with regard to a qualified nonprofit corporation.

Rental.

(1)  Short-term rentals of the ADU and JADU are prohibited.

(2) The ADU or JADU may be rented separate from the primary unit.

-13- Ord. No. 388



(c) Owner/occupancy.

(1) No ADU approved between January 1, 2020, and January 1, 2025, shall
have an owner-occupancy requirement. After January 1, 2025, owner-occupancy
shall be required for all new ADUs, such that the owner of the property shall occupy
either the ADU or the primary unit.

(2)  All properties on which a JADU is developed shall have an owner-
occupancy requirement in accordance with Section 9.85.150(g).

(d)  This chapter shall in no way validate any existing illegal ADU nor shall it change a
legal nonconforming unit to a conforming unit.

(e)  An application to convert an illegal and/or nonconforming ADU and/or JADU to a
legal conforming ADU or JADU shall be subject to the same standards and
requirements as for a newly proposed unit.

) Subsections (d) and (e) above shall not apply to any unpermitted accessory
dwelling unit which is subject to Government Code section 65852.23 unless the
city makes a finding that correcting the violation is necessary to protect the health
and safety of the public or occupants of the structure.

(@)  Guest houses that were previously approved and which have a valid building
permit on file shall not be affected by this chapter. However, an application to
convert a guest house to an ADU shall be subject to this chapter.

(h) Enforcement. Until January 1, 2030, the City shall issue a statement along with a
notice to correct a violation of any provision of any Building Code standard relating
to an ADU or JADU that provides substantially as follows:

You have been issued an order to correct violations or abate nuisances relating to
your accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit. If you believe that
this correction or abatement is not necessary to protect the public health and safety
you may file an application with the City Manager. If the City determines that
enforcement is not required to protect the health and safety, enforcement shall be
delayed for a period of five years from the date of the original notice.

This provision shall only apply to ADUs and JADUs built before January 1, 2020.
ARTICLE Ill. - ALTERNATE TYPES OF ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS
Sec. 9.85.200. - Fire zone accessory dwelling units.

FZADUs shall be processed in accordance with and subject to the provisions of
Sections 9.85.110 through 9.85.130, and 9.85.160 above with the following exceptions:

(@)  FZADUs shall be required to have minimum side and rear yard setbacks of 15 feet

that shall be maintained in compliance with the Fire Department's fuel modification
requirements. For hillside lots with an average slope of at least ten percent, the

-14- Ord. No. 388



15-foot setbacks shall be measured from the edge of the building pad and the edge
of any top or toe of a slope; and

(b)  FZADUs shall be required to be equipped with fire sprinklers.
Sec. 9.85.210. — Enhanced accessory dwelling units.
(@) EADUs may be allowed in the R-20,000 zone.

(b) EADUs may exceed the maximum permitted size allowed under Articie il above,
subject to the maximum square footages set forth in Section 9.85.020.

(c) Development standards.

(1) EADUs shall be required to comply with all the requirements of the
underlying zoning and all building requirements, including fire sprinklers.

(2)  EADUSs shall be required to provide one additional parking space per unit.

(3)  EADUs shall be required to comply with the procedures set forth in Chapter
34 of the Development Code for Architectural Review, Significant.

SECTION 4. Section 9.85.300(2) of the Bradbury Development Code is amended to read
as follows; all other sections remain the same:

(2)  Accessory living quarters are permitted only on residential lots which are
developed with an existing or proposed primary single-family unit. The accessory
living quarters may not be built before the primary single-family unit.

SECTION 5. Section 9.85.410(4) of the Bradbury Development Code is amended to read
as follows; all other sections remain the same:

(4)  Unless demolition or alteration is prohibited pursuant to subsection (c)
above, a housing unit may be demolished.

SECTION 6. Section 9.85.420(11) of the Bradbury Development Code is amended to
read as follows; all other sections remain the same:

(11) Height. The height of a new unit shall not exceed 18 feet unless the unit is
built in a previously existing permitted space above a permitted ground floor area
or garage.

SECTION 7. CEQA. This Ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15282(h) which provides a statutory exemption for the adoption of an ordinance
regarding accessory dwelling units to implement the provisions of Sections 65852.1 and
65852.2 of the Government Code. As the standards of Government Code Section
65852.22 relating to junior accessory dwelling units are incorporated into Government
Code 65852.2, this exemption covers junior accessory dwelling units as well. Regardless
of whether the City adopts this Ordinance, accessory dwelling units and junior accessory

-15- Ord. No. 388



dwelling units must be allowed in the City in accordance with the standards set forth in
State Statute. Additionally, the provisions of SB 9 exempted an ordinance which
implemented SB 9 from CEQA. Therefore, this Ordinance is categorically exempt under
the provisions of state law as well as the common sense exemption of CEQA Guidelines
section 15061(b)(3) which provides that CEQA does not apply where it can be seen with
certainty that the project will not cause any impacts.

SECTION 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect on the thirty-first date after
passage.

SECTION 9. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portion of this ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares
that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection,
subdivision, paragraph, sentence, ciause, or phrase be declared invalid.

SECTION 10. Certification. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this ordinance and
shall cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of said City; shall
make a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting at which time
the same is passed and adopted.

SECTION 11. Transmission to HCD. The City Clerk shall send a copy of this Ordinance
to the Department of Housing and Community Development as required by State law.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2023.

Richard G. Barakat
Mayor

ATTEST:

Diane Jensen
City Clerk

-16- Ord. No. 388



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES) §.
CITY OF BRADBURY )

I, Diane Jensen, City Clerk of the City of Bradbury, do hereby certify that the
foregoing ordinance, being Ordinance No. 388, was duly passed by the City Council of
the City of Bradbury, signed by the Mayor of said City, and attested by the City Clerk, all
at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 17th day of October, 2023, that it was
duly posted and that the same was passed and adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Diane Jensen
City Clerk
City of Bradbury

-17- Ord. No. 388



Richard Barakat, Mayor (District 3)

Richard T. Hale, Mayor Pro Tem (District 1)
Monte Lewts, Council Member (District 2)
Bruce Lathrop, Council Member (District 4)
Elizabeth Bruny, Council Member (District 5)

City of Bradbury
Agenda Memo

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Kevin Kearney, City Manager

DATE: October 17, 2023

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION — SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON’S RECAP

OF WORK ON WOODLYN LANE

ATTACHMENTS: 1) Public Works Permit #3892
2) Approved Traffic Control Map

SUMMARY

This item prompts a discussion with Southern California Edison regarding their
September 7, 2023 work on Woodlyn Lane.

City Staff had been working with Southern California Edison (SCE) in February 2023 for
proposed pole replacements to take place in April 2023. Dialogue between the City and
SCE ensued and the permit was eventually finalized in April 2023 for an approximate start
date in June 2023. April 2023 was the last time the City heard from SCE on this project.

The project, pursuant to the permit, was for two power pole replacements — one on 3
Woodlyn Lane and one on 13 Woodlyn Lane. Permit conditions stipulated “absolutely no
roadway closures” and “notification shall be provided to the HOA at least one week prior
to construction”. Contact information for HOA leaders was affixed to the permit for easy
coordination in the field. The permit also stipulates that the “City of Bradbury Engineering
Department shall be notified at least twenty-four (24) hours before start of work”.

On the morning of September 7, 2023, the City started fielding complaints from Woodlyn
Lane residents regarding SCE’s unscheduled work. The initial complaints were about full
road closures and lack of advanced noticing. The City almost immediately dispatched
the City’'s Engineering Inspector. The Inspector met with SCE’s contractor and advised
them of the road closure issue(s) and inspected traffic control measures for compliance

FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA AGENDA ITEM #



Recap on SCE's Work on Woodlyn Lane
Page 2 of 2

with the approved traffic control map. That morning, the City also advised SCE’s
permitting technicians and public affairs liaison of the issues and complaints to assist in
resolving the field issues.

After the event, the City later heard complaints from residents regarding SCE’s lack of
noticing, full road closures, residents needing to help direct contractor truck traffic, and
no/limited notification of electrical outage duration.

o



ATTACHMENT #1



SITE ADDRESS . PUBLIC WORKS PERMIT

& 12 W\ oodivn Lane
- APPLICATIONFOR: [ Jooemocmon X EXcavaToN { X [excroacavmr
PLAN CHECEK - FERMTS
2 ENCROACHMENT PLAN CHECK $181.84 $363.68 2 ENCROACHMENT PERMIT $551.13 $1,102.26
(626) 3532218 FINAL MAP CHECK $2,182.03 / SHEET $0.00
. ) ” — : : OF X 0.00
frocamion On .So_u&u\u. Lane in front of 3 and #13 GRADING PLAN CRECK < .5 ACRE OF $0.00 GRADING PERMIT < .5 ACRE OF S
DISTURBANCE. $3,273.05 DISTURBANCE $§3.306.79
JRPOSE ADDITIONAL GRADING P $0.00 D 653, $0.00
2 (ea) Power Pole Replacements - TD2010925 & TD1985934 ONAL GRADNG .. 215203 R GREINERRAT l 0
IMPROVEMENT PLANS P.C. $2,152.03 §0.00 IMPROVEMENT PLANS PERMIT $2.204.53 $0.00
JAPPLICANT . PH & LOT LINE ADS! C.$1,001 S0 S $0.00
Southern Cal. Edison §-mwanmwwm LINE ADJUSTMENT P.C. §1,091.02 .00 MISC. LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS $545.51 i
SUSMP/SWPPP PLAN CHECK $2,182.03 $0.00 SUSMP/SWEPP PERMIT $2.204.53 $0.00
MAILING ADDRESS . DNT .C. $1,091. 0.00 8 $0.00
1515 Walnut Grove Ave. ADDNTL SUSMP/SWEPP P.C. $1,091.02 $ ADDNT SUSMP/SWPPP PERMIT S1,10226
MISC. PLAN CHECK $0.00 MISC. FEES
CITY STATE zp 66.14
Rosemead CA 91770 SR :
LONG TERM PLANNING FEE $10.91
ICONTACT PERSON MOBILE # 909-265-27 66 1 ISSUANCE FEE $95.86
. - | $0.00
Maria McFarlane o vs[ | X Misc.
AMOUNT S0 oo
S S s S
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR LICENSE = Pecmit# Wy De | torares [ SL63088 |
ILICENSE CLASS Y T = —
3898 W e s | .
Jza:zm%owmmm CITY BUSINESS LICENSE # VN ?...f. 2R I ]
VALUATION T
CITY STATE 2P “TADDURY BSTATRS TS [ w71 OMBCK 4] T
NOTES
CONTACT PERSON MOBILE # 1. éésgssggisﬁg%&m&saﬁgwiawnﬁnﬁ?rﬁn&asﬁ
o \lcss otherwise sp Al work shall be g bya With the approprate hcense.
2. .:5.58..5:ggﬂc&%&.é&nﬂémﬂ&&@ﬁﬁtg%ﬂaﬂogﬂozﬂ
.,.m‘::al..mu ' " | i B ol 3% Construction and Maintensace Work Zooes, latesz edition.
57 W27 DATE -} S 3. A copy ofthis permit shell be kept atthe site of work at all times and produced upon dermsnd.
" 4, >=§w§,&u&s&a9w3=1cﬂ.wm§§d=zﬂmﬂzm%§mv.—.:mwﬂz.cZwm.mmmo
— Maria McFarlane %.iwwgguMSB.tganﬁnd!ﬂaim...s_ma?aiq.?iueg
( pérmit expirce.

Southern California Edison . 5. The City of Bradbury Enginetring Deperuncox SHALL BE NOTIFIED AT LEAST TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS BEFORE START
of (Company) . - . . ga-ﬂ»nog o-..ioxkuv.groawn%osuwfwuﬁ.gucﬁgn&gmu!ﬁvaﬁsn&mﬂmsgnﬁmnu_mna
nongsgigﬁagsﬁgﬁgwuaogggﬁn&.ﬁseouag B.;nswgouatg«§!§38§§u§&§_ﬂ§§§&sns.
Eﬁagﬁggﬁﬁﬂqon.g.%qﬁggcgomdﬁgug 6. E&mms-_gﬁﬁgﬁﬂgﬁ.&gnﬁézgxﬁgsgnﬁ»giﬂ
HEREON SPECIFIED AND ATTACHED. o commenecmeat of work.

7 qunvosno».ﬂw.vnﬂwsnﬂwuwﬂr.nﬁur83586&5-?&@&_5_&88«333-&m:.

L ) shall inform hirself and obtain all nesessary information 25 to the exi d location of all underground pipes, lines,
Fgﬁggﬂ_umﬁmgﬁwunﬂﬂnsao%uaoma.n!&nnﬂomw.g&.ggomgo&oﬂ manholes, wires, signal devices, sub 2nd spp of any ulity, and the City shall be protested by the
Rgﬁgingﬂsaouﬁmg?ﬂuﬂﬁuﬁwagg?«gsﬁgsﬁa gggg@ﬁs&gﬁgﬁagﬁﬂﬁnﬁ&sggga
damage 10 persoes of propenty, bappening . .J..v...{ go?&on?igiﬁ.ﬁ -Es__nuuﬂrRggcolu?v«m%mﬁwgtsiéﬁgggagﬂﬁa
g%&w%ﬁiﬁgﬂgggﬁgaggggé%gg suoun%g‘&ona.s.g!az_iss&gtggzsagsﬂuﬁnuﬂgﬂsnns
ungga&wmnauv@_mﬁa.:wguﬂsn&um-ﬂu!oa&mﬂﬂ_wmsmaﬂmnﬂéasgﬂnom cost of such repair.
E«Eigﬁgvuumpm.gcngﬁao—.logﬁ.nn&ﬁnﬁgnunqgﬁgsnﬁgong 8. Fom jnspection will be requi priot to pl of and at the completion of work. At least tweaty-four (24) hours
Permitie or his successor in interest 9. motice will be required before inspection can be provided.

. 10. ﬂsrgvnunmog&goszﬁgomﬁssggaovh.
Maria McFarlane '@% 11, Spesific provisions nd conditions may be sppended s each permi.
A ugggggﬂaauﬂ&guaggg&uaﬂggg
4/13/2023 12 Geomal LishiZky, Auncile, sad Woeke's Copeetion Ensrsace Ceciicaee sl scompey
~— DATE ’lguﬂ'ﬂiﬂllgtﬁ-gngﬁﬂ&
‘THIS PERMIT EXPIRES SIX (6) MONTES AFTER THE DATE OF ISSUANCE gngii-nﬂﬁn-%ggp




CHMENT #2




" GENERALIZED TRAFFIC CONTROL NOTES VT — MiaP SCELLANEOUS DEVICES

1. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TQ THE LATEST EDIRONS OF THE CALIFORMA
MANUAL ON UNFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL. DEVICES (CA-MUTCD 2014.REV 8), STATE OF CAUFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) STANDARI) SPECFICATIONS & STANDARD PLANS, WORK AREA TRAFFIC CONTROL
HANOBOOK (WATCH), THE SAN DIEGO STAKDARD REGIONAL & ALL OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH ADMNISTRATION @

3. _THE AGENCY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO OGSERVE THESE TRAFFIC CONIROL PLAN R USE & TO MAKE ANY NOT TO SCALE

BY THE AGENCY. EXACT LOCATIONS OF ALL EQUIPMENT & TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE

SPECAZD N PROECT HID SPECIFICATIONS.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTFY THE AGENCY AT LEAST 5 WORKING DAYS IN ADVANCE OF IMPLEMENTING ANY

CONSTRUCTION DETOURS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTWY ALL AFFECTED RESIDENTS &  BUSINESSES § WORKING

DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUGTION. TEMPORARY R28(CA) “NO PARIGNG” SIGNS SHALL BE POSTED 72 HOURS PRIOR TO

COMMENGING ANY WORK.  BUSINESSES (&) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. TEMPORARY R25(CA) “NO &

1 ARKING” SIGNS SHALL BE POSTED 72 HOURS PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY WORK. o .W
ALL PRIVATE DRIVEVIAYS & SDE STREETS SHALL BE KEPT OPEN AT ALL TIMES EXCEPT WHEN CONSTRUCTION

8 /A S|
TAKES PLACE DIRECTLY IN FRONT OF THE DRIVEWAYS/SIDE STREETS. ALL OPEN EXCAVATIONS ON PUBLIC STREETS

DURING THE NON-WORKING HOURS SHAIL BE BACK FILLED OR STEEL PLATED (ANTI-SIID PLATES) FOR TRAFRIC TO THE
SATISFACTION OF THE AGENCY OR ENGHEER.

%&?ﬁs&?ﬁmﬁﬁgﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%&g% MISCELLANEOUS TEMP. TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS O bv ﬁ
THE AGENCY'S ENGINEER. FOR SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS, THE CONTRACTOR HAS 4 HOURS UPON CUTTING THE BXISTING -

LOOPS TO INSTALL AN OPERATIONAL SYSTEM OF ENTHER VIDEO DETECRON OR DETECTION LOOPS.
10. N ACCORDANCE WITH CENERALLY ACCEPTED CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY & I e _ ) :
COMPLETELY RESPONSISLE FOR THE CONDITIONS OF THE J08 SITE, INCLUGNG THE SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS & e | ‘uﬂ‘ ¥
PROPERTY DURING PERFORMANGE OF WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FULLY COMPLY WITH AL STATE & PEDERAL LAWS, ¥T0 -
RULES, REGULATIONS & ORDERS RELATING TO SAFETY TO THE PUBLIC AND WORKMEN. \/ \/ \/ HGHUEVEL WARNING DEVICE PoSTTLRE L HERDE
11 1T IS THE RESPONSIBRUTY OF THE CONTRACTOR PERFORMING THE WORK ON A PUBUC STREET 10 INSTALL & w1 wma oy Gxop | odenm | cmer | cosca lodouscue)  wns Ll
MANTAN TRAPFIC CONTROL DEVICES AS SHOWN HEREON, AS WELL AS ANY SUCH ADDITONAL DEVICES AS MAY €€
REQURED TO ENSURE THE SAFE MOVOMENT OF TRAFFIC & PEDESTRIANS THROUGH OR ARGUND THE WORK AREA Ay - .
12. AL TRAFFIC LANES SHALL HAVE A MINMUM OF S FEET CLEARANCE FROU OPEN EXCAVATIONS & A MBMUM OF 2 TRENGH 0D, I _?EE.._ w.momz_u
FEET RO VERTICAL OSSTRUCTIONS. CXNTRAGTOR MUST ANTAIN A MNIRA! ONE LANE OF TRAFFIC IN EAGH
i s e it} L08 Beofn) meal) | omien (LY mepy | sxen | PROPOSED WORK AREA
B e o ST A ot o T T B A e i
EOGE OF 4 HORIZONTAL 101 VERTICAL @ @ nmu @ Iﬂm E B EXSTING STRIPNG
oSOl S LS AT S, SO AT e & . s ——— - oo om0 & o
K AN OFEN
EXCAVATION AREA £XISTS ADJACENT TO THE TRAVELED WAY, “STEEL PLATES AHEAD® SIONS SHALL BE POSTED N e UK L LuEy SR(CAXPONICD) | Ua~tofy), et =) ALITY LNES
ADVANCE OF EXCAVATIONS COVERED BY SYEFL FLATE BROGING.
LDWYL . - eosmws onvewavs)

BSOS O AR Yl VR CoRaTRICTON AGTTES Y MISCELLANEOUS REGULATORY SIGNS 6 e CATAYS BOVIOARY LRES

\TION SIGNS BE PLACED BN ADVANCE OF
16, ALL ADV: 5 "
¥ za__..:%—ni% WARNNG §vﬂ~oﬁﬂ$aﬂo;?aﬁmﬂmﬂﬁ DURING DAY TRE gk YATH .!g UGHTS ” PROPOSED CHANNELIZATION LINE
7, RO woamm) | s | | oy Kexp KEEP ~ DISTING FENCE LINE
{7, LT TUis SHALL BE PROUBITED DURRG COUSTRUCTION MIEN LEFT TURN WSBILITY 15 RESTRIOTED AND WHEN T.B_ _lﬂi_g_g_ _lul._ __|.l_ m @ a._ﬂ..:v_. M!l e ,
o/t LB, SHOU 1 18 U M0 8 3 S 29 S S e m 5
3 33
JUBLAAR DELREATORS SHALL BE 36" VA HOGHT & CONES SHALL BE 28" Vil KEIGHT & SHALL INGLUDE A 6 & &' S s e B B B L feate i “ mag”““hméwomﬁ
19. F UTLIZNG REDUCE SPEED LBMT 10 28MPH SIS N A CONSTRUCTON ZOWE, FOLLOW MUTCD REQUIREMENTS. AS \ J a q".ﬁ 'J .‘ _ .s b <= HIGH LEVEL WARNING DEVICE W/ SIGN
WELL AS POSTING 25MPH CONSTRUCTION ZONE SPEED LIMITS WHERE THE STREETS WL BE REDUCED TO ONE LANE I ONLY ONLY Staubat . 4 - Nehd = OR CONE MOUNTED SIGN
EITHER DIRECTON. CONFLICTNG SIQNS SHALL EE GOVERED & UNCOVERED AS NEEDED,  ERCRCED TYES EAROADE
20. DELNEATORS SHALL BE SPAGED AT 20' O.C. WITHN 300° OF AN INTERSZCTION. el - S 2l i) i.:ﬁ.L_ 2o £y oot Rt : i/ SGN(S)
(< 3 Y % PROPOSED TYPE [ BARRICADE
a T.l ) wﬁu.w oy N W/ SEiE)
= - o _ 1] v @ FLASHNG BEACON
-3 mese | e [=EN 5] nece(ca) Bs-o(n) =250) L2 3 ® SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION
PLAS PREPARED O PRO TRAFFIC SERVICES iy | CITY OF BRADBURY - DEPT. OF ENGINEERING
UNFON & NORUMION = L S——— .
DPTATID 50T DESIGN DEPARTMENT paT: moc.—-—-—mwz °>—|=uowz_> EDISON COMPANY T T ==
PRE TRAFFIC SERVIGES &
FROJECT TORAP KO,
S8 AL ELITE TRAFFIC || vsstoneney: MARQUEZ JosE | _ | 2472023 POLEREPLACEMENT || o || mamaA CHCFARLANE
a..l APPROVED BY:  PRO TRAFFIG SERVICES e e e e _ 2010028 || “AGENGY COORDNATION
e E Twrsns | LATTROVE | rworerss = | S sPEOAST
pde s e U neasans | |PERMIT# SIVOODLYNILN. TCPMEPRO3230231 | )i 714.465.0038, PAX: 12258 Cantoct 8




.;fn
f (st

:

- y 2N
! LAE )
PREPAED )

| o s Gl

| w4 c3(eA) R9-3

g

;

DEODAR LN. 25 MPH

ADDITIONAL NOTES:

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST WAOCAL/
@
PEDESTRIAN TRAFRIC AROUND OR THRU
WORK AREA.
FLAG PERSONS TO MAINTAIN EYE CONTACT
P AT AL TIES OR USE TWD WAY RADIOS
TO COUMUNICATE.

S.No._c.m 35 K

e

CITY OF BRADBURY - DEPT. OF ENGINEERING

A
PRO TRAFFIC SERVICES &
S0 BAL ELITE TRAFFIC

PRO TRAFFIC SERVICES

““SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY |=

L

SHEET

DESIGNED BY: MARQUEZ, JOSE

POLE REPLACEMENT

Ih!)ou.nqnﬂ_.)zn

“AGENCY COORDINATION

FONST, PERMT ORCANIZATIO

APPROVED BY: PRO TRAFFIC SERVICES

PERMIT #

M 714.405.0038, PAX:12288)




| GENERALIZED TRAFFIC CONTROL NOTES

ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST EDITIONS OF THE CALFORNA
t»zgrcz:ia TRAFFIC CONTROL. M‘ﬁagl—-hsns 4,REV 8), STATE OF CAUFORMIA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS & STANDARD PLANS, WORK AREA TRAFTIC CONTROL
HANDBOGK (WATCH), TRE SAN DIEGO STANDARD REGIONAL & ALL OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH ADMBSTRATION

(CSHA) REQUIREMENTS AS APPLICASLE.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE AMERICAN DISABLITY ACT (ADA) ACCESSEIUTY
GUIDELINES & WITH THE CALIFORNIA AC(ESSIGIITY GUIDELINES  AS RELATED TO PEDESTRIAN & SHALL
UANTAN PEDSSTRIAN ACCESS AT ALL TRIES PER ADA REQUIREMENTS. SIDEWALK CLOSURE WTH THE CA NUTCD,

3. _THE AGENCY RESERVES THZ RIGHT 71D OBSERVE THESE TRAFRIC CONTROL PLAN IN USE & TO MAXE ANY

HKECESSARY GHANGES AS FIELD CONDITIINS WARRANT. ANY CHANGES SHALL ~ SUPERSEDE THESE PLANS & €E DONE
asﬁgéliaﬂquimgﬂggﬁsgsgﬁ.; IS MAY BE REQUIRED
BY THE AGENCY. EXACT LOCATIONS OF ALL EQUIPMENT & TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE DETERMINED BY T

ASENCY.
4. WORKING HOURS PZR THE T PERMIT

SPECASD I PROECT BID SPECFICATIONS.
8, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTFY THE AGENCY AT LEAST 5 WORKING DAYS W GER%SE—!O!
CONSTRUCTION DETOURS, THE CONTRACTUR SHALL NOTIFY ALL AFFECTED RESIDENTS &  BUSINESSES 5 WORIGHNG
gagagggggvgvgqggngﬂgia
COMMENGING ANY VORK.  BUSINESSES (5) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. TEMPORARY R28(CA) "NO
PARKNG® SINS SHALL BE POSTED 72 HOURS PRIOR TO COMUENCING ANY VIORK,

6. AL PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS & SDE SIREETS SHALL BE KEPT OPEN AT ALL TMES EXCEPT WHEN CONSTRUCTION
TAXES PLACE DRECTLY IN FRONT OF THE DRIVEWAYS/SIOE STREETS. ALL OPEN EXCAVATIONS ON PUBUIC STREETS

DURNG THE RON-WORKING HOURS SHALL BE BACK FILLED OR STEEL PLATED (ANTI-SKIO PLATES) FOR TRAFFIC TO THE
SATISFACTION OF THE AGENCY OR ENGINEER.

7. ggggﬁm ISTNG TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SUCH AS SIGNACGE, STRIPING & O!
PAVEMENT MARKING THAT ARE N 85..2 E-ﬁggﬁmggﬂga%!ﬁh
TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL IS IN PLACE

8. AL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE STREET WHEN NOT N USE OR UPON
B\rﬂ.xw‘g F<§k=ﬂ§§§o§a§ﬁ§g%u<=m
CONTRACTOR AT THE END OF EAGH WORK DAY.

9. TRAFFIC SIGNALS SHALL REMAN IN OPERATION AT ALL TIMES. CONFLKTNG TRAFFIC SIGNAL INDICATIONS SHAIL BE
COVERSED & SIGNAL OPERATION OURING EACH CONSTRUCTION PHASE SHALL BE COORDINATED WIT™H AND APPROVED BY
THE AGENCY'S ENGINEER, FOR SIGNALIZED NTERSECTIONS, THE CONTRACTOR HAS 4 HOURS UPON CUTTING THE EXISTING
LOOPS TO HSTALL AN OPERATIONAL SYSTEM CF EITHER VIDEO DETECTION OR DETECTION LOOPS.

10. & ACCORDANCE WITH CENERALLY ACCEPTED CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY
g—ﬂk%édﬂ%ﬁﬁm%#ﬂ&ﬂ%’ﬂ%ﬂﬁi

AS ISSUED BY THE AGENCY CR AS

PROPERTY DURRNG FERFORMANCE OF WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FULLY COMPLY WITH AL 8 >._m'§;tw.
RULES, REGULATIONS & ORDERS RELATING TO SAFETY TO THE PUBLIC AND WORKMEN.

1. T [S THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR PERFORMING THE WORK ON A PUBLIC STREEY TO INSTALL &
MANTAN TRAFFIC OONTROL DEVICES AS igﬁrﬁéﬁgﬂﬁ;gg)—-gat L3
REQURED TO ENSURE THE SAFE MOVEMENT OF TRAFFIC & ggggdﬁsg

12 AL TRAFFIC LANES SHALL HAVE A MNMUM OF 5 FEET CLEARANCE FROM OPEN ENCAYATONS & A MINMUM OF 2

ggggg:ﬂsozm.svﬂgag MANTAIN A MNAUM ONE LANE OF TRAFFIC IN EACH
DIRECTIGN AT ALL TMES.

13, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POST CAI( v.grxﬁ!“u_gﬂﬁ. N ADVANCE OF PAVEMENT
SURFACE DISRUPTIONS OF 1/2° OR GREATER. PAVEMENT DISRUPTIONS OF 1 1/2° OR GREATER SHALL HAVE A BEVELED
EOGE OF 4 HORZONTAL TO'1 VERTICAL.

14, PLACE ADOITIONAL C30{CA) _Lzmnbmv SIGN ON TYPE 1
EXTENDED VORK AREAS N EACH LANS "MAT IS CLOSED. INSTALL C27(CA) g%ﬁmgfg
EXCAVATION AREA EXISTS ADJACENT TO THE TRAVELED WAY. °STEEL PLATES AHEAD® SIONS SHALL BE POSTED N
ADVANCE OF EXCAVATIONS COVERED BY STEEL PLATE BIRROGING.

13, NGHT WORX MAY REQURE WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE AGENCY. AT AGENCIES DISCRETION, LANE CLOSURES, zo-e
DETOURS. ROAD CLOSURES & TRAFFIC SIGNAL MODIFICATION ASSOCIATED WATH OVERNIGHT CONSTRUGTION ACTIVTES Al
REQURE INFORMATION SICNS BE PLACED IN ADVANCE OF CONSTRUCTION.

18. ALL ADVANCED WARNNG SIGNS SHALL SE RETRO-REFLECTIVE DURSNG DAY TIME HOURS & WTH WARNIIC LIGHTS
AT NIGHT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE FLAG PERSONS AS DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE AGENCY.

LEFT TURNS SHALL BE PROHBITED DURING CONSTRUCTION WHEN LEFT TURN VISIBILITY IS RESTRICTED AND WHEN
_.mm.—_dg;m T CONFLICT WITH CONSTRUCTION OR OPPOSING TRAFFIC.

18 ALL SGNS SHALL CONFORM TO THE: CURRENT CA MUTCC & THE UNMED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
BOOK OF STANDARD HIGHWAY SIGNS. UNLESS SHOWN :.Ma!mmgdﬁv;zmzoﬂﬂm!khéﬁ
TUBULAR DELINEATORS SHALL BE 387 N HEIGHT & CONES SHAIL BE 28° MON. HEIGHT & SHALL INGLUDE A 6° & 4°
HIGH INTENSITY REFLECTIVE SLEEVES.

19. F UTLIZNG REDUCE SPEED LBAT TO 26MPH SIGNS M A CONSTRUCTION ZONE, FOLLOW MUTCD REQURENENTS. AS
VELL AS POSTING 25°H CONSTRUCTION ZONS SPEED LMITS VHERE THE STREETS WILL BE REDUCED TO ONE LANE &4
EITHER DIRECTION. CONFUCTING SIGNS SHALL BE COVERED & UNCOVERED AS NEEDSD.

20. DEUNEATORS SHALL BE SPACED AT 20° O.C. VATHN 300° OF AN RNTERSECTION.

<_o_z:< - §>mu

NOT

P

TOSCALE

et

o PRSI

MISCELLANEOUS DEVICES

MISCELLANEOQUS TEMP. TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS

F;@,'

@@ﬂ
@z@g

Elilfllll‘ S l_v

@d.uss

Fmea

o

EXeN)

& ==
EI&BFI:F

Z_ wOmCLpzmocm REGULATORY SIGNS

END |
{oETour

i
r

=]

-

[4

A3-3(R}

R8-11x(R)

mm_ﬂ

]
keeP
4=
LEFT
Rinty

A0 8y-2

s

z@

JiaHiEE

_i -m_

(=)

==
ooum |

)

R4

| SRS |

FIGRTA) By-6a) -

~| ] [

LR

R - S TRAT ST RARORE 160 CITY OF BRADBURY - DEPT. OF ENGINEERING
Tl 1] P TR0 TRAFRIC o8 —1|” SOUTHERN o>_.=“o_~z_> m_u_moz COMPANY |5 - DEFY _—
PR TRAFFIC :-_n: ) =1 oo o .
S0 CAL ELITE TRAFFIC SESINED NV MARQUEZJOSE || BT POLEACCESS ||  .ogcase || MARIA McFARLANE
EI] APPROVED BY:  PRO TRAFFIC SERVICES : ) >oﬁm.x3 %Mgzuﬁ_oz ! O
SR s S | p— 13 WOODLYN LN. Qust. PERUT ORGHAZATN | [ omegtor




>
%
&
B
&
: g
g

R 4647751E_POLE

IN: 4647751E_POLE @

EX: 4857342E POLE.

ADDITIONAL NOTES:

@ CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE W/ PROP
OWNER IF THERE'S A POTENTIAL NEED
FOR ANY DRIVE WAY CLOSURES.
CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST WA0CAL/

@ PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC AROUND OR THAU
WORK AREA.

FLAG PEMSOMS TG MAINYAN £YFE CONTACT

I* AT'AUL TWiES OR USE IWO WAY RADIOS
T0 COMMUNICATE.

[E] Emison wRE

E -
1w 100"
'
oo WS = o . _
9 B = ,

4C9A(CA)

4W20-4

WOODLYN LN, 25 MPH

[ES—
o e

B

30'20"10' 0 ' 70

e

S

_

CITY OF BRADBURY - DEPT. OF ENGINEERING

e S T e ““SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY -

ason & rowsaon I 1 L~
#R0 TAT .» SERVIGES s = — — — -
Fl )
80 GAL ELITE TRAFFIC | |oeston=oev: MARQUEZ, JosE__| 2272023 | [PRaRen POLE ACCESS S easos MARIA HOFARLANE ~
“AGENCY COORDINATION
TR "UEPEEEE | [arrrovenBy:  PROTRAFFICSERVICES — — . 3 &
sanancos, cour — reerunin : B LovsT. PERMIT ORCANIZAT
oRurSE & Rty © e | | eErMiT 2 13 WOODLYN LN, YCPMEPRO3230282 | fM:714.485.0038, PAX:12286, i et

g N




SGVCOG City Council Road Show

The SGVCOG Staff will be providing updates on the SGVCOG programs, accomplishments and goals for
the upcoming year.




Richard Barakat, Mayor (District 3)

Richard T. Hale, Mayor Pro Tem (District 1)
Monte Lewis, Council Member (District 2)
Bruce Lathrop, Council Member (District 4)
Elizabeth Bruny, Council Member (District 5)

City of Bradbury
Agenda Memo

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Kevin Kearney, City Manager

DATE: October 17, 2023

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION — AN UPDATE BY CALIFORINA AMERICAN

WATER ON THE LEMON AVENUE RESERVOIR

ATTACHMENTS: 1) August 16, 2022 Minutes
2) February 15 2022 Minutes
3) Bradbury Municipal Code Dealing with Open Space

RECOMMENDATION

California American Water has been working toward the retirement of the Lemon
Avenue Reservoir site, and the draft plans are now close to finalization and will be
presented during the meeting. It is recommended that the City Council review the
presented draft plans and provide any feedback.

SUMMARY

California American Water (‘Cal-Am’) has been coordinating with City Staff on the demo,
filling, and landscaping of the 1.65 acre Lemon Avenue Reservoir site. During the
February 2022 City Council meeting, CalAm presented plans that included approximately
26,000 cubic yards of soils import with no solidified plans on its future use. Ultimately,
the City Council directed Staff to further work with Cal-Am to refine the project
(ATTACHMENT #1). Cal-Am later returned during the August 16, 2022 meeting where
they proposed approximately 15,000 cubic yards of soils import. At the time, Cal-Am
conducted a study that suggested that the site may be used for additional water storage.
The timeline, however, for the construction of such water storage was unknown.
Ultimately, the City Council directed Staff and Councilmember Hale to work with Cal-Am
to further refine the project (ATTACHMENT #2).

FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA AGENDA ITEM #



Presentation by CalAm on the Lemon Reservoir Site
Page 2 of 2

to further refine the project ATTACHMENT #2).

After working with Cal-Am over the last year, the draft plan is now close to finalization.
The current proposal is to demo the existing concrete reservoir, import XXX cubic yards
of soils, and sell the space for a future single-family residential development. The current
thought is that the parcel would become part of the Estates HOA.

The initial estimates of importing 26,000 cubic yards of soil to fill the Reservoir site will
bring impacts to both Bradbury and Monrovia. The import of soil will be transported by
an approximate 3,250 haul trucks. It is assumed soils import and grading would take
place over 25 days, which translates into about 130 trucks per day (3,250 trucks/25 days
= 130 trucks per day). The current haul route from the project site is west on Lemon
Avenue, then south on Mountain Avenue to the 210 freeway. The route passes by the
Bradoaks Elementary School, in Monrovia, so Cal-Am will be coordinating with the City
to secure the appropriate approvals.



ATTACHMENT #1




MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
CiITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY
HELD ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 16,2022~ -
AT THE BRADBURY CIVIC CENTER
600 WINSTON AVENUE, BRADBURY, CA 91008

CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT
CODE SECTION 54953(e)(1):

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER:

ROLL CALL:

COUNCILMEMBER LEWIS EXCUSED:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

DISCLOSURE OF ITEMS REQUIRED BY
GOV. CODE SECTION 1090 & 81000
ET SEQ,:

PUBLIC COMMENT:
CONSENT CALENDAR:

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54953(e)(1),
the City is allowing Councilmembers, Staff and the public to
participate in this meeting by means of a Zoom video or
felephone call. Participants will be able to hear the entire
proceedings and be able to speak during Public Comment,
Public Hearing, and other authorized ftimes. Members of the
public must maintain silence and mute their microphones and
telephones except during those times.

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Bradbury
was called to order by Mavor Lathrop at 7:00 p.m. followed by
the Pledge of Allegiance.

PRESENT: Mayor Lathrop, Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat,
Councilmembers Hale and Bruny

ABSENT: Councilmember Lewis

STAFF: City Manager Kearney, City Attorney Reisman,
City Clerk Saldana and Management Analyst Musa

Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat made a motion to excuse Council-
member Lewis from the meeting. Councilmember Hale
seconded the motion, which carried.

Councilmember Hale made a motion to approve the agenda to
proceed with City business. Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat seconded
the motion, which carried unanimously.

In compliance with the California Political Reform Act, each City
Councilmember has the responsibility to disclose direct or
indirect potential for a personal financial impact as a result of
participation in the decision-making process concerning
agenda items.

City Attorney Reisman stated that he was not aware of any
potential conflicts of interest.

None

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered by the City
Council to be routine and will be enacted by one motion unless
a Councilmember requests otherwise, in which case the item
will be removed and considered by separate action. All
Resolutions and Ordinances for Second Reading on the
Consent Calendar are deemed to “waive further reading and
adopt.”

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 1 0of 9



ViCTION TO APPROVE

CONSENT CALENDAR:

APPROVED:

APPROVAL OF CONSULTANT
AGREEMENT WITH DE NOVO PLANNING
GROUP FOR UPDATE OF THE SAFETY
CHAPTER OF THE HEALTH AND SAFETY
ELEMENT OF THE GENERAL PLAN:

PROPOSAL.:

RECOMMENDATION:

DISCUSSION:

A. Minutes: Regular Meeting of July 19, 2022
B. Resolution No. 22-22: Demands & Warrants for August 2022
- G:- -Monthly-Investment Report for-the month of July- 2022 -

Counciimember Haie made a motion to approve the Consent
Calendar as presented. Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat seconded the
motion, which was carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Mayor Lathrop, Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat,
Councilmembers Hale and Bruny

NOES: None

ABSENT: Councilmember Lewis

Motion passed 4.0

City Manager Kearney stated that Government Code Section
65302(g) regulating General Plans requires the City to update
its Safety Element (the Safety Chapter of the Health and Safety
Element) with the revision of the Housing Element.

California Government Code Section 65302(g) relating to
Safety Elements of the General Plan has been amended to
include analysis of additional topics, including those related to
wildfires and climate adaptation and resiliency. While the recent
hazard mitigation plan addresses many of the wildfire
requirements, it does not address climate adaptation and
resiliency. Staff does not have the expertise to prepare this
update.

The City reached out to two consultants that is has been
working before with to obtain a proposal for the update of the
Safety Chapter of the Health & Safety Element. Only De Novo
Planning Group provided a response. De Novo is a well-
respected planning firm that has prepared Safety Element
updates for a number of cities (i.e. Gardena and Hawthorne).

De Novo has provided a proposal for $37,250. The project is
billed on the time expended, but it is a “not-to-exceed contract.”
Staff has checked with other cities updating their Safety
Element as to costs and it is in line with those cities.

it is recommended that the City Council approve the
Agreement between the City of Bradbury and De Novo
Planning Group, Inc. for services to update the City’'s Safety
Element at a not-to-exceed amount of $37,250.

City Manager Kearney stated that this discussion was
continued from the July meeting and staff supplied the City
Council with more information, such as:

e City of Los Angeles: Safety Element Background &
Summary of Amendments;

¢ Introducing SB 379: Climate Adaptation and Resiliency
Strategies; and

e SCAG: Southern
Framework

California Climate Adaptation

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 2 of 9



MOTION TO APPROVE AGREEMENT
WITH DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP:

APPROVED:

PRESENTATION - AN UPDATE BY
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER ON
THE LEMON AVENUE RESERVOIR:

HAUL ROUTE:

LONG-TERM PLANS FOR
RESERVOIR SITE:

Perry Banner from De Novo Planning Group was online to
answer questions about the Safety Element Update.

Councilmember Hale asked how long the process takes. City
Manager Kearney stated that the time tabie is in De Novo's
proposal.

City Manager Kearney stated that the City Council approves
the Safety Element, not the HCD (Department of Housing and
Community Development).

There will be two public hearings: one with the City Council and
one with the Planning Commission. Community input can be
taken at the regular City Council meeting and regular Planning
Commission meeting.

Councilmember Hale made a motion to approve the
Professional Services Agreement with De Novo Planning
Group, Inc. for the Preparation of an Update to the Safety
Chapter of the Safety Element of the General Plan at a not-to-
exceed amount of $37,250. Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat seconded
the motion, which was carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Mayor Lathrop, Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat,
Councilmembers Hale and Bruny

NOES: None

ABSENT: Councilmember Lewis

Motion passed 4:0

City Manager Kearney stated that California American Water
(Cal-Am) has been coordinating with City Staff on the
demolition, filling, and landscaping of the Lemon Avenue
reservoir. At the February 2022 City Council meeting, Cal-Am
presented plans that included estimates of 26,000 cubic yards
of import soil transported by approximately 3,250 haul trucks to
fill the Reservoir. It was assumed soils import and grading
would take place over 25 days, which franslated to about 130
trucks per day. The City Council commented that the import of
soils seemed excessive, especially since Cal-Am did not have
immediate plans to develop the site. Since the February
meeting, Cal-Am has revised their plans and reduced the
volume of import. The initial estimates of 26,000 cubic yards of
import soil has now been reduced to approximately 15,000
cubic yards.

The current haul route from the project site is west on Lemon
Avenue, then south of Mountain Avenue to the 210 Freeway.
The route passes by the Wild Rose Elementary School in
Monrovia, and an additional assessment would need to be
conducted on the health risks.

It is unknown at this time what will happen to the Reservoir site
in the long term. Cal-Am has conducted a study on system-
wide storage, and the results of the study suggested it as a site
for additional water storage. However, Staff has been told that

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 3 of 9



CAL-AM REPRESENATIVES:

DISCUSSION:

ACTION TAKEN:

PRESENTATION BY SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA EDISON ON WILDFIRE
MITIGATION EFFORTS:

DISCUSSION:

the timeline associated with the construction of such water
storage is unknown.

(Name), Civil Engineer, and Brandan (Name), Landscape
Architect, were oniine fo make the presentation and answer
questions from the City Council.

Councilmember Hale stated that he is not comfortable with the
project, because he is concerned that Cal-Am will fili the site
and then put a new tank on top. Councilmember Hale also was
concerned about the traffic and the nearby school. Maybe Cal-
Am should to post a bond for the road.

Councilmember Hale stated that he wants to see the plans and
asked if our City Engineer, David Gilbertson, could look at them
as well.

Councilmember Hale stated that he built a tank for Cal-Am in
the past which included landscaping. As soon as the tank was
finished, Cal-Am shut off the water and all of the landscaping
died. He does not want that to happen again.

The Cal-Am Representatives stated that the current site is
getting watered, but right now water conservation is necessary.
Other than that, is Cal-Am going in the right direction?

City Manager Kearney stated that he will set up a meeting
between Cal-Am, the City Engineer and Councilmember Hale
to look at the finalized plans for the Lemon Water Reservoir.

Jeanette Soriano, Government Relations Manager, and Albert
Diaz, District Manager of Monrovia, gave a presentation on
Wildfire Mitigation Efforts by Southern California Edison.

The topics of the Power Point Presentation included:

2021 Wildfire Season

SCE’s Wildfire Mitigation Activities
Public Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS)
Reducing the Need for PSPS

PSPS Communications

Customer Programs and Resources

e ¢ 0 ¢ o o

Edison provided Council and Staff with a sample of Insulated
Wire.

Mayor Lathrop inquired if the City could use its Rule 20A
money to pay for insulated wire in the City of Bradbury.
Ms. Soriano stated that this would be a great idea, but that the
Rule 20A program is for undergrounding utilities only and that
the PUC is retiring the Rule 20A program soon.

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 4 of 9



DISCUSSION OF THE ANNEXATION

OF THE ROYAL OAKS RETIREMENT

- GOMMUNITY:- -

ANALYSIS:

OPTIONS:

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

City Manager Kearney stated that the City of Bradbury
redistricted in 2021. As part of the process, the City Council

- directed- Staff-to annex-a- portion-of Royal Oaks- Drive North, - -

directly below the Retirement Community (“Manor”), which was
found to be in Los Angeies County territory. Such an
annexation would ensure that Bradbury's District Three meets
regulations regarding district contiguity. Staff recently learned
of a Duarte Councilmember’'s desire to annex the Retirement
Community, which would affect Bradbury's current District map
and annexation efforts of a portion of Royal Oaks Drive North.

It is Staffs understanding that since the incorporation of
Bradbury in 1957, the Retirement Community has always been
an unincorporated parcel of land belonging to Los Angeles
County. The Retirement Community has a lot size of
approximately 17.71 acres and the County Assessors map
shows the property divided by three legal lot lines (pursuant to
the Subdivision Map Act).

The following are current resident estimates of the Retirement
Community in comparison to Bradbury:

Population:
City of Bradbury - 925

Retirement Community — 260

Number of registered Voters:
City of Bradbury - 650
Retirement Community — 199

City Staff recently met with the Manor's Executive Director to
better understand the Community and its desire for annexation.

City Manager Kearney stated that there are a few options the
City Council can explore in response to a potential City of
Duarte annexation of the Retirement Community:

1. The City of Bradbury could annex the entire Retirement
Community;

2. The City of Duarte could annex the majority of the
Retirement Community and Bradbury could annex a
side and/or northern most section;

3. The City of Duarte could annex the entire Retirement
Community;

4. The City of Bradbury could continue with its current
annexation plan through LAFCO since an application is
already pending.

A Bradbury annexation of the Retirement Community is unlikely
to produce significant property tax revenue since the property
belongs to a non-profit organization. After credits for the
claimed, non-profit exemption, initial estimates assume City
property tax revenues to be approximately $500 a year. There
could be additional future revenue sources for planning reviews
and building permits.

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 5 of 9



INFORMAL CONTRACT WITH
BEAR DEMOGRAPHICS:

RECOMMENDATION:

DISCUSSION:

PUBLIC COMMENT:

MOTION:

COMMENT FROM LAFCO:

MORE DISCUSSION:

AMENDED MOTION:

Staff has entered into an informal contract with Bear Demo-
graphics and Research, Inc. for a not-fo-exceed amount of

$2,500 to provide -initial consulting -services-on an-heurly basis- -

to advise Staff on a potential annexation and/or redistricting.

This item is a review of the background on the 2021
redistricting, the efforts to annex a portion of Royal Oaks Dive
North, and options for the City Council to explore if the City of
Duarte were to annex the Retirement Community. It is
recommended that the City Council direct Staff on how to
proceed.

Mayor Lathrop stated that he is not in favor of annexing the
entire Retirement Community.

Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat felt that the City does not need to do
anything about the redistricting.

Councilmember Hale also does not want to annex the entire
Manor, because the residents would make up an entire district.

Mayor Lathrop inquired if Duarte can annex the Manor. Andrew
Westall from Bear Demographics replied that is up to LAFCO.

Councilmember Bruny was also not in favor of annexing the
Manor.

Mr. Andrew Smith, Executive Director of the Royal Manor,
stated that they prefer a full annexation by either the City of
Bradbury or the City of Duarte. They don't want to be part of
Los Angeles County.

Councilmember Hale made a motion for Bradbury to continue
with its current annexation plan through LAFCO and to let
Duarte annex the Manor. Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat seconded
the motion.

Paul Novak of LAFCO stated that under the current law cities
must be contiguous. In our scenario the City of Duarte is not
contiguous with the Manor. The City Council needs to amend
its motion to explore other option, because the Duarte Mesa
does not touch Royal Oaks Drive North.

Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat stated that Duarte Councilmember
Margaret Finley wants Duarte to annex the Manor. Mayor Pro-
Tem Barakat suggested to let Duarte or the County maintain
Royal Oaks Trail.

Mayor Lathrop said let Duarte do what they want to do.

Councilmember Hale amended his motion for the City of
Bradbury to do nothing, to withdraw our application with
LAFCO for the annexation of a portion of Royal Oaks Trail and
to send a letter to the County to ask them to maintain the trail in
front of the Manor. Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat seconded the
motion, which was carried by the following roll call vote:

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 6 of 9



APPROVED:

DISCUSSION ON THE UPCOMING

RETIREMENT OF THE CITY CLERK:

NO ACTION TAKEN:

AYES: Mayor Lathrop; Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat,
Councilmembers Hale and Bruny

- NOES:-None -

ABSENT: Councnlmember Lewns
Motion passed 4:0

City Manager Kearney stated that this is an ongoing discussion
about the planned retirement of City Clerk Claudia Saldana in
the spring of 2023, and the challenges associated with filling
her position. This is an informai discussion with no formal
recommended actions. Rather, this item seeks input from the
City Council on how they would like to proceed. It is expected
that there will be multiple discussions on this item in the next
few months.

The City Clerk’s position has expanded with the City’s needs
since she started working for the City in June of 1988. Today
Claudia’s position has three main functions. These roles and
responsibilities are equivalent in other cities to 1) City Clerk, 2)
Accounting Technician, and 3) Executive Assistant to the City
Manager.

City Manager Kearney stated the City Council discussed this
item at the July 2022 meeting and requested additional job
descriptions for both the positions of City Clerk and Accounting
Technician. The City Council additionally requested the most
recent Bradbury job announcement for the Management
Analyst.

Mayor Lathrop stated that the City should outsource payroll and
some of the light accounting could be done by the Management
Analyst. City Manager Kearney stated that the Management
Analyst position was not recruited for accounting tasks. City
Manager Keamney also stated that he asked the current
Management Analyst if she would be willing to take over some
of Claudia’'s responsibilities and she declined.

Councilmember Bruny inquired about what the part-time
Finance Director's responsibilities are. City Manager Kearney
replied that the Finance Director's responsibilities are different
from the tasks that Claudia is doing. The Finance Director
prepares the City’s financial reports, completes reports required
by the State Controller's Office, prepares Journal Entries,
manages investments (CDs) for the City, and is the main
liaison for City audits. It would not make sense to have the
Finance Director take over Claudia’s responsibilities as he gets
paid $87/hour, because he is a CPA. On top of that, the
Finance Director is at the office only once a week for half a day
and may not be available to dedicate more time to Bradbury.
This was an informal discussion and the City Council took no
formal action. It is expected that there will be more discussions
regarding this item over the next few months.

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 7 of 9



DISCUSSION ON THE USE OF
CAL RECYCLE FUNDS:

RECOMMENDATION:

DISCUSSION:

DIRECTION TO STAFF:

DISCUSSION AND UPDATE ON
BRADBURY NIGHT OUT:

MATTERS FROM THE CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY:

Management Analyst Musa stated that the City received $5,000
from the CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling/County

Payment Program. At the April City. Council Meeting,. Staff was - .

directed to contact the City of Duarte about partnering and
instailing a water refiii siation on the Duarte poriion of Royai
Oaks Trail. City Staff identified an old water refill station that
needs to be replaced but the proposal was complicated due to
an existing partnership between Duarte and a third-party
organization in regards to a plague that would be placed on the
water refill station stating that it was a donation from the City of
Bradbury. Since then, the City of Duarte has designated two
more potential locations for a water refill station to be installed.

It is recommended that the City Council review both potential
locations and approve one of the proposed areas for the
installation of a water refill station for the City of Duarte at a
not-to-exceed amount of $7,500.

Mayor Pro-Tem Barakat suggested to place the water refill
station near the bridge on Royal Oaks Trail. Mayor Pro-Tem
Barakat also stated that there is no water refill station on Mount
Olive Drive.

The City Council directed Staff to identify possible locations for
a water refill station in the City of Bradbury and to report back
at the next City Council meeting.

Bradbury Night Out (BNO) is an annual event to celebrate the
City's anniversary and National Night Out. This year's Bradbury
Night Out took place on July 28, 2022. Management Analyst
Musa reported that we had over 26 service providers hosting a
booth and three food vendors. Residents enjoyed the variety of
vendors present, especially the Wildlife Learning Center, which
brought several animals, including a porcupine, armadilio,
hedgehog, owl and more. One of the highlights of BNO was the
attendance of Los Angeles County Supervisor Kathryn Barger.

The City allocated $10,000 for the event but only spent $7,000.
Based on the feedback received from residents and vendors,
the main challenge was long wait times for food and event
parking. Staff hopes to improve the parking situation and will
consider hiring a different food vendor for next year's event.

City Manager Kearney stated that the CSO contract with the
City of Monrovia should be ready soon and that we may have
to call a Special Meeting before the regular September City
Council Meeting to adopt the contract.

City Attorney Reisman stated that he enjoyed Bradbury Night
Out and that he bonded with an owl (Zeus from the Wildlife
Learning Center).

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 8 of 9



MATTERS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL:

MAYOR LATHROP:
COUNCILMEMBER BARAKAT:
COUNCILMEMBER HALE:
COUNCILMEMBER LEWIS:
COUNCILMEMBER BRUNY:

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS:

PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING
CLOSED SESSION ONLY:

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION:

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:

ADJOURNMENT:

ATTEST:

-

Nothing to report
Nothing to report
Nothing to report
Not present
Nothing to report
None

CLOSED SESSION

None

The City Council adjourned to a Closed Session to discuss:

A. Appointment of Temporary Public Employee
Government Code Section 54957(b)(1)
Title: Management Analyst

City Attorney Reisman reported that the City Council met in
Closed Session to discuss the matter regarding the
Management Analyst. No formal votes were taken or required.

At 9:15 p.m. Mayor Lathrop adjourned the meeting to a regular
meeting to be held on Tuesday, September 20, 2022 at

7:00 p.m. / //;
Gty

/ MAYOR - CITY OF BRADBURY

CITY CLERK - CITY OF BRADBURY

Minutes CC Meeting
August 16, 2022
Page 9 of 9



ATTACHMENT #2



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRADBURY

HELD ON TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2022

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 25-20:

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER:

ROLL CALL:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

DISCLOSURE OF ITEMS REQUIRED BY
GOV. CODE SECTION 1090 & 81000
ET SEQ,:

PUBLIC COMMENT:
CONSENT CALENDAR:

Pursuant fo Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-25-20, the City is
allowing Council Members, Staff and the public to participate in this

- City Council meefing by means of a Zoom video or telephone call,

Participants will be able to hear the entire proceedings (other than the
Closed Session) and be able fo speak during Public Comment, Public
Hearing, and other authorized times. Members of the public must
maintain silence and mute their microphones and telephones except
during those times.

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Bradbury
was called to order by Mayor Bruny at 7:00 p.m. followed by
the Pledge of Allegiance.

PRESENT: Mayor Bruny (remote), Mayor Pro-Tem Lathrop,
Councilmembers Barakat, Hale and Lewis

ABSENT: None

STAFF: City Manager Kearney, City Attorney Reisman,
City Clerk Saldana and Management Analyst Musa

Councilmember Hale made a motion to approve the agenda to
proceed with City business. Mayor Pro-Tem Lathrop seconded
the motion, which carried unanimously.

In compliance with the California Political Reform Act, each City
Councilmember has the responsibility to disclose direct or
indirect potential for a personal financial impact as a result of
participation in the decision-making process concerning
agenda items. City Manager Kearney stated that staff was not
aware of any potential conflicts.

None

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered by the City
Council to be routine and wili be enacted by one motion unless
a Councilmember requests otherwise, in which case the item
will be removed and considered by separate action. All
Resolutions and Ordinances for Second Reading on the
Consent Calendar are deemed to “waive further reading and
adopt.”

A. Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 18, 2022

B. Resolution No. 22-05: Demands & Warrants for
February 2022

C. Monthly Investment Report for the month of
January 2022

D. Resolution No. 22-06: Approving the Renewal of the
General Services Agreement with the County of Los
Angeles, ending June 20, 2027

Minutes CC Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 1 of 4



E. Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance No. 382:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRADBURY-AMENDING-THE-BRADBURY-MUNICIPAL-COBE———

TO ENACT CALIFORNIA STATE ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL
REQUIREMENTS

MOTION TO APPROVE Councilmember Hale made. a motion to approve Consent
CONSENT CALENDAR: ; Calendar.as presented. Councilmember Barakat seconded the

motion, which was carried by the following roll call vote:
APPROVED: AYES: Mayor Bruny, Mayor Pro-Tem Lathrop,

Councilmembers Barakat, Hale and Lewis

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

Motion passed 5:0

PRESENTATION: AN UPDATE BY City Manager Kearney stated that California American Water
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER CO. Company (Cal-Am) has been coordinating with Staff on the
ON THE LEMON AVENUE RESERVOIR: demolition, filling, and landscaping of the Lemon Avenue

Reservoir site. Current estimates suggest there will be 26,000
cubic yards if import soil transported by approximately 3,250
truck hauls to fill the reservoir. It is assumed soils import and
grading would take place over 25 days, which translates to
about 130 truckloads per day.

The current haul route from the project site is west on Lemon
Avenue, then south on Mountain Avenue to the 210 Freeway.
The route passes by Wildrose Avenue Elementary School in
Monrovia, and an additional assessment would be conducted
on the health risks.

It is unknown at this time what will happen to the Reservoir site
in the long term. Cal-Am is currently conducting a study on
system-side water storage, and it is possible the results of the
study would pinpoint the Reservoir as a site for additional water
storage. However, Staff has been told that the study might not
be completed for a few months.

CAL-AM REPRESENTATIVES: Brian Baretto, External Affairs Manager, and Mark Reifer,
Engineering Manager, were present online to entertain
questions from the City Council.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Hale stated that he is opposed to Cal-Am
bringing in 26,000 cubic yards of dirt. Councilmember Hale also
stated that the site could be used as open space for the
community or to split the lot and put in a home.

Councilmember Hale stated that the water tank should be in
the ground as low as possible because it looks ugly. Mark
Reifer stated that the current water tank is 12 feet above and
20 feet below ground. Cal-Am is considering to remove the
reservoir and add a new tank. The current tank used to be part
of the old agricultural water system.

Minutes CC Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 2 of 4



Mayor Pro-Tem Lathrop inquired if the plans for the site will go
the Planning Commission for review. City Manager Kearney

ACTION:

DISCUSSION ON CITY COUNCIL
COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS:

MOTION TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS
TO FOOTHILL TRANSIT:

MATTERS FROM THE CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY:

MATTERS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL:
MAYOR BRUNY:

MAYOR PRO-TEM LATHROP:

COUNCILMEMBER BARAKAT:
COUNCILMEMBER HALE:
COUNCILMEMBER LEWIS:
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS:
ADJOURNMENT:

would like to see the plans before they go to the Planning
Commission.

Mark Reifer stated that Cal—Am can work thh the Cltys

. landscape architect.

City Manager Kearney stated that staff will work with Cal-Am
on the new plan and bring it back to the City Council for review.

City Manager Kearney stated that Counciimember Barakat
recently became aware that Mayor Bruny is the Representative
for Foothill Transit and he the Alternate and asked if that was
Council's desire when they made the appointments in June of
2021. Mayor Bruny stated that she had no issue with switching
positions.

Councilmember Hale made a motion to appoint
Councilmember Barakat as the Representative, and Mayor
Bruny as the Alternate to Foothill Transit. Mayor Pro-Tem
Lathrop seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Nothing to report

Nothing to report

Nothing to report

Mayor Pro-Tem Lathrop reported a burglary on Fairlee Avenue
on Friday, February 11, 2022. Councilmember Barakat inquired
about the License Plate Readers the City installed. City
Manager Kearney stated that the Sheriffs Department is
checking those and neighbors’ cameras too.

Nothing to report

Nothing to report

Nothing to report

None

At 7:25 p.m. Mayor Bruny adjourned the meeting to a Study

Session (to discuss Planning Matters related to the Housing
Element Update) on Monday, March 7, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.

%fM A Bzsin,

MAYOR - CITY OF BRADBURY

Minutes CC Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 3 of 4

replied_yes,_eventually Councilmember_ Hale stated. that he



ATTEST:

/’ UV 4 \il S { !
A\ AN AN A A NVAA

CITY CLERK - CITY OF BRADBURY

Minutes CC Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 4 of 4



ATTACHMENT #3



The Lemon Avenue Reservoir is zoned OS — Open Space. Here is the Bradbury Municipal Code
dealing with such zoning:

Sec. 9.76.010. - Purpose of chapter.

Certain areas of the City are so located, configured, or possessed of such geologic features that
the residential or other structural use thereof may endanger the health, safety and welfare of
the residents of the City, or such areas are necessary for the preservation of natural resources
within the community, and for said reasons these areas are classified herein as open space use,
known and designated as Zone OS.

Sec. 9.76.020. - Permitted uses.
The following uses shall be permitted uses within the OS zone:
(1) Propagation nurseries and horticultural uses, provided that no dwellings, either
temporary or permanent, be permitted in relation thereto, nor any on-premises sales or
advertising.

Sec. 9.76.030. - Conditional uses.

The following public and private uses may be permitted within the OS zone only if the location
and development are approved by the City as a conditional use pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 49 of this title:

(1) Flood control channels, spreading grounds, settling basins, freeways, and parkways.

(2) Parks, playgrounds, wildlife preserves, recreation areas, and such non-occupied
buildings and structures as are accessory thereto.

(3) Water wells, reservoirs, tanks, dams, treatment plants, gauging stations, pumping
stations, and any use normal and appurtenant to the obtainment, storage and
distribution of water.

(4) Electric transmission substations, electric distribution stations, communications
equipment building, microwave radio and telephone transmission facilities uses in the
operation of public utility functions.

Sec. 9.76.040. - Uses expressly prohibited. The following uses are expressly prohibited within
the OS zone:
(1) Residential uses.
(2) Commercial uses other than those regulated and under the regulation of the parks
and/or City, County or State recreational agency.
(3) Industrial uses.
(4) Other uses. Any use not expressly permitted in Section 9.76.020 or 9.76.030.




Sec. 9.76.050. - Development standards.

All property in the OS zone shall be developed in accordance with the requirements specified in
any conditionai use permit granted therefor pursuant to_Chapter 49 of this titie and according
to the following standards:

(1) Lot area. No limitation.

(2) Lot dimension. No requirements.

(3) Yards. Yards may be established by the Planning Commission pursuant to the conditions
of approval that may be imposed as part of the project architectural review.

(4) Population density. No dwelling units are permitted in this zone.

(5) Lot coverage. No structures permitted except for accessory buildings or structures
related to public, park and recreational facilities. In no case shall building coverage
exceed ten percent of the total lot area.

(6) Building height. No building or structure erected in this zone shall have a height greater
than 18 feet.



Richard Barakat, Mayor (District 3)

Richard T. Hale, Jr., Mayor Pro Tem (District 1)
Monte Lewis, Council Member (District 2)
Bruce Lathrop, Council Member (District 4)
Elizabeth Bruny, Council Member (District 5)

City of Bradbury
Agenda Memo

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Kevin Kearney, City Manager
Suresh Malkani, Finance Director

DATE: October 17, 2023
SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT

ATTACHMENT: 1) FY 2021-22 Audit Report

SUMMARY

As required by local and State law, the City of Bradbury must complete an annual audit
of its financial activities. The Pun Group has completed its independent audit of the
City’s general-purpose financial statements for Fiscal Year 2021-22 and reported
several internal control findings. During the presentation of this item, Staff will be
responding to these conditions and providing future resolutions.

It is recommended the City Council receive and file the Annual Financial Report as
presented.

ANALYSIS

The Pun Group Accountants & Advisors have prepared the annual independent
auditor’s report and general-purpose financial statement for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2022. The work was completed in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

It was determined that the statements present fairly in all material respects the financial
position of the City of Bradbury. With regard to internal controls over financial reporting,
the auditors reported several internal control findings. These findings, and City Staffs
responses are presented below:

FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA AGENDA ITEM #




FY 21-22 Audit Report
Page 2 of 4

Finding 2022-001 Internal Control Over Financial Reports

Condition:
1. Audit Adjusting Journal Entries:
o Since the commencement of the audit, 14 audit journal entries were noted
to correct the trial balance provided by the City.
> Staff Response: The year end closing procedures have not been
done in previous years but will now be established by the Finance
Director to reduce the risk of these omissions.

2. Accounts Receivable and Revenue:
o The City did not properly reconcile grant related revenue and expenditures
o This resulted in the prior period adjustment
> Response: These were the grants received for COVID-19 and
were received in FY 20/21 for the first time. Staff feels that that the
auditors should have brought this to Staff’s attention in the previous
year instead of noticing it in FY 21/22. As such, it resulted in the
prior period adjustment.

3. Accounts Payable:
o The City did not properly accrue invoices received after year-end.
> Response: There were some invoices that were omitted to be
accrued and were recorded in FY 22/23 instead. Staff will ensure
that invoices are recorded in the first quarter of the next fiscal year
and are reviewed to make sure that the accruals are not missed.

4. Capital Assets:
o Due to not properly accruing invoices received after year-end, the capital
assets addition was not accurately accounted for.
> Response: Same as #3 above.

5. Prior period adjustment noted due to improper recognizing American Resue Plan
Act grant revenue.
> Response: Same as #2 above.

6. The delay in timely and properly closing the books resulted in the preparation of
the basic financial statements was delayed.
> Response: Books have been closed every month in the following
FY 22/23 and in the current fiscal year.

Cause:
The City did not have standard year-end closing procedures to reduce errors recorded
by the City’s general ledger.



FY 21-22 Audit Report
Page 3 of 4

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City establish effective year end closing procedures that
reduce the risk that there are accounting errors and the need for correcting journai
entries after the year end closing. These procedures would include timely review and
approval by management of account reconciliations, sub-ledger transactions, cutoff
review for account balances at the fund and overall government-wide level, and revenue
and expenditures/expense review. Revenue and expenditures/expenses should be
compared to the prior year or prior year trends and to the budget.

View of Responsible Officials:
1. The Finance Director will establish the year end closing procedures to reduce the
risk of accounting errors.
> Response: The revenues and expenses for the first quarter of the
next fiscal year will be reviewed to check if there are any pertaining
to previous periods so that those are accrued in the proper year.
Staff will also make sure they were properly classified as
operational or capital expenses.

2. The analysis and comparison to the budget analysis will be done on monthly
basis to avoid the adjustment entries recommended by auditors.
> Response: Staff will continue to close the books on a monthly
basis and critically review the actual and budgeted costs so that if
there are any errors or omissions those are taken care of promptly.

The City Council's approval and acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2020-21 audited
financial report is needed to remain in compliance with local, State and Federal law.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the City Council receive and file the Annual Financial Audit Report
as presented.






City of Bradbury

Bradbury, California

Independent Auditors’ Reports and
Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

,

PUN GROUP

COUNTANTS & ADVISORS







City of Bradbury
Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Table of Contents
Page
Independent Auditors’ Reports:
Report on the Financial STAtEMENES .........cococeeceueeieirerieee ettt ea e ee e s s e ees 1
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing StARAQIAS ..............cc.coocooouivieioeiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee . 5
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
StatemeEnt OF NEt POSIHION . ...ciiiitieceete et ete ettt et e et ereeeae s be e s s se e st e s vt semeeseesaesesesenssneasasssesessssessens 11
StAtEMENT OF ACHVITIES .outreitirierisiereeieecre et e et e et ecetess s se e e s e e eeesea et seseseesesneeseseesesssessessesreseae s 12
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Balanee SHEET .....cuiiuieciieee et ces et e ettt ettt e e s et e st e et e e e een e st t e et eeeeseeseeseereseeeenseeeeeeneas 14
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement 0f Net POSITION ......cooviiueereereeeeres e eeeeeeeeee e eeeee e e ee e e eeeeseeenas 17
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............ooueueeeeeceeeeceeeeeeessrennns 18
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide
StAtEIMENT OF A CH VITIES c.veeuresteieeerteiteeee ettt reeiee e sas e et esee st e e e eeaseseseaeeneeseeseeeseseeesseseeneesen 20
Notes to the Basic FINancial STAEMENTS ......ccoveuievecerereii e e sttt sseeeeeeeseeeesseeeeseeeeeseeresnssnessassssssssesenes 23
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):
Budgetary Comparison Schedules:
GENETAL FUNA ..ottt ettt et te et vt sm et e ee e e et e ee et eee e eesene s e emeseemsssaseesesnsseen 47
Utility Users Tax (UUT) Special REVENUE FUNA .........c.ooeueeeeieeeee ettt e eeeeees s ere e sreneaens 48
Citizens' Option for Public Safety (COPS) Special Revenue Fund ............coeeveieoreeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen. 49
Public Transportation Fund (Prop A) Special Revenue FUnd ......o.o.oveueeeeoeeeeeeeeee e eeeae e eeen 50
Budgetary INFOrmation.........c.cc.ouriiiriirrieieteeete ettt s e s s st ne s s tee s ee e s ee e 51
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ...........oeveeeeennn... 52

Schedule of the City's Contributions = PENSIONS .....ccvruruiueuerreeriiicectctccscceeeeceeecaee e e e seeeseseseseseeasenans 54



City of Bradbury
Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Table of Contents (Continued)

Supplementary Information:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Combining Balance SHEEt ...........cccocuiieuiurieeenirieircceet ettt ettt sttt be st e s s s sesenns 60

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes i FUnd BalanCes.......c.cccuriericeineeeirir ettt essesecsenssesesnese e eens s osesssnnsssesassssssasens 64

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
County Park Grant Special FUN .........ccoeoirreinieiininicet ettt st et ese st es e et e s s s eneanes 68
Measure R Special REVENUE FUNA ..ottt ses et s s saea 69
STPL Special ReVENUE FUNA ....c.oiiimriiiieeere ettt es e as s eae et e se st e e re e s s snanes 70
Recycling Grant Special ReEVenue Fund ..........ccoereeenreneceee et ee e ann 71
Fire Grant Special ReEVenue FUN.....cc.ooooiriienierierc et e ettt e ne e e are s e 72
Measure M Special Revenue FUNd ......uociicoeririneeeeeee ettt ese e ee e r e e nas 73
TDA Special Revenue FUN .....c.o.ciiiieiertrcerir ettt et s e p e 74
Gas Tax Special ReVenUE FUNA ......c..oveciiiieiiirinieite ettt setees s st eee e ee s ens e aenes 75
Proposition C Special Revenue FUNd .......c.co oo scensrsne e st ressnece et es e beseesenens 76
SB 1 Gas Tax Special Revenue FUNd ... es s eneeo 77
Measure W Special Revenue FUNQ ..ot es et ne st re s 78
Sewer Special Revenue FUNA ...ttt e se e eae s s 79

Schedule of Findings and QUESHIONEd COSLS .....cccvueuierireeieeeieirtceeeeeieteeenssresane s eseessrssesssstssesssbe et sesstsanems e enaeemene 81



K@ Plin crOUP

ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS

200 E. Sandpointe Avenue, Suite 600 0

Santa Ana, California92707

WWw.pungroup.cpa a
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Bradbury
Bradbury, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bradbury, California (the “City”), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as
of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for

twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

000
L




To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Bradbury

Bradbury, California

Page 2

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary Comparison
Schedules, the Schedules of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilities and Related Ratios, and the
Schedule of the City’s Contributions - Pensions on pages 47 through 55 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Bradbury

Bradbury, California

Page 3

Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America required to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements

is not affected by this missing information.
Suppiementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The Combining and Individual Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Combining and
Individual Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Combining and Individual Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements are fairly stated
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 21, 2023, on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Santa Ana, California
August 21, 2023




This page intentionally left blank.




K@ Pl crouP

ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS

200 E. Sandpointe Avenue, Suite 600
Santa Ana, California92707
WWWw.pungroup.cpa

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Bradbury
Bradbury, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bradbury, California (the “City™), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 21, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

000



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Bradbury

Bradbury, California

Page 2

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City’s Reponses to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s response to the
findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The
City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

W@W’Lﬁo

Santa Ana, California
August 21, 2023




BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




This page intentionally left blank.




GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




This page intentionally left blank.

10



City of Bradbury

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows of resources

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred inflows of resources

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

11

P atry asm b ]
Governmental

Activities

$ 5,422,324
6,966

188,013

179

5,617,482

32,129

198,323
3,376,734

————————————————

3,575,057
3,607,186

—————————

9,224,668

D — - Dt

97,747
97,747

117,317
300,572

417,889
417,889

41,007
41,007

3,575,057
312,467
4,975,995

3 8,863,519

l!




City of Bradbury

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues

RS o

Net (Expense)

Operating Capital Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Change in
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Position
Governmental activities:
General government $ 723,526 $ 426,308 $ 3,653 $ (293,565)
Public safety 235,307 - 263,106 27,799
Public works 155,189 53,094 162,936 60,849
Parks and recreation 43,311 - (43,311)
Total governmental activities $ 1,157,333 $ 479,402 $ 429,695 (248,228)
General Revenues:
Property taxes 539,153
Sales taxes 2,832
Franchise taxes 126,129
Motor vehicle in lieu 146,411
Busines license 26,301
Use of money and property (27,804)
Miscellaneous 12,759
Total general revenues 825,781
Change in net position 577,553
Net Position:
Beginning of year, as restated (Note 12) 8,285,966
End of year $ 8,863,519

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

12

lI




GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13




City of Bradbury
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022
Major Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Public
General Transportation
Fund Utility Users Tax COPS Fund (Prop A)
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 4,178,342 $ 590,323 $ 352,399 $ 28,054
Accounts receivable 6,966 - - -
Taxes receivable 187,600 - - -
Prepaid items 179 - - -
Due from other funds 5,860 - - -
Total assets $ 4,378,947 $ 590,323 $ 352,399 $ 28,054
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 81,717 $ - $ - $ -
Unearned revenues - - 294,909 -
Due to other funds - - - -
Total liabilities 81,717 - 294,909 -
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue 134,949 - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 134,949 - - -
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 179 - - -
Restricted 1,032 - 57,490 28,054
Committed - 590,323 - -
Assigned 1,000,000 - - -
Unassigned 3,161,070 - - -
Total fund balances 4,162,281 590,323 57,490 28,054
Total liabilities, deferred inflows $ 4,378,947 $ 590,323 $ 352,399 $ 28,054

of resources and fund balances

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
14




City of Bradbury
Balance Sheet (Continued)
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid items

Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenues
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

15

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
$ 273,206 $ 5,422,324

- 6,966

413 188,013

- 179

- 5,860

$ 273,619 $ 5,623,342
$ 35,600 $ 117,317
5,663 300,572

5,860 5,860

47,123 423,749

- 134,949

- 134,949

- 179

225,891 312,467

605 590,928

- 1,000,000

- 3,161,070

226,496 5,064,644

$ 273,619 $ 5,623,342




This page intentionally left blank.

16



City of Bradbury
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 5,064,644

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the government-wide statement of net position were different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities were not financial resources and therefore, were not reported in
governmental funds.

Capital assets, nondepreciable $ 198,323
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 3,376,734 3,575,057

Net pension liabilities and the related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are not due
and payable in the current period or not available for current expenditures and are not reported in the governmental
fund financial statements:

Pension related deferred outflows of resources 97,747
Net pension liability (asset) 32,129
Pension related deferred inflows of resources (41,007)

Revenue reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds when it is not received soon enough after year-
end for current expenditures. The availability criteria does not apply to the Government-Wide Financial Statements

and, therefore, the revenue is recognized when eligibility requirements are met and earned. 134,949
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 8,863,519

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
17




City of Bradbury

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Other revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year, as restated (Note 12)
End of year

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Major Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Public
General Transportation
Fund Utility Users Tax COPS Fund (Prop A)
$ 818,178 $ - $ - $ -
161,372 - - -
(31,219) 4,446 2,742 62
141,183 - 102,117 26,566
290,891 - - -
17,926 - - -
1,398,331 4,446 104,859 26,628
885,087 - - -
133,190 - 102,117 -
- 16,128 - -
43,311 - - -
1,061,588 16,128 102,117 -
336,743 (11,682) 2,742 26,628
667,520 - - -
667,520 - - -
1,004,263 (11,682) 2,742 26,628
3,158,018 602,005 54,748 1,426
$ 4,162,281 $ 590,323 $ 57,490 $ 28,054

18




City of Bradbury

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Other revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year, as restated (Note 12)

End of year

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

19

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

$ - $ 818,178
- 161,372
3,881 (20,088)

181,458 451,324
20,103 310,994

- 17,926

205,442 1,739,706
885,087

- 235,307

87,425 103,553

- 43,311

81,126 81,126

168,551 1,348,384
36,891 391,322

- 667,520
(667,520) (667,520)
(667,520) -
(630,629) 391,322
857,125 4,673,322

$ 226,496 $ 5,064,644




City of Bradbury
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds: $ 391,322
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in governmental
funds:
Capital outlay $ 81,126
Depreciation (72,645) 8,481
Certain pension expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds, net of contribution made after measurement date in the
amount of $30,103. 182,570
Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized as revenue in the Statement of
Activities. (4,820)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 577,553

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

20




NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21



This page intentionally left blank.

22




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 1 — Reporting Entity

The City of Bradbury, California (the "City"), was incorporated on July 26, 1957. The City provides a broad range of
services to its citizens, including general government, public safety, streets, sanitation, and parks and recreation.
Many of the municipal governmental functions of the City are provided by special districts. Examples of some of
these special districts, which usually encompass areas larger than the City itself, are the Fire Protection District, the
Library District, the Sewer Maintenance District and the County Flood Control District. Certain other governmental
functions are paid for by the City, but performed by Los Angeles County departments under contract. Some of the
contracts now in effect are for police protection, street maintenance, and tax collection services.

The City is a general law city operating under the City Council/City Manager form of government. The financial
reporting entity of the City is comprised of various funds. The accompanying financial statements include those of the
City and contain only the funds of the City.

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The primary criteria for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity are the
governing body’s financial accountability and a financial benefit or burden relationship and whether it is misleading
to exclude. A primary government is financially accountable and shares a financial benefit or burden relationship, if it
appoints a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and it is able to impose its will on the organization, or
if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on the primary government. A primary government may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent on the primary government regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing
board, a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board, and there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
primary government.

There are no component units for the City that meet the criterja for blended or discrete presentation.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) as applied to governmental agencies. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. City resources are allocated to account for in individual
funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The City's government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities.
These statements present summaries of governmental activities for the City. The City does not have any business-

type activities; therefore, only governmental activities are reported.

23



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30,2022

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The government-wide financial statements are presented on an "economic resources” measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities are included in the accompanying
statement of net position. The statement of activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are recognized in the
period in which the liability is incurred.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories: (1) charges for
services, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions.

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. The transfers in
and out, and due to and due from other funds activities have been eliminated.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for all major governmental funds and nonmajor funds in aggregate. An accompanying
schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net position as presented in these statements to
the net position presented in the government-wide financial statements. The City has presented all major funds
that met the qualifications for major fund reporting.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources” measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included on
the balance sheets. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance presents increases
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they
become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both “measurable” and “available”. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period as soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to
accrual by the City, are property taxes, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, other taxes, and grant revenues.
Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

The reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements are presented
to explain the differences.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax revenues and other receipts not
allocated by law or contractual agreement to other funds are accounted for in this fund. Expenditures of this
fund include general operating costs not paid through other funds. The General Fund is used to account for all
activities of the City not accounted for in some other fund.

24



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of . Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Utility Users Tax Special Revenue Fund is used to record the receipt and disbursement of funds received
from the utility users tax assessed by the City. When it was approved by voters, it was specified to be
separated into its own fund for the purpose of complying with the Clean Water Act. The fund is used to
preserve the City’s essential municipal services, maintain a safe and quality community and meet the
obligations for State and Federal Mandates.

Citizens' Option for Public Safety (“COPS”) Special Revenue Fund — is used to account for the receipt and
disbursement of funds allocated by the State of California and must be used for front line law enforcement
expenditures.

Public Transportation (Prop A) Special Revenue Fund — is used to account for the receipt and disbursement
of funds received from the motor vehicle registration fee collected by the State of California and must be used
for programs that reduce motor vehicle emissions. The City has used these funds for the purchase of
alternative fuel vehicles and for enhancements to the City’s website.

C. Cash and Investments
Investments are reported at fair value.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal
year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon
the liquidation, maturity, or sale of investments.

The City pools cash investments of all funds. Each fund’s share in this pool is displayed in the accompanying
financial statements as cash and investments. Investment income earned from pooled investments is allocated to
those various funds based on each fund’s average cash and investment balance.

Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, for deposits and investment risks in the following areas:

> Interest Rate Risk
> Credit Risk

o Overall

o Custodial Credit Risk

o Concentration of Credit Risk
> Foreign Currency Risk

In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and investments,
highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures.

25




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

2

D.

ote 2 — Summary of Si

Fair Value Measurement

U.S. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosures about
fair value measurement. Investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the financial statements,
are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value.

Levels of inputs are as follows:

The three levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy are described below:

> Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at
the measurement date.

» Level 2 — Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets and
liabilities through corroboration with market data at the measurement date.

> Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants
would use in pricing the assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

Receivables

Receivables include such items as taxes, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, miscellaneous
accounts receivable, and interest receivable. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been established, as the City
believes all amounts are considered to be collectible in the normal course of business.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was not available.
The City's capitalization policy is $5,000 and above for machinery and equipment; $10,000 and above for
building improvements; $20,000 and above for buildings; and $50,000 and above for infrastructure assets. Capital
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Structures and improvements 50 Years

Machinery and Equipment 7-10 Years

Infrastructure:
Roadways - Pavement 25 Years
Roadways - Signs 10 Years
Sewer - Existing Pipe 75 Years
Fence 50 Years
Curbs and Gutters 100 Years
Bridge 75 Years

Interfund Activity

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).

Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated employee-related costs when earned
(or estimated to be earned) by the employee. All full-time employees accrue vacation leave according to their
years of service. Unused sick days are forfeited at termination or resignation; therefore, there is no liability for
sick leave at June 30, 2022.

26



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies (Continued)

L

J.

Pensions

The City contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the plans and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

Valuation Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Date June 30,2021
Measurement Period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in pension
expense systematically over time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain
or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source
of the gain or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized straight-line over 5 years. All
other amounts are amortized straight-line over the average expected remaining service lives of all members that are
provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of the beginning of the measurement period.

Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position and the balance sheet — governmental funds reports separate sections for Deferred
Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable.

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that apply to
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position/fund balances) that
apply to future periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as a revenue until that time.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — This amount indicates the portion of fund balance which cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form, such as prepaid items, inventories or loans receivable, or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact, such as the principal portion of an endowment.

Restricted — This amount indicates the portion of fund balance which has been restricted a) externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — This amount indicates the portion of fund balance which can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to formal resolution or ordinance of the City Council. The City Council is considered the highest
authority for the City. Adoption of a resolution by the City Council is required to commit resources or to
rescind the commitment. .

27



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

,
=
2
[\
1
w
g
£
i3
5)9
<3
o
=3
w
Lo
93
15
13
k=
(e}
W
]
=N
b g

ccounting Policies (Continued)

K. Fund Balances (Continued)

L.

Assigned — This amount indicates the portion of fund balance which is constrained by the City’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but is neither restricted nor committed. The City Manager is authorized by the
City Council to determine and define the amount of assigned fund balance.

Unassigned — This amount indicates the portion of fund balance that does not fall into one of the above
categories. This category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them. The general fund is
the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds it is not
appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance amount. However, in governmental funds other than
the general fund, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in
that fund.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes where only unrestricted fund balances are available, the City uses
the unrestricted resources in the following order: committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Net Position
In the government-wide financial statements, net position balances are classified as follows:

Investment in Capital Assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those
assets.

Unrestricted — This component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of investment in
capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

When expenses are incurred for purposes in which both restricted and unrestricted components of net position are
available, the City’s policy is to apply the restricted component of net position first.

Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes in California are levied in accordance with Article XIIIB of the State Constitution at one percent of
county-wide assessed valuations. This one percent is allocated pursuant to state law to the appropriate units of
local government. Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied, provided

that the revenue is collected in the current period or will be collected within 60 days thereafter.

The following dates relate to property tax levies and collections:

Lien Date January 1

Levy Date July 1

Due Dates November 1 and February 1
Collection Dates December 10 and April 10

28



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

N. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

O. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City has implemented the following new GASB Pronouncement:

GASB Statement No. 87 — In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB Statement No. 87), to
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It
also establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings
of the right to use an underlying asset. Implementation of this Statement did not have a significant effect on the
City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 89 — In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred
before the End of a Construction Period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was
accounted for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre~November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a
business—type activity or enterprise fund. Implementation of this Statement did not have a significant effect on the
City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 92 — In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The primary
objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. Implementation of this Statement did not have a
significant effect on the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 93 — In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered
Rates. Some governments have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on
an interbank offered rate (IBOR)}—most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of
global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting
governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference
rates, by either changing the reference rate or adding or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.
The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that
result from the replacement of an IBOR. Implementation of this Statement did not have a significant effect on the
City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

29



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
O. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements (i Continued)

GASB Statement No. 97 — In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — An
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary
objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary
component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the
primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans
(other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and 3)
enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. Implementation of this Statement did not have a
significant effect on the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Note 3 — Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Petty cash $ 300
Demand deposits 1,355,945
Investments with LAIF 3,322,079
Investments in certificates of deposit 744,000

Total $ 5,422,324

A. Deposits

The carrying amount of the City’s demand deposits was $1,355,945 at June 30, 2022. The bank balances at that
date were $1,409,950, the total amount of which was collateralized or insured with accounts held by the pledging
financial institutions in the City’s name as discussed below.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the City's
cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner shall
have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus,
collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the City's name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City's cash deposits. California law also
allows institutions to secure City’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150%
of the City’s total cash deposits. The City may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are fully
insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). The City, however, has not
waived the collateralization requirements.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds required to be held by
fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures, if applicable. Interest income earned on pooled cash and
investments is allocated on an accounting period basis to the various funds based on the period-end cash and
investment balances.

30




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

B. Investments

Under the provisions of the City’s investment policy and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California
Government Code, the City may invest in the type of investments listed in the table below. The table also

identifies certain provisions intended to limit the City’s exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A No Limit $ 40,000,000
U.S. Government Obligations 5 Years No Limit No Limit
Certificates of Deposit 360 Days No Limit No Limit

C. Fair Value Measurement

At June 30, 2022, investments are reported at fair value. The following table presents the fair value measurement

of investments on recurring basis and the levels within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at June 30, 2022:

Measurement Input
Investment Type (Level 2) Uncategorized
Local Agency Investment Fund $ - % 3322079 @
Negotiable certificates of deposit 744,000 O -
Total $ 744,000 $ 3322079

(O Price based on market prices from Intercontinental Exchange.
@ Cash and cash equivalent valued at amortized cost.

D. Risk Disclosures

Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the
City’s investment policy limits investments to a maximum maturity of five years.

At June 30, 2022, the City had the following investment maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Amount Less than 1 1to2 2to3
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 3,322,079 $ 3,322,079 $ - $ -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 744,000 247,000 - 497,000
Total $ 4,066,079 $ 3,569,079 $ - $ 497,000

31




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
D. Risk Disclosures (Continued)

Credit Risk — State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two ratings issued
by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. It is the City’s policy to limit its investments in these
investment types to the top rating issued by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investor Service. At June 30, 2022,
the City’s credit risks, expressed on a percentage basis, were as follows:

Credit Quality Distribution for Securities
with Credit Exposure as a Percentage of Total Investments

Moody's S&P's % of Investments
Credit Credit with Interest
Investment Type Rating Rating Rate Risk
Local Agency Investment Fund Not Rated Not Rated 81.70%
Negotiable certificates of deposit Not Rated Not Rated 18.30%
Total 100.00%

Custodial Risk — For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer), the City will not be able to recover the value of
its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

Concentration of credit risk — The City’s investment policy does not allow for investments in any one institution
that is in excess of 5% of the City’s total portfolio, except for LAIF and certificate of deposit, where there is no
limit. The City’s certificate of deposit in the amount of $744,000 represented 18.3% of total City investments.

E. Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”)

The City is a participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the
oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The City’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2022 included

a portion of the pool funds invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities, which included the
following:

Structured Notes: debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics

(coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have
embedded forwards or options.

Asset-Backed Securities: generally, mortgage-backed securities that entitle their purchasers to receive a
share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of
mortgages (for example, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2022, the City had $3,332,079 invested in LAIF, which had invested 1.88% of the pool investment
funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. The investment in LAIF is reported at amortized cost.

32



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Due To and Due From

At June 30, 2022 the City had the following due to and from other funds:

LDue From Other Funds_]
L Due To Other Funds ] General Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Fund $ 5,860

The due to and due from is short-term borrowing to cover a cash deficit.
Transfers In and Out

During the year ended June 30, 2022 the City had the following transfers in and out from other funds:

I Transfer Out I

Sewer Speical

Transfer In Revenue Fund
General Fund  § 667,520
Total $ 667,520

The purpose of the transfers was to transfer funds to cover budgeted projects.

33




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 5 — Capital Assets

The following schedule shows changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance
July 1,2021 Additions Deletions Reclassification July 1, 2022
Nondepreciable Assets:
Land $ 117,197 § - 3 - $ - $ 117,197
Construction in progress 719,477 81,126 - (719,477) 81,126
Total Nondepreciable Assets 836,674 81,126 - (719,477) 198,323
Depreciable Assets:
Structures and improvements 859,900 - - - 859,900
M achinery and equipment 101,709 - - - 101,709
Infrastructure 2,981,552 - - 719,477 3,701,029
Total Depreciable Assets 3,943,161 - - 719,477 4,662,638
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Structures and improvements (182,684) (17,198) - - (199,882)
Machinery and equipment (79,161) (3,811) - - (82,972)
Infrastructure (951,414) (51,636) - - (1,003,050)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,213,259) (72,645) - - (1,285,904)
Total Depreciable Assets, Net 2,729,902 (72,645) - 719,477 3,376,734
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 3,566,576 $ 8,481 § - 8 - $ 3,575,057

Depreciation expense was charged in the following functions in the statement of activities:

General government $ 21,009
Public works 51,636
Total $ 72,645

Note 6 — Self-Insurance with Joint Powers Authority

A.

Description of Seif-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement

The City is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (the “Authority”). The Authority is
composed of 124 California public entities and is organized under & joint powers agreement pursuant to
California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs
for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for group
purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. The California JPIA began covering claims of its
members in 1978. Each member government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of
Directors. The Board operates through a nine-member Executive Committee.

Primary Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority

Each member pays an annual contribution at the beginning of the coverage period. A retrospective adjustment is
then conducted annually thereafter, for coverage years 2012-13 and prior. Coverage years 2013-14 and forward
are not subject to routine annual retrospective adjustment. The total funding requirement for primary self-
insurance programs is based on an actuarial analysis. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on payroll
and claims history, relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool.

34




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 6 — Self-Insurance with Joint Powers Authority (Continued)
B. Primary Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority (Continued)

Primary Liability Program

Claims are pooled separately between police and general government exposures. (1) The payroll of each member
is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member,
which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first
layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the
pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from
$100,000 to $500,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs
within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from $500,000 to $50 million, are distributed based on the outcome of
cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.

The overall coverage limit for each member, including all layers of coverage, is $50 million per occurrence.
Subsidence losses also have a $50 million per occurrence limit. The coverage structure is composed of a
combination of pooled self-insurance, reinsurance, and excess insurance. Additional information concerning the
coverage structure is available on the Authority’s website: https:/cjpia.org/coverage/risk-sharing-pools/.

Primary Workers’ Compensation Program

Claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and general government exposures. (1) The
payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is
determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses
within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $75,000 for each occurrence and is
evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses
includes incurred costs from $75,000 to $200,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the
pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from $200,000 to statutory limits are
distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.

For 2021-22 the Authority’s pooled retention is $1 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to statutory limits
under California Workers’ Compensation Law. Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $1
million. Coverage from $1 million to $5 million is purchased through reinsurance policies, and Employer’s
Liability losses from $5 million to $10 million are pooled among members.

C. Purchased Insurance

Pollution Legal Liability Insurance

The City participates in the pollution legal liability insurance program which is available through the Authority.
The policy covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the
City. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a $250,000 deductible. The Authority has an aggregate limit of
$20 million.

Property Insurance

The City participates in the all-risk property protection program of the Authority. This insurance protection is
underwritten by several insurance companies. The City property is currently insured according to a schedule of
covered property submitted by the City to the Authority. The City property currently has all-risk property
insurance protection in the amount of $97,937,818. There is a $10,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-
emergency vehicle insurance which has a $2,500 deductible.

35



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 6 — Self-Insurance with Joint Powers Authority (Continued)
C. Purchased Insurance (Continued)

Crime Insurance

The City of Bradbury purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $3,000,000 with a $2,500 deductible.
The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority.

D. Adequacy of Protection

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or
judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were also no significant reductions in pooled or
insured liability coverage in 2021-2022.

Note 7 — Deferred Compensation Plan

The City had made available to its employees a deferred compensation plan, whereby employees authorize the City to
withhold funds from salaries to be invested in individual investment accounts. Funds may be withdrawn by
participants upon termination of employment or retirement. The City makes no contributions under the Plan. The
amount held by trustees for the employees at June 30, 2022 was $37,114. The Trustee invests compensation deferred
by employees in various investment options selected by the employee and retains title to all accumulated funds until
they are paid to the employee or other beneficiary. Plan assets were established in the trust arrangement specified by
Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g). The plan assets are not reflected on the City’s financial statements.

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

The City contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS™), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by State statute and City ordinance. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may
be obtained from their website at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications.

Emplovees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2020, the valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Miscellaneous

Classic PEPRA
Active employees 2 1
Transferred and terminated employees 6 -
Retired Employ ees and Beneficiaries 1 -
Total 9 1

36



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
Benefit Provided

CalPERS provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. A classic CalPERS member becomes eligible for Service Retirement upon attainment of
age 60 with at least 5 years of credited service. PEPRA miscellaneous members become eligible for service retirement
upon attainment of age 62 with at least 5 years of service. The service retirement benefit is a monthly allowance equal
to the product of the benefit factor, years of service, and final compensation. The final compensation is the monthly
average of the member's highest 36 full-time equivalent monthly pay. Retirement benefits for miscellaneous
employees are calculated as 2.0% of the average final 60-month compensation.

Participant is eligible for non-industrial disability retirement if becomes disabled and has at least 5 years of credited
service. There is no special age requirement. The standard non-industrial disability retirement benefit is a monthly
allowance equal to 1.8 percent of final compensation, multiplied by service. Industrial disability benefits are not
offered to miscellaneous employees.

An employee's beneficiary may receive the basic death benefit if the employee dies while actively employed. The
employee must be actively employed with the City to be eligible for this benefit. An employee's survivor who is
eligible for any other pre-retirement death benefit may choose to receive that death benefit instead of this basic death
benefit. The basic death benefit is a lump sum in the amount of the employee's accumulated contributions, where
interest is currently credited at 7.5 percent per year, plus a lump sum in the amount of one month's salary for each
completed year of current service, up to a maximum of six months' salary. For purposes of this benefit, one month's
salary is defined as the member's average monthly full-time rate of compensation during the 12 months preceding
death.

Upon the death of a retiree, a one-time lump sum payment of $500 will be made to the retiree's designated survivor(s),
or to the retiree's estate.

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee’s retirement allowance. Beginning the
second calendar year after the year of retirement, retirement and survivor allowances will be annually adjusted on a
compound basis by 2 percent.

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (“PERL”) requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on
the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’
annual actuarial valuation process. The Public agency cost-sharing plans covered by either the Safety risk pools, the
Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the
risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2021, the active employee and employer’s contribution rates for classic
miscellaneous plan were 7.000% and 8.794%, respectively; and for PEPRA miscellaneous plan were 6.75% and
7.732% of annual payroll, respectively.

37



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pension

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

The June 30, 2020 were rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2021 total pension liabilities, based on the following
actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ M embership Data for all Funds.
Post Retirement Benefit Increase The lesser of contract COLA or 2.50% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance

floor on purchasing power applies, 2.50% thereafter.

'The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the
period from 1997 to 2015. Pre- retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016
published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report
from December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building -block method in
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and
the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set
equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. The
expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

Assumed
Asset Real Return  Real Return
Asset Class' Allocation Years 1-107 Years 11+

Global Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.00% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 0.00% -0.92%

100.00%

(1) In the System’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term
Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.

(2) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.

(3) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

38



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)
Pension Liabilities (Asset), Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pension (Continued)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Chanees in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of the Plan as of the measurement
date at June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15%)
or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Discount Rate Current Discount Discount Rate
-1% (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) + 1% (8.15%)
Miscellaneous $ (76,731)  § (32,129) § 4,743

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detail information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial
report and can be obtained from CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Pension Expense

The following table shows the plan’s proportionate share of the risk pool collective net pension liability over the
measurement period:

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary Net  Plan Net Pension

Liability Position Liability/(Asset)
Miscellaneous
Balance at: 6/30/20 (Valuation date) $ 1,173,067 $ 1,054,159 $ 118,908
Balance at: 6/30/21 (M easurement date) 1,257,769 1,289,898 (32,129)
Net Changes during 2020-21 $ 84,702 $ 235,739 $ (151,037)

39



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pension (Continued)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (Continued)

The following is the approach established by the plan actuary to allocate the net pension liability and pension expense
to the individual employers within the risk pool.

(1) In determining a cost-sharing plan’s proportionate share, total amounts of liabilities and assets are first
calculated for the risk pool as a whole on the valuation date (June 30, 2020). The risk pool’s fiduciary net
position (“FNP”) subtracted from its total pension liability (“TPL”) determines the net pension liability
(“NPL”) at the valuation date.

(2) Using standard actuarial roll forward methods, the risk pool TPL is then computed at the measurement date
(June 30, 2021). Risk pool FNP at the measurement date is then subtracted from this number to compute the
NPL for the risk pool at the measurement date. For purposes of FNP in this step and any later reference
thereto, the risk pool’s FNP at the measurement date denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at June 30, 2021
less the sum of all additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by all employers during the
measurement period (2020-2021).

(3) The individual plan’s TPL, FNP and NPL are also calculated at the valuation date. TPL is allocated based on
the rate plan’s share of the actuarial accrued liability. FNP is allocated based on the rate plan’s share of the
market value assets.

(4) Two ratios are created by dividing the plan’s individual TPL and FNP as of the valuation date from (3) by the
amounts in step (1), the risk pool’s total TPL and FNP, respectively.

(5) The plan’s TPL as of the Measurement Date is equal to the risk pool TPL generated in (2) multiplied by the
TPL ratio generated in (4). The plan’s FNP as of the Measurement Date is equal to the FNP generated in (2)
multiplied by the FNP ratio generated in (4) plus any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions
made by the employer on behalf of the plan during the measurement period.

(6) The plan’s NPL at the Measurement Date is the difference between the TPL and FNP calculated in (5).

Deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expenses are allocated based on the City’s
share of contributions during the measurement period.

The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Plan
June 30, 2020 0.00109%
June 30, 2021 -0.00059%

Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00169%
—-—————

40



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pension (Continued)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension credit of $149,755 for the miscellaneous plan.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference between projected and
actual earnings is amortized over 5-years straight line. All other amounts are amortized straight-line over the average
expected remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive and retired) as of the
beginning of the measurement period.

The expected average remaining service lifetime (“EARSL”) is calculated by dividing the total future service years by
the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the risk pool. The EARSL for risk pool for the
2020-2021 measurement period is 3.7 years, which was obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the
sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active,
inactive, and retired).

At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Miscellaneous Plan

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows

of Resources of Resources

Pension contribution made after measurement date $ 30,103 $ -
Changes of Assumptions - -
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience - (3,604)
Actual earnings in excess of expected earning

on pension investments 28,044 -
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 39,600 -
Difference between employ er's actual contributions

and employer's proportionate share of contributions - (37,403)

Total $ 97,747 $ (41,007)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, deferred outflows of resources related to pensions was $30,103, resulting from
City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the collective net
pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2023.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30,  Miscellaneous Plan

2023 $ 4,109
2024 6,418
2025 8,358
2026 7,752
2027 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 26,637

41



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 9 — Class

At June 30, 2022, fund balances are classified in the governmental funds as follows:

M ajor Speical Revenue Funds

Public Nonmajor
General Transportation ~ Governmental
Fund uuT COPS Fund (Prop A) Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 179  $ - 8 - 3 - $ - 8 179
Restricted:
Covid 19 1,032 - - - - 1,032
COPS - - 57,490 - - 57,490
Gas Tax - - - - 784 784
Proposition C - - - - 17,709 17,709
Country Park Grant - - - - 9,233 9,233
Proposition A - - - 28,054 - 28,054
Measure R - - - - 83,105 83,105
STPL - - - - 1,053 1,053
Recycling - - - - 25,746 25,746
Fire Grant - - - - 6,300 6,300
Measure M - - - - 60,308 60,808
TDA - - - - 739 739
SB 1 Gas Tax - - - - 9,550 9,550
Measure W - - - - 10,864 10,864
Total Restricted 1,032 - 57,490 28,054 225,891 312,467
Committed:
Sewer improvements
and operations - - - - 605 605
Clean water - 590,323 - - - 590,323
Total Committed - 590,323 - - 605 590,928
Assigned:
Economic uncertainties 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Unassigned 3,161,070 - - - - 3,161,070
Total Fund Balances $ 4162281 § 590,323 § 57,490 §$ 28,054 § 226,496 $ 5,064,644

In order to prudently protect its fiscal solvency, the City maintains a minimum assigned fund balance of $1,000,000

as reserves for economic uncertainties. The reserve is important in order to:

* Ensure that the City is able to respond to the challenges of a changing environment.
* Reduce the budgetary impacts of bad economic times.

* Insulate the City from actions of the State that may result in reduction of revenues.
* Mitigate exposure to natural disasters or other catastrophic events.

* Demonstrate continued creditworthiness to bond rating agencies and the financial community.

42




City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 9 — Classification of Fund Balances (Continued)
The nature and purpose of each reserve is described below:

A. Infrastructure - funds set aside for one-time infrastructure expenditures relating to City owned infrastructure
repairs such as streets, sewers or other City facilities.

B. Economic changes, natural disaster or other catastrophic events - funds set aside for local disasters,
emergencies, and / or unexpected economic changes that adversely impact the City's financial position.

This reserve was not formally adopted by the City Council.

Note 10 — Other Required Disclosures

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Excess
Expenditures over
Appropriations Expenditures Appropriations

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

TDA Special Revenue Fund
Public works $ - 8 5519 § (5,519)

The excess was due to higher than anticipated expenditures that exceeded the approved appropriations. The Council
was informed of the excesses through monthly reports, and that the expenditures were higher than yearly budgeted
amounts due to unforeseen expenses. However, the Council did not formally increase the budgetary appropriations
since the revenues were higher than expected and they exceeded the total expenditures.

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies
A. Grants

The City participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs are subject to further examination by
the grantors. Expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, if any, cannot be determined at this
time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

B. Litigation

The City has not been named in any lawsuit that has a potentially material effect on its financial position. There is
one matter involving a threat of litigation, which has been accrued in the City’s financial position. While the
outcome of this matter if litigation is commenced is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management of
the City, based in part on the advice of counsel, the resolution of this matter is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of the City.

43



City of Bradbury
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Note 12 — Prior Period Adjustments
The General Fund beginning fund balance was restated from $3,286,001 to $3,158,018 and the Governmental

Activity beginning net position was also restated from $8,413,949 to $8,285,966 due to correction of American
Rescue Plan Act revenue recognition.

44




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

45

o



This page intentionally left blank.

46




City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Other revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:

General Fund

Beginning of year, as restated (Note 12)

End of year

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 816,764 816,764 $ 818,178 $ 1,414
161,000 161,000 161,372 372
50,650 50,650 (31,219) (81,869)
112,200 112,200 141,183 28,983
314,835 314,835 290,891 (23,944)
7,720 7,720 17,926 10,206
1,463,169 1,463,169 1,398,331 (64,838)
983,395 983,395 885,087 98,308
141,940 141,940 133,190 8,750
51,000 51,000 43,311 7,689
1,176,335 1,176,335 1,061,588 114,747
286,834 286,834 336,743 49,909
665,476 665,476 667,520 2,044
665,476 665,476 667,520 2,044
$ 952,310 952,310 1,004,263 $ 51,953
3,158,018
$ 4,162,281

47




City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 4,446 $ (554)
5,000 5,000 4,446 (554)
90,000 90,000 16,128 73,872
90,000 90,000 16,128 73,872
$ (85,000) § (85,000) (11,682) § 73,318
602,005
$ 590,323

48



City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Citizens' Gption for Pubiic Safety (COPS) Speciai Revenue Fund

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,742 $ 242
Intergovernmental 100,000 100,000 102,117 2,117
Total revenues 102,500 102,500 104,859 2,359
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 106,500 106,500 102,117 4,383
Total expenditures 106,500 106,500 102,117 4,383
Net change in fund balance $ (4,000) $ (4,000) 2,742 $ 6,742
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 54,748
End of year $ 57,490

49



City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Original ______Final Actual Final Budget _
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 200 $ 200 $ 62 $ (138)
Intergovernmental 25,000 25,000 26,566 1,566
Total revenues 25,200 25,200 26,628 1,428
Net change in fund balance $ 25,200 $ 25,200 26,628 $ 1,428
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 1,426
End of year $ 28,054

50



City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The City adopts an annual budget prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting for the governmental funds. The City
Manager or his designee is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between the accounts of any department. Revisions that alter the
total appropriations of any department or fund must be approved by City Council. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations at the program level.

51



City of Bradbury

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

California Public Employees’ Retirement System ("CalPERS") Miscellaneous Plan

Measurement Date 6/30/2015" June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30,2018 June 30, 2019
City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.00256% 0.00077% 0.00077% 0.00070% 0.00089%
§ 175694 § 66,246 $ 76,419 $ 67,418 $ 91,291

City's Covered Payroll 167,611 203,105 185,286 200,481 213,242
City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

as a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll 104.82% 32.62% 41.24% 33.63% 42.81%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position

as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 78.51% 92.47% 92.41% 93.76% 91.53%

! Historical information is presented only for periods after GASB 68 implementation in 2013-14. Additional years of information will be displayed

as it becomes available.

52



City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Last Ten Fiscai Years

California Public Employees' Retirement System ("' CalPERS") Miscellaneous Plan

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021
City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.00109% -0.00059%
City's Proportionate Share of

the Net Pension Liability (assets) $ 118,908 $ (32,129)
City's Covered Payroll 220,732 236,424

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
as a Percentage of Its Covered Payrolt 53.87% -13.59%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position
as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 89.86% 102.55%

53



City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of the City's Contributions - Pensions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Last Ten Fiscal Years

California Public Employees' Retirement System ("' CalPERS") Miscellaneous Plan

Fiscal Year 2014-15" 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 29,107 $ 13,626 § 11,319 § 14550 § 17,974
Contribution in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution” (29,107) (163,293) (11,319) (14,550) (17,974)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - § (149,667) $ - $ - 8 -
Covered Payroll® $ 167611 $ 203105 $ 185286 $ 200481 § 213242

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 17.37% 6.71% 6.11% 7.26% 8.43%

! Historical information is presented only for periods after GASB 68 implementation in 2013-14. Additional years of information will be displayed as
it becomes available.

zPayroll from prior year $236,424 was assumed to increase by 2.75 percent payroll growth assumption from 2020-21 to 2021-22.

Notes to Schedule
Change in Benefit Terms: There were no changes to benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions: In 2021, 2020 and 2019, there were no changes in assumptions. In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were
changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the
discount rate. In 2017, the accounting discount rate reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. In 2016, there were no changes. In 2015, amounts
reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension
plan administrative expense.) In 2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.

54



City of Bradbury
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of the City's Contributions - Pensions (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Last Ten Fiscai Years

California Public Employees' Retirement System (" CalPERS") Miscellaneous Plan

Fiscal Year 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 18,537 $ 24,748  § 30,103
Coniribution in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution (18,537) (24,748) (30,103)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - % -8 -
Covered Payroll $ 220,732 $ 236424 $ 242,926

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 8.40% 10.91% 12.39%

55



This page intentionally left blank.

56



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

57



This page intentionally left blank.

58



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:

County Park Grant Special Revenue Fund - To account for the park grants provided by state and county agencies to build the
recreational park located behind City Hall.

Measure R Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds form Los Angeles County which were
created by a voter approved sales tax in 2008. These funds are allocated by Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) to fund
street projects.

Surface Transportation Program Local (STPL) Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds
received from the State of California through the MTA and must be used for street improvements on certain major streets within the
City.

Recycling Grant Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received from the State of
California for programs that promote the recycling of waste materials.

Fire Grant Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of grant funds received from the U.S. Department
of Forestry for brush clearance.

Measure M Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds form Los Angeles County which were
created by a voter approved sales tax in 2016. These funds are allocated by MTA to fund street projects.

TDA Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and distribution of funds allocated by MTA originating from the
Transportation Development Act, Article 3 for the planning and construction of pedestrian and bicycle facilities.

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of gas tax subventions from the State of California.
Cities are allocated a share of the revenues derived by the State from taxes on gasoline, which must be spent on construction,
improvement and maintenance of public streets and street engineering services.

Proposition C Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of a portion of the % cent sales tax approved
by the voters in 1982 and 1990. Approximately 20% of the monies generated by the tax are returned to local agencies to be used for

public transportation purposes and maintenance of streets “heavily used by public transit”.

SB1 Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received from the Road Repair and
Accountability Act of 2017. These funds must be spent for local streets and roads.

Measure W Special Revenue Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds form Los Angeles County which were
created by a voter approved sales tax in 2016. This is funded by a parcel tax of 2.5 cents per square foot of impermeable areas.

Sewer Special Revenue Fund - To account for assessments collected and projects funded with the assessments.

59



City of Bradbury
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022
Special Revenue Funds
Recycling
County Park Measure R STPL Grant
Grant Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 9,233 $ 83,105 $ 1,053 $ 31,409
Taxes receivable - - - -
Total assets $ 9,233 $ 83,105 $ 1,053 $ 31,409
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ - $ - $ -
Unearned revenues - - - 5,663
Due to other funds - - - -
Total liabilities - - - 5,663

Fund Balances:
Restricted 9,233 83,105 1,053 25,746
Committed - - - -
Total fund balances 9,233 83,105 1,053 25,746
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9,233 $ 83,105 $ 1,053 $ 31,409
(Continued)

60



City of Bradbury
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022
Special Revenue Funds
Fire Grant Measure M TDA Gas Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 12,479 $ 60,808 $ 7 $ 2,350
Taxes receivable - - 413 -
Total assets $ 12,479 $ 60,808 $ 420 $ 2,350
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ - $ - $ 1,566
Unearned revenues - - - -
Due to other funds 6,179 - (319) -
Total liabilities 6,179 - (319) 1,566
Fund Balances:
Restricted 6,300 60,808 739 784
Committed - - -
Total fund balances 6,300 60,808 739 784
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 12,479 $ 60,808 $ 420 $ 2,350

(Continued)

61



City of Bradbury
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022
Special Revenue Funds
Proposition C SB 1 Gas Tax Measure W
Fund Fund Fund Sewer
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 18,414 $ 42,879 $ 10,864 $ 605
Taxes receivable - - - -
Total assets $ 18,414 $ 42,879 $ 10,864 $ 605
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 705 $ 33,329 $ - $ -
Unearned revenues - - - -
Due to other funds - - - -
Total liabilities 705 33,329 - -

Fund Balances:
Restricted 17,709 9,550 10,864 -
Committed 605
Total fund balances 17,709 9,550 10,864 605
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 18,414 $ 42,879 $ 10,864 $ 605
(Continued)

62



City of Bradbury
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022
Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 273,206
Taxes receivable 413
Total assets $ 273,619
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 35,600
Unearned revenues 5,663
Due to other funds 5,860
Total liabilities 47,123

Fund Balances:
Restricted 225,891
Committed 605
Total fund balances 226,496
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 273,619
(Concluded)

63



City of Bradbury
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Special Revenue Fund

County Park Measure R STPL Recycling Grant
Grant Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 68 $ 547 $ 7 $ 47
Intergovernmental - 16,524 - 5,000
Charges for services - - - 20,103
Total revenues 68 17,071 7 25,150
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 68 17,071 7 25,150
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund balances 68 17,071 7 25,150
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 9,165 66,034 1,046 596
End of year $ 9,233 $ 83,105 $ 1,053 $ 25,746
(Continued)

64



City of Bradbury
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Fire Grant Measure M TDA Gas Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES: _
Use of money and property $ - $ 370 $ 17 $ 80
Intergovernmental 16,034 18,699 5,000 27,833
Charges for current services - - - -
Total revenues 16,034 19,069 5,017 27913
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 3,555 - 5,519 27,318
Capital outlay - - - 14,168
Total expenditures 3,555 - 5,519 41,486
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 12,479 19,069 (502) (13,573)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund balances 12,479 19,069 (502) (13,573)
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year (6,179) 41,739 1,241 14,357
End of year $ 6,300 $ 60,808 $ 739 $ 784
(Continued)

65



City of Bradbury

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for current services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year
End of year

Proposition C SB 1 Gas Tax Measure W Sewer
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 140 $ 340 $ - 2,265
22,036 17,238 53,094 -
22,176 17,578 53,094 2,265
8,803 - 42,230 -
15,347 51,611 - -
24,150 51,611 42,230 -
(1,974) (34,033) 10,864 2,265
- - - (667,520)
(1,974) (34,033) 10,864 (665,255)
19,683 43,583 - 665,860
$ 17,709 $ 9,550 $ 10,864 605

66



City of Bradbury

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out
Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year
End of year

67

$

$

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

3,881
181,458
20,103

205,442

87,425
81,126

168,551

36,891

(667,520)

(630,629)

857,125
226,496

(Concluded)



City of Bradbury

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

County Park Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year
End of year

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 500 3 500 68 $ (432)
500 500 68 (432)
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
$ (500) $ (500) 68 $ 568
9,165
9,233

68



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Measure R Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

1 with
Budget Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $ 300 $ 300 $ 547 $ 247

Intergovernmental 18,000 18,000 16,524 (1,476)
Total revenues 18,300 18,300 17,071 (1,229)

EXPENDITURES:

Capital outlay 88,739 88,739 - 88,739
Total expenditures 88,739 88,739 - 88,739
Net change in fund balance $ (70,439) $ (70,439) 17,071 $ 87,510

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 66,034

End of year $ 83,105

69



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
STPL Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

¥ 1
1 v ariance win

Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $ 10 $ 10 $ 7 $ 3)
Total revenues 10 10 7 3)

EXPENDITURES:

Capital outlay 1,055 1,055 - 1,055
Total expenditures 1,055 1,055 - 1,055
Net change in fund balance $ (1,045) $ (1,045) 7 $ 1,052

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 1,046

End of year $ 1,053

70



City of Bradbury

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Recycling Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charge for current services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 100 $ 100 $ 47 $ (53)
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
- - 20,103 20,103
5,100 5,100 25,150 20,050
5,000 5,000 - 5,000
5,000 5,000 - 5,000
$ 100 $ 100 25,150 $ 25,050
596
$ 25,746

71



City of Bradbury

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Fire Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 75 $ 75 $ - $ 35)
24,994 24,994 16,034 (8,960)
25,069 25,069 16,034 (9,035)
30,934 30,934 3,555 27,379
30,934 30,934 3,555 27,379
$ (5,865) $ (5,865) 12,479 $ 18,344
6,179)
$ 6,300

72



City of Bradbury

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Measure M Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outiay

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year
End of year

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 400 $ 400 $ 370 $ 30)
16,500 16,500 18,699 2,199
16,900 16,900 19,069 2,169
58,470 58,470 - 58,470
58,470 58,470 - 58,470
$ (41,570) § (41,570) 19,069 $ 2,169
41,739

73

S 60808



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
TDA Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget /ariance with
Original ______Final Actual Final Budget _
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ - $ - $ 17 $ 17
Intergovernmental 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Total revenues 5,000 5,000 5,017 17
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works - - 5,519 (5,519)
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Total expenditures 5,000 5,000 5,519 (519)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - (502) § (502)
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 1,241
End of year $ 739

74



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 200 $ 200 $ 80 $ (120)
Intergovernmental 35,000 35,000 27,833 (7,167)
Total revenues . 35,200 35,200 27,913 (7,287)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 36,929 36,929 27,318 9,611
Capital outlay 14,168 14,168 14,168 -
Total expenditures 51,097 51,097 41,486 9,611
Net change in fund balance : $ (15897) § (15,897) (13,573) $ 2,324
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 14,357
End of year $ 784

75



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Proposition C Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Original ) Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 450 $ 450 $ 140 $ (310)
Intergovernmental 23,000 23,000 22,036 (964)
Total revenues 23,450 23,450 22,176 (1,274)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 9,000 9,000 8,803 197
Capital outlay 36,570 36,570 15,347 21,223
Total expenditures 45,570 45,570 24,150 21,420
Net change in fund balance $ (22,120)  $ (22,120) (1,979 §$ 20,146
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 19,683
End of year $ 17,709

76



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
SB 1 Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Original B Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 300 $ 300 $ 340 $ 40
Intergovernmental 30,000 30,000 17,238 (12,762)
Total revenues 30,300 30,300 17,578 (12,722)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works - - - -
Capital outlay 81,615 81,615 51,611 30,004
Total expenditures 81,615 81,615 51,611 30,004
Net change in fund balance $ (51,315) $ (51,315) (34,033) $ 17,282
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 43,583
End of year $ 9,550

77



City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Measure W Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 50,500 $ 50,500 $ 53,094 $ 2,594
Total revenues 50,500 50,500 53,094 2,594
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 50,500 50,500 42,230 8,270
Total expenditures 50,500 50,500 42,230 8,270
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 10,864 $ 10,864
FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year -
End of year $ 10,864

78




City of Bradbury
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Sewer Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Sewer Special Revenue Fund

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $ - $ - $ 2,265 $ 2,265
Total revenues - - 2,265 2,265

OTHER FINANCING USES:

Transfers out (665,476) (665,476) (667,520) (2,044)
Total other financing uses (665,476) (665,476) (667,520) (2,044)
Net change in fund balance $ (665,476)  § (665,476) (665,255)  § 221

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 665,860

End of year $ 605

e —ee e
T ——

79




This page intentionally left blank.

80




A Richard Barakat, Mayor (District 3)

LY 26, 1957,

Richard Hale, Mayor Pro-Tem (District 1)
Monte Lewis, Councilmember (District 2)

Bruce Lathrop, Councifmember (District 4)
Elizabeth Bruny, Councifmember District 5 )

City of Bradbury
Agenda Memo

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Mario Flores, Management Analyst

DATE: October 17, 2023

SUBJECT: Approval of Atlas Planning Solutions Proposal for the Update

of a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Atlas Proposal for the Update of a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

SUMMARY

After a bidding process for the update of a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP), it is
recommended the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract for
consultant services with Atlas Planning Solutions (Atlas) for the update of a LHMP in the
not-to-exceed amount of $42,980.

BACKGROUND

Local Hazard Mitigation planning is the process of assessing vulnerabilities, measuiing
risk, identifying strategies for risk reduction, and assigning responsible parties to carry out
appropriate action. This initiative involves a comprehensive study of multiple hazards that
could impact a given municipality including natural, human-caused, and technological
hazards. The planning process requires a number of stakeholders, including members of
the public, coming together in a collaborative effort to attain a common objective of
managing disaster-related risk.

A Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) is the output of this planning process and serves
as a local municipality’s long-term road map for community resiliency. Local municipalities
are responsible to prepare, adopt, maintain, and update, a LHMP, once it has been
reviewed by the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and approved by
FEMA. Additionally, the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires a community to
have an approved LHMP in order to be eligible to apply for and receive FEMA hazard




mitigation funds. Once a LHMP is adopted, FEMA requires that the LHMP be updated
every five years. The City of Bradbury’s (City) LHMP is now due for an update.

A comprehensive update of the City’'s LHMP wili not only ensure that the City is eligible
to receive FEMA hazard mitigation funds, but also will guide the City towards building a
safer, more sustainable community. A comprehensive update of the City’'s LHMP

supports the City Council priorities of Disaster Preparedness and Fiscal Responsibility.

On August 9, 2023, the City circulated a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Update of
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. The submission deadline was originally August 31, 2023 at
5:00 p.m. As this submission deadline approached, the City received only one (1) bid;
therefore, the deadline date was extended to September 21, 2023. In response to the
RFP circulated at the conclusion of the extended deadline date, the City received a total
of seven (7) bid submissions. Below is an outline of the submitted responses.

Company ) o Fee Estimate
Atlas Planning Solutions $42,980
Dynamic Planning + Science $50,000
Emergency Planning Consultants (EPC) $52,500
Interwest Consulting Group (Interwest) $55,000
IEM $71,280
Jacob Green & Associates $84,600
Outrider Insight LLC $78,500

Based on the vendor's proposal (Attachment 1), references, and cost, City Staff is
recommending Atlas Planning Solutions (Atlas) as the best partner to develop the City’s
updated LHMP.

ANALYSIS

Atlas is a vendor that is made up of a staff with over 20 years of experience in assisting
planners and decision-makers with comprehensive vulnerability assessments and hazard
mitigation planning projects that have positive effects on iocai communities. F urthermore,
Atlas has assisted a great number of local communities develop F EMA-approved Hazard
Mitigation Plans. Communities that Atlas has assisted with developing LHMP’s include
the Cities of Anaheim, Duarte, Fullerton, Irvine, Laguna Beach, and Rancho Cucamonga.

Atlas utilizes a four-phase process to develop a LHMP update: (1) Planning and
Development Process; (2) Mapping and Risk Assessment; (3) Conducting a Hazard
Mitigation Strategy; and (4) Implementation and Maintenance Refinement. Atlas will
collaborate with City Staff and the City’s Public Safety Committee throughout the plan
development process to create an effective plan tailored specifically for the City. Atlas will
also conduct community outreach and engagement to alert residents and property owners
about the planning process and importance of the LHMP, as required by FEMA. The
entire planning process is expected to take approximately ten (10) months to complete.




Once completed, Atlas will present the final draft of the plan to City Council. The overall
cost of the plan will not exceed $42,980.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The LHMP update will be funded from the City’s general fund and will not exceed the
amount of $42,980.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

After a bidding process for the update of a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP), it is
recommended the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract for
consuitant services with Atlas Planning Solutions (Atlas) for the update of a LHMP in the
not-to-exceed amount of $42,980.




s (A




Proposal for:

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

City of Bradbury
600 Winston Avenue
Bradbury, CA 91008

. Atlas Planning Solutions
6578 BARRANCA DR | RIVERSIDE, CA 92506







Table of Contents

Table of Contents ........ i
GOV LEIOI covmuc - onumrnirnssssossssssssesssssommmeumsamsessisasssssns s sabmses s pesemsmssos s S eme bmse et et e teese s eeee s 1
[ Project Team OVEIVIEW............coccoourmimiiiiieioeeeeeeoeoeeeoooo 2
A. Atlas Planning SOIUtONS...............oooouiuiuoioiooeeoeeeeeoeoooo 2
Atlas Planning Solutiens Business Information ... 2
Navigating Preparedness Associates (NPA) Firm Description.............c.oooviiiceieeeeee 3

Il Proposed Work Program.............co.coo.oooiuiommmeeoooeooeoooooo 3
Project Understanding................c.ccuoiiuimieioeieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeoeeooo 3
Atlas Planning Team Differentiators .........................coooovo 4
PIOJECt APPrO@CH...........ee e 4
SCOPE OF WOTK. ... 5
HMPC MEELINGS.........oeieiee oo e 5
Outreach and ENgagement ...................coo.oooooooimioooeoeoeoo 5

1] Project Team Qualifications......................co.oooooomoe 10
B. Qualifications and Experience of Proposed Project Staff...............coovvveeeoeeee 10
C. Team Organizational Chart ................c..ovuveveeeoieeeeeeeeooooooooo 10
Project Experlence12
Atlas Planning Solutions' Hazard Mitigation Planning Experience..............occooveeeeevvoen 12
Navigating Preparedness Associates (NPA) Hazard Mitigation Planning Experience......... 17

IV. Proposed Project Schedule and Timeline.............coccocoorovooo 18
V. Client REfEIENCES ..ot 19
Vi PPOJBOECIOBL. s ussaceumcesihrmmmussussssssssssasmsamsas s sesmsmsess asesssass 3 sssimmmtmmes t csoemmasssess b eemsane s e e 20
VIIl.  Previous Failures or Refusals to Complete a Contract..............cocooovoeeooeo 21
IX. " Similar Local Hazard Mitigation Plans ... 21
Attachment A — Staff ReSUMES ............c.o.oooouiviimiooieeeoo A-1
City of Bradbury Proposal for: Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Page |i

Atlas Planning Solutions




City of Bradbury Proposal for: Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Page |ii
Atlas Planning Solutions




Cover Letter

September 21, 2023 (Updated October 4,2023)

Mario Flores
Management Analyst
City of Bradbury

600 Winston Avenue
Bradbury, CA 91008

Dear Mr. Flores,

As a unique foothill community in the San Gabriel Valley, Bradbury faces numerous challenges
associated with natural and human-caused hazards. Hazards like wildfire, landslides, and
flooding, can have a significant impact on the daily lives of residents and city operations. Through
the hazard mitigation planning process, the city can better understand how to manage the risks
associated with the primary hazards that can impact the City. The City's desire to update its local
hazard mitigation plan can become the catalyst to address many of the natural hazard issues and
fix many of the problems created from past decisions. Knowing the challenges that cities face with
limited budgets, reduced staffing, and limited resources, this opportunity can help ensure the
community doesn't fall further behind.

This update can also provide opportunities for the City to better integrate the recently updated
Safety Element and CWPP into their overall mitigation strategy. These documents can ex<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>